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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

During the Year, the Group experienced a variety of market
challenges and uncertainties in global economy, including but not
limited to the appreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars,
intense competition, increasing operating costs and volatile global
environment, especially the trade war between United State of
America (the “U.S.”) and the People’s of Republic of China (the
“PRC") in late Year 2018 which adversely affected the financial
performance of various business segments of the Group to some
extent. To cope with these challenges, the Group has adopted more
stringent cost control policies to minimize wastes in all aspects. At
the same time, the Group has devoted continuous and more financial
and human resources to each business segment and identified more
business opportunities to create value for the Group. Detailed analysis
and measures adopted by each business segment is covered in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report.

Looking forward, continuous challenges are expected in different
industries, especially those operated in the PRC. The trade war
between the U.S. and the PRC will continue to create global
economy instability and the impact is undetermined in current stage.
The soaring material prices, increasing minimum wages and more
stringent environmental requirement imposed by the PRC government
will create extra financial burden on the Group. The keen market
competition among all industries may also hinder the Group from
achieving a stable growth in turnover for all business segments. The
Group is pleased to accept these challenges and will continue to
devote more resources to improve the existing business effectiveness,
create new value-added services to our customers and to enhance
our values to our business partners. The Group will also restructure
the existing strategies, devote more marketing efforts to develop the
PRC market, and continue looking for business opportunities in the
PRC and Asia Pacific region to enlarge our business network to other
places of the world.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MR GR 2 7
Annual Report 2018

AN A 7 X &RNeway Group Holdings
LimitedF E5EEZERER 2 E* ([K
RENEEFE([EFE)MARBKE
REARARENB AR (HBIAE
BEE=_T-N\F+=-A=+—Hit
FE(RNFEINEE-

AEERAFEHE TS HE MR
REBETHAPEE BRETRRAR
B TTITE AN S 5T T
EAEEERAMBEBH TENRIRER
R LERR-_Z-N\FEXHNRE
RE([RE]) BpmEARLME (TF
HDzHANEZB AEESEEBDH
M BRBYEEAN FREMX R —F
BRENTHZE RENEELE K&
B 2 BREN S TR ERAR E B B AR FE B 0 BA
KEEBERERDRERI R
AEECHERSEBDHRAEZH
BRANER UNOeEZmi SAE
BEEEE- ARSI BNEERED
A& B D BRBMOER FL2HA
HE[EEETwRON] &

R BRI - TR B 17 56 % A4 4 e 41 Bk
B HPLUEFEREZTTERE -F
XEFBREBERNEHREBEIRE
MR R B E R - RAFRHERETT
BRAK T & i B 7+ K BT B i S8 &R
REVIRRARE - AN KB RREINE
BRE - STEXHEE RO TIEH
FoNMAREEARAEERER D BE
FIREMERBER - A NEEBRAR
EH TR T THRAESZE
R URERBRBRY REFAER
A ERBMAERBEBHEEESH
BE - AEBETKEHARE R MR
HIEAERBTETS LHSEER
FEMEAEYEEREFNEK
WHHE M EBRGEREWRSM -

* EHRET



Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to PREIRE REE EBEBEHEMLEINAK
express my gratitude to all shareholders, investors, business partners FE—BHRNIEBEAER N ABKERIR
and staff for their continuous support and dedication to the Group RIS RAZELKERRESTS N
throughout the Year. 1% % R0 B o

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie E

Chairman EEB

Hong Kong BB

28 March 2019 —E-NEFE=A=+N\H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year"), Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) stepped up their sales and marketing efforts to increase
the revenue of various segments and the revenue of most of the
segments increased as compared with the year ended 31 December
2017 ("Year 2017"). The revenue of the Year increased by 15.0% as
compared with the Year 2017. However, the Group also experienced
a variety of market challenges and uncertainties in global economy,
including but not limited to the appreciation of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars, the soaring materials and operating costs, which
undermined the profit margin of orders received, and the trade war
between the United States (the “U.S.”) and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). These factors affected the business of the Group
adversely, especially the Manufacturing and Sales Business, and the
segment results of the Group decreased by approximately HK$40.6
million as compared with Year 2017.

The detailed business and financial review of each business segment is
stated below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

During the Year, total revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$592.6 million (Year 2017: approximately HK$515.5 million)
and the gross profit margin was approximately 23.0% (Year 2017:
30.8%). The segments’ respective contributions to the revenue of the
Group are as follows:

M
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Approximate Approximate
% to % to
2018 total revenue 2017 total revenue
1 4 W 2% [FEtEs
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HKS HK$
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Gaming Distribution Business BRDHEES 462,499 0.1% 1,513,933 0.3%
Lending Business HEEH 7,197,071 1.2% 4,611,231 0.9%
Manufacturing and Sales Business ~ &i& RiE &£ 75 525,690,488 88.7% 458,620,260 89.0%
Music and Entertainment Business &% R & £ % 18,133,494 3.1% 10,513,580 2.0%
Property Business MEEH 7,304,238 1.2% 6,500,175 1.3%
Trading Business B5%% 33,838,152 5.7% 33,774,464 6.5%
Total revenue Al e 592,625,942 100% 515,533,643 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

Gaming Distribution Business

The Gaming Distribution Business is the distribution of gaming
machines to Takara Gaming Solutions Limited (“Takara Gaming”), a
company principally engaged in gaming business and indirectly held
as to approximately 73.61% by a discretionary trust for the benefits
of the immediate family member(s) of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (“Mr.
Suek”), an executive Director and the chairman of the Company.

During the Year, A 25 KB (ORI BR A F (unofficial English
translation being Zhongxing Haotian Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd)
("Zhongxing Haotian”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
established in the PRC, entered into two service contracts with Takara
Gaming and its wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC (collectively the
“Takara Gaming Group”), pursuant to which the Group was engaged
to develop certain software products and provide technical training,
support and technical consultancy services related to multimedia
application software to Takara Gaming Group. Such income was
recorded in other income in the consolidated financial statements.
Meanwhile, a cost reduction strategy was adopted and the expense
incurred in this segment was significantly decreased by approximately
47.5% for the Year as compared with Year 2017. Overall, the
Gaming Distribution Business recorded a decrease in segment loss of
approximately 74.3% for the Year as compared with Year 2017.

Lending Business

The Lending Business included the financial leasing business in
Shanghai, the PRC and the money lending business in Hong Kong.
For the financial leasing business in Shanghai, no transaction was
conducted during the Year and the Group is still in search for deals
with promising potential.

For the money lending business in Hong Kong, the Group has paid
more efforts to expand its customer base and loan portfolio actively,
and has participated in more joint loan arrangements with other
licensed money lenders in Hong Kong during the Year. The Group’s
loan portfolio increased to approximately HK$80.8 million as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: HK$31.1 million). Majority of
interest income was received on time. During the Year, loan interest
income increased by approximately 56.1% to approximately HK$7.2
million (Year 2017: HK$4.6 million). The increase in loan interest
income was mainly resulted from the enlarged loan portfolio during
the Year. The segment results of the Lending Business increased by
approximately 90.3% to HK$4.2 million (Year 2017: HK$2.2 million).
As majority loans receivable were financed by internal resources and
low manpower was required for the daily operation of the Lending
Business, the Group could maintain a low operating cost, and a high
profit margin was achieved accordingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Manufacturing and Sales Business

This segment represented the business of the manufacturing and sales
of printing products of the Group, such as packaging boxes, labels,
paper products and paper shopping bags. The customer base of this
segment covered the worldwide market.

During the Year, the Manufacturing and Sales Business continued to
adopt two strategies as in Year 2017, including: (i) continuous cost
reduction, as well as efficiency and quality enhancement of factories
in the PRC; and (ii) expansion of sales network to customers with
higher profit margin. In order to meet the increasing quality demand
of our customers, the Group devoted more financial resources
in: (i) the acquisition of new machineries for replacing the labour
intensive workflow and aged machineries for enhancing production
capacity and efficiency; and (i) the renovation and reorganisation
of production zones of different product lines inside the factories in
Shenzhen, the PRC for improving the efficiency and effectiveness and
shortening the lead time between each process.

The segment revenue increased by approximately 14.6% to HK$525.7
million for the Year (Year 2017: approximately HK$458.6 million). The
increase in revenue was mainly caused by the increase in sales orders
from some existing and new customers from overseas countries and
the PRC, especially the sales of paper products and paper shopping
bags increased by approximately 17.1% and 148.0% respectively.

The segment profit for the Year decreased significantly by
approximately 93.6% to approximately HK$2.8 million (Year 2017:
approximately HK$43.4 million). The segment profit margin for the
Year was approximately 0.5% (Year 2017: approximately 9.5%). The
drop in profit margin was mainly attributable to:

(i) The material consumption rate increased by approximately
3.1% as compared with Year 2017 and the product mix
changed also. The prices of materials, especially certain
main materials, such as paper, increased significantly in late
2017 and in early 2018, which contributed to the increase in
material costs recorded in this segment for the Year. Although
the increasing trend of certain material prices have been
stabilised during the second half of the Year, the average
material costs of inventories being used in production during
the Year was still relatively high. As such, the overall material
consumption rate was pushed up. In addition, it is noted
that the revenue from some products with lesser material
requirement decreased for the Year which also pushed up the
overall material consumption rate of this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

(ii)

(iii)

The ratio of total staff costs and related expenses to sales
for this segment during the Year increased slightly by
approximately 1.1% as compared with Year 2017. During the
Year, the Group employed more high caliber production staff
members to enhance the efficiency of work processes and the
quality of products.

The exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars
appreciated during the Year. The average exchange rate
of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars appreciated by
approximately 2.1% as compared with Year 2017. The
fluctuation brought a negative impact on the segment profit
as most of the production and operating expenses were
dominated in Renminbi and approximately 64.6% of the
sales of this segment was dominated in Hong Kong dollars or
currencies other than Renminbi.

The gain on disposal of plant and machinery decreased by
approximately HK$4.0 million as compared with Year 2017.

The net impairment losses on trade receivables and contract
assets was approximately HK$11.4 million (Year 2017:
net reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables of
approximately HK$1.2 million). This included the specific
provision of a single overseas customer for paper bag
products, of which the management of the Company expected
that a high default risk might occur. The Group is taking
legal actions against this overseas customer and the case is in
progress as at the date of this report.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

Music and Entertainment Business

Revenue from this segment mainly consisted of income from concerts
and shows, artiste management fee income, album distribution
income, promotion income and musical work licensing income.

The revenue of this segment increased by approximately 72.5% to
HK$18.1 million (Year 2017: approximately HK$10.5 million) and the
loss of this segment for the Year was approximately HK$2.8 million
(Year 2017: approximately HK$2.9 million).

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to:

(i) The revenue from concerts and shows increased by
approximately 246.3% to HK$7.6 million (Year 2017:
approximately HK$2.2 million). Two concerts were organised
by a subsidiary of the Group for two artistes respectively,
namely, Lai Shui Yan, Vivian and Suen Yiu Wai, Eric during the
Year, thus pushing up the revenue of this segment.

(ii) The musical work licensing income increased by approximately
59.2% to HK$5.9 million (Year 2017: approximately HK$3.7
million), attributable to the licensing income received from an
International Federation of the Phonographic Industry.

The segment margin was improved to —15.5% in the Year from
-27.4% in Year 2017, mainly attributable to the increased song
licensing income generated from the song masters owned or licensed
by the Group.

During the Year, the Group acquired a private company from a
connected person which is principally engaged in artists management
business, at a consideration of approximately HK$271,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Property Business
Property development business

The Group had two property development projects as at 31 December
2018. One of which involved PIJIIEHEEMEHFR A7 (unofficial
English translation being Sichuan Yinghua Real Estate Co., Ltd.)
("Yinghua”) and was classified as an equity instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of the Group.
Another project involved )& & M #)& 5 HE 5 3 AR 2 7] (unofficial
English translation being Qingyuan Zhongging Property Development
Co., Ltd.) ("Zhongqging”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Yinghua holds the land use right of a commercial land parcel in
Chengdu, the PRC. The related property consisted of both residential
and commercial units. On 24 July 2017, the Group served an exercise
notice to Kwong Da Enterprises Limited (“Kwong Da") to exercise
the put option by which Kwong Da should acquire the entire issued
share capital of a subsidiary of the Group which indirectly owning
16.67% of Yinghua at the put option consideration of RMB30 million.
Completion of such disposal was originally agreed to take place on or
before 10 January 2018.

On 10 January 2018, the Group agreed with Kwong Da in writing
to extend the completion date to a day on or before 31 May 2018
(or such other date as may be agreed by both parties in writing)
and Kwong Da has agreed and undertaken to pay interest on the
outstanding put option consideration of RMB22 million at the rate of
10% per annum, calculated from 10 January 2018 to the completion
date. On 31 August 2018, the completion date was further extended
to a day on or before 31 December 2018 (so such other date as may
be agreed by both parties in writing). The Group received interest
amounted to approximately HK$1.6 million, representing the interest
accrued from 10 January 2018 to 31 August 2018, and recorded the
amount under other income in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group also received RMB2.2 million as the partial payment of the
put option consideration during the Year. As at the date of this report,
the outstanding put option consideration was RMB19.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Since completion has not taken place on 31 December 2018, after
lengthy negotiation and discussion between the parties, on 28 March
2019, the Group, Kwong Da, Kada Capital Investments Limited
("Kada") and the common director of Kwong Da and Kada entered
into a confirmation deed to agree on a loan arrangement and the
completion arrangement of the disposal. It is conditionally agreed
that the Group will provide a loan, through Grand Prospects Finance
International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(“Grand Prospects”), to Kada in an amount for the settlement of the
outstanding put option consideration and interest accrued payable by
Kwong Da to the Group. The disposal will complete upon drawdown
of the loan. The confirmation deed is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 28 March 2019 for details.

Zhongging holds the land use right of two commercial land parcels
in Qingyuan, the PRC. On 18 June 2014, FIJImth £ H &%
& # B AR A F (unofficial English translation being Shenzhen
Zhongxing Guosheng Investment Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhongxing
Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated
civil proceedings against Zhongging in the People’s Court of Baoan
District for, among other matters, the repayment of the shareholder’s
loan contributed by Zhongxing Guosheng in an amount of
RMB23,479,330 (the “Litigation”). On 19 June 2014, pursuant to an
application made by Zhongxing Guosheng to freeze and preserve the
assets of Zhongging at a total value of RMB23,400,000, an order was
granted by the People’s Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve
the two land parcels owned by Zhongqing from 24 June 2014 to 23
June 2016 (the “Freeze Order”). The Freeze Order aimed to ensure
that Zhongging has sufficient assets to repay the shareholder’s loan to
the Group.

Two hearings sessions of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014
and 25 September 2014 respectively. On 15 October 2014, the Group
received a civil mediation document dated 30 September 2014 and
issued by the People’s Court of Baoan District, acknowledging that:
(i) the Group and Zhongging confirmed that Zhongging was indebted
to Zhongxing Guosheng in a sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongging
agreed to repay to Zhongxing Guosheng a sum of RMB23,479,330,
together with interests accrued from 18 June 2014 to the date of
repayment, which was within 15 days of the effective date of the civil
mediation document; and (iii) if Zhongging failed to repay the agreed
amount, Zhongxing Guosheng shall be entitled to request Zhongging
to pay default interests calculated at two times of the lending rate of
the People’s Bank of China over the same period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

As advised by the Group’s PRC legal advisers, the effective date of
the civil mediation was 15 October 2014 and thus, the deadline for
repayment by Zhongging was 30 October 2014. As at the date of this
report, Zhongging had not repaid the outstanding shareholder’s loan
and accrued interests to Zhongxing Guosheng.

On 27 May 2016, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the People’s Court of Baocan District for the extension of the period
covered by the Freeze Order and the application was accepted by the
court. The extended period covered by the Freeze Order is from 13
June 2016 to 12 June 2019. During the Year, the management of the
Group has assessed the following factors, including but not limited to:
(i) the relevant costs and the land auction procedures in resolving the
land freezing matter; (ii) the current development plan of Qingyuan
City; (iii) the demand and supply of the property market in Qingyuan
City; and (iv) the business objectives and resources allocation of
various business segments of the Group. The management of the
Group considered no further action should be taken at the moment,
and the Group will closely monitor the negotiation progress with
business partner and will take further legal actions to protect the
Group's interest when appropriate. At the moment, the Group will
also seek for any disposal opportunity of the land.

Property investment business

The property investment business included: (i) the mini storage
business operated by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii)
the office leasing business operated by a joint venture; and (iii) the
leasing of several commercial units in Hong Kong and the PRC during
the Year.

Mini storage business

The Group renovated the ground floor, 1st floor, 2nd floor and half
of the floor area of the 4th floor of a self-owned industrial building
in Fanling, Hong Kong (the “Fanling Building”) in 2014 for the
operation of the mini storage business. As at 31 December 2018, the
occupancy rate of the storage units decreased to approximately 83%
(31 December 2017: approximately 92%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the Year, in order to meet the safety requirements stipulated
by relevant government authorities, the Group engaged a contractor
to renovate the ground floor and 1st floor of the Fanling Building.
As at 31 December 2018, the renovation work of ground floor was
almost completed and was pending a final inspection of relevant
government authorities. The renovation work of 1st floor was
commenced during the Year and remained in progress as at the
date of this report and was expected to be completed in 2019. As
some storage units were not available for lease to the customers
during the renovation period, the occupancy rate of the storage units
was affected. The Group will closely monitor the progress of the
renovation work and minimise its impact to the customers. On the
other hand, depending on the market condition and the cash flow
requirement of the Group, the Group may also consider the disposal
of the whole or part of the Fanling Building, which may result in the
cessation or disposal of the Group’s mini storage business.

Office leasing business

The office leasing business, being the operation of the business
service centre in Kwun Tong, Hong Kong, was operated by Estate
Summit Limited (“Estate Summit”), a joint venture of the Group
and an independent third party with extensive management and
operating experience. A brand name of “Prime Business Centres”
was established, and only around 73% of units was rented out as at
31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately 94%) due
to the keen market competition in Kwun Tong. During the Year, the
Group has recognised a loss in respect of a loan to a joint venture of
approximately HK$ 1.4 million due to prolonged financial loss incurred
by Estate Summit.

After evaluating the financial performance of the business service
centre, the demand and supply condition and the competition
of business service centre in Kwun Tong, the Group and the joint
venture partner agreed to cease the business. As agreed by the
landlord, the tenancy agreement of the business service centre was
early terminated at the end of February 2019 and all contracts of the
business service centre with customers were also terminated.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MR GR 2 7
Annual Report 2018

RAFE STEABBREE BTN
RERE AEEZRET —2AZEHH
MMEANEH TR —B - R-F—/\F
T-A=+—H #TITHEHITEEX
K BB BBABPIETRER
Eo—BONBHIRECRAFERRR
RAHmEBDEETH AHEN -
T NEFTK - RNEIFTHIRE - R B A
EEMRERTER, URAEBEME
HEZINTZE AKEST SR
ITRZEETEBEREHEFPHNTE-
E— A AEEERFTRAEAEE
MIREREB R ZELEZMMHAN
AR - L8] BE S| BUR SR B 1E 3K
HEXRIRRER -

MAZHEXRE

PRAEHEXEKNETBBIELLERN
R HOER  ZP RS EE
hEEEERENMEELRN — 2B
% = F TR — R % AEstate Summit
Limited ([Estate Summit]) & & &
NAE#EE - WAISZ T [Prime Business
Centres | mE - R —NF+ A
=+t—H BHRBEMSHEFH E
W73%EBEMEL (ZE—EF+=ZA
=+ —H:494%) RAFE -BHR
Estate SummitREIE AV KEE  I~&%
BEM—ERTFTAEERAZERERE
18#91,400,0007% T °

RAEEEBEREPONMBERE B
BEGRGFONEKBREEFIB
N AREBEREERRRBERIERR-
RETRE BHERGT L 2BOHZE
ER-F-NF-AEEMAKIL BE
BEFRIMZFABRBRBET LELHITE
ke



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

Property leasing and investment

The property leasing business involved two properties of the Group.
The first properties are commercial properties situated in Yuen Long,
Hong Kong (the “Yuen Long Properties”), which were leased to a
related company of the Group and were operating as a karaoke outlet
as at 31 December 2018. The revenue from such lease remained
stable as compared with Year 2017. Approximately 60.8% of revenue
of the Property Business was derived from the Yuen Long Properties.
The Group has signed a nine-year tenancy agreement with two
renewal option terms with the tenant in 2016 and the first term of
tenancy agreement was expired on 15 March 2019. According to first
renewal term, the monthly rent for the first renewal term would be
increased at a range of 0% to 10% of the monthly rent. The Group
is conducting a market research on the rental market in the area of
Yuen Long and is negotiating the monthly rent for first renewal term
with the tenant. It is expected that a conclusion will be reached by
mid-April 2019.

The second property is a commercial property situated in Beijing,
the PRC (the “Beijing Property”). The Beijing Property was re-
classified as an investment property in Year 2017 upon the change of
property usage. During the Year, the Beijing Property was leased to
an independent third party and the rental income was approximately
HK$331,000.

According to the Group's accounting standard, the Fanling Building,
the Yuen Long Properties and the Beijing Property were classified as
investment properties of the Group and were carried at market value.
A fair value gain of approximately HK$10.9 million was recorded in
“other gains and losses” of the Group during the Year (Year 2017:
approximately HK$20.3 million).

Trading Business

The Trading Business included: (i) the trading of printing products in
Hong Kong and the PRC; and (ii) the operation of neighbourhood
stores in the PRC.
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BEEENWE DN

Revenue from the Trading Business remained stable at approximately
HK$33.8 million (Year 2017: approximately HK$33.8 million). The
segment profit margin for the Year slightly dropped to approximately
6.5% (Year 2017: approximately 6.9%). The drop in segment profit
margin was due to the drop of profit margin of the trading of printing
products in the PRC, which was attributable to the fact that sales
efforts were mainly placed on the Manufacturing and Sales Business
and most of the manpower of this business was used to support the
operation of the Manufacturing and Sales Business. For the operation
of neighbourhood stores in the PRC, the operation was inactive
during the Year. The Group will cease the operation within 2019.

Securities Trading and Equity Investments Business

During the Year, the Group recorded a fair value loss of securities
trading investments listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$35.5
million (Year 2017: approximately HK$19.2 million), a realised loss
of approximately HK$8.6 million (Year 2017: approximately HK$2.8
million) and a dividend income of approximately HK$2.8 million (Year
2017: approximately HK$1.5 million).
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Set out below is the breakdown of the Group's equity instruments AEBR - E—N\F+_A=+—H%
at FVTOCI and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss BSHME2ER AL AFEEYEZIRAT
(“FVTPL") as at 31 December 2018: AENEREREATEIREZEHEE

ZHAMEBEINAT

Percentage to Percentage to

the Group's the Group's
Percentage Fair value audited net audited total
of total share as at assets as at assets as at
Form of Principal activities capital held 31 December 31 December 31 December
Description of investments Notes investments of invested companies by the Group 2018 2018 2018
ERRER HAEER
—E2-)N\f ZB-N\F
R=F-N§& +-A=t-R +ZA=t-H
rEEBEER  t-A=t-8 WEBLEE HERK
REHL WE  RERS BRENATEEHR FABASL HRTE FEAAL AEEAIL
HK$ (approximate) (approximate)
BT (##) g
Top five largest investments of
the Group in terms of value
as at 31 December 2018
ARER-B-NF+ZAZt-BH
AARE (REEH)
Wang On Properties Limited Financial assets at FVTPL ~ Property development and property 0.36% 56,992,000 6.1% 4.9%
(stock code: 01243) investment
EEWERRAF (KA 01243) ERBEEATENR NEBRRRDERE
CREE
Equity Investment in Yinghua Equity instruments at FVTOCI Property development in the PRC 16.67% 14,679,744 1.6% 13%
REZEHENRARE BBAMRARAR RAENNERR
RTEFIRZBRATE
Zhong Wei Capital, L.P. Equity instruments at FVTOCI Offshore investment fund 1.33% 11,182,228 12% 1.0%
Zhong Wei Capital, L.P. BERABRERAR BRREES
DTEFIRRATE
Derivative financial instrument in Yinghua Financial assets at FVTPL Property development in the PRC N/A 6,651,180 0.7% 0.6%
REERBEZTELBIA ERBERAFENEZ RPENNRER TER
PRAE
Earthasia International Holdings Limited Financial assets at FVTPL Landscape architecture in Hong Kong 0.35% 7,170,000 0.8% 0.6%
(stock code: 06128) and Mainland China and catering
business in Mainland China and
Italy
RERFARERERAT BRRAGRATESIR, EEEARTEMGLIRERT
(AR5 - 06128) LREAE IARTEHE R R E KR
HEERER
Other i\nvestments
Other equity investments, at fair value @-© Equity instruments at FVTOCI N/A 391,500 0.04% 0.03%
EHBARE RATE @ EBRARZEYAR TR
RTEFIRZBATE
Other equity securities listed in Hong Kong (b) Financial assets at FVTPL N/A 17,082,200 1.8% 15%
REE LR A E S5 (b) FEERRATER, TEA
LREAE
Total 114,148,852 12.3% 9.9%
&3t
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Notes:

(a) Equity investments carried at fair value under this category represented
the Group's investments in a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

(b) Equity securities listed in Hong Kong under this category represented
the Group's investments in 18 companies whose shares are listed on
the Main Board or GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Each of such investments has a carrying
amount that accounts for less than 5% of the Group's audited net
assets as at 31 December 2018.

(@] The Group recognised fair value loss on two equity instruments in &3l
MEBRERRMD AR F and WTR Health Limited at an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$14.3 million after assessing the current
financial position and the financial forecast of the invested companies
and the recoverability of the equity instruments. The fair value loss
was recorded under other comprehensive expenses in the consolidated

financial statement.

The Group received an investment income of approximately HK$1.8
million from its investment in Zhong Wei Capital L.P. during the
Year and expected that such investment would generate a positive
investment return in the future.

The Group will carefully study the market and the information related
to prospective investees before purchasing any securities, and will
closely monitor the performance of the investments after purchase as
well as adjust the investment strategy in a cautious manner as and
when necessary to minimise the impact of market volatility.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses for the Year comprised the following major

items:

Hit= R EE
REFEMKEREBBEEANTERE
B :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ HK$
BT ETT
Change in fair value of derivative PTESBITAN
financial instrument N EEE = (2,837,217)
Change in fair value of financial assets FREREATEYES
at FVTPL TREENRTEE (36,657,753) -
Change in fair value of held-for-trading FHIEEEREN
investments NEEEEH = (19,173,556)
Change in fair value of investment properties & &%) % 89 A F{E & &) 10,942,146 20,273,024
Gain on land swap transaction (Note 2) THEBRR ZHKE
(Bfet2) - 46,611,407
Loss recognised in respect of METEEQRER
loans to joint ventures (Note 3) WRREE (Hit3) (1,391,092) (2,874,868)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 1) HE — R B A R BTE
BB (1) - (5,396,840)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SN W as (B518) F 5 946,511 (678,650)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME  WFERE&EN
plant and equipment W e F 58 260,845 4,244,150
Total st (25,899,343) 40,167,450
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BEEENWE DN

Notes:

In Year 2017, a sale and purchase agreement was entered into
between Dream Class Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as vendor, and Anchor Kapital Limited, a company wholly-
owned by the trustee of a discretionary trust of which the immediate
family member(s) of Mr. Suek is/are one of the discretionary objects
as purchaser, in relation to the disposal of entire issued share capital
of Power Rank International Limited at a consideration of HK$2.34
million.

Due to the policy driven zone planning and upon request by the local
government, H RENfE| (V&3 ) B MR 2 Al (unofficial English translation
being: Zhongda Printing (Qingyuan) Company Limited) (“Zhongda
Qingyuan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
originally owned two land parcels with a total area of approximately
311.748 mu in Qingyuan City, the PRC (the "Existing Land”),
swapped the land with a new parcel of land with an total area of
312 mu situated in Qingyuan City, the PRC (the “New Land”) and a
compensatory payment of RMB45,009,700. The land swap transaction
was completed in October 2017. The gain on land swap transaction
was calculated with reference to the difference between: (i) the
total of fair value of the New Land and the compensatory payment;
and (i) the total of book value and capital expenditures incurred on
the Existing Land, the deposit paid for certain land use rights of the
Existing Land and the tax expenses incurred in the transaction. Further
details of the transaction are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 18 May 2017.

The Group recognised a loss in respect of its investment made in Estate
Summit, a joint venture of the Group principally engaged in the office
leasing business in Hong Kong. For the reasons of such loss, please
refer to the business and financial review of the Property Business
stated above.
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LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

RBEE BXERREARE

TRBNAREHE_FT—\F+_7
=t—BAm=—%— t¢+_ﬂ_+ H

IFHRBLLR - RPLULENEERGLL
7.

*
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i S
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
NOTES HK$ HK$
B at BT BT
Current ratio MENLL R (i) 3.4 4.1
Quick ratio REpLE = (i) 3.1 3.6
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBELRE®) (ifi) 11.3 7.9
Notes: Bt
(i) Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets and assets (i) EENL R BB AFERERNAREE

classified as held for sale by total current liabilities as at the end of the

year.

(ii) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets and assets
classified as held for sale less inventories and properties under
development for sale by total current liabilities as at the end of the

year.

(iii) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity
as at the end of the year and then multiplying it by 100%. The total
borrowings included the amount due to a related company, bank
borrowings, obligations under finance leases and amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.

(ii)

(iii)

ERSFARFLEAERA@RB A E
g

R RDRBAFEREFNLREE
EASBARKIELEZEERFENRGE
BRTPOEBRABRBAMRTH

EEABLRDREAFEREFNHAE
BERAEREEBERNI00%E - BIEE
BIEEN —REE AR RIE  RITER
MEREETREN —RWBAR—RIE
YERG B R SR IE -
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$209.5 million
(31 December 2017: approximately HK$302.6 million) and total
borrowings of approximately HK$104.3 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$79.4 million).

The total borrowings included the amount due to a related company,
bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases and amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount due
to a related company was unsecured, payable within a period over
five years and bore fixed-interest rates ranging from 18%-20%
per annum. The secured bank borrowings were payable within five
years and carried interest at the Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 1.85% to 2.5% per annum. The amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The obligations under finance leases
represented leases of certain motor vehicles for a remaining term of
one year at a fixed interest rate of 2.8% per annum in Year 2017.

All borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
and the majority of cash and cash equivalents was denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars.

The current ratio and quick ratio indicated an ample cash flow and
a stable liquidity position as at 31 December 2018. However, these
ratios were lowered because: (i) cash and cash equivalents decreased
as the Group allocated more financial resources to the Manufacturing
and Sales Business in renovation of factories and acquisition of
machineries and equipments during the Year; and (ii) bank borrowings
were increased to finance the daily operation of the Manufacturing
and Sales Business.

The gearing ratio of the Company remained low, indicating that
the liquidity of the Group remained strong and healthy as at 31
December 2018. The gearing ratio increased from 7.9% to 11.3%
as at 31 December 2018, mainly attributable to the increase in bank
borrowing for financing the daily operation of the Manufacturing and
Sales Business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

The Group generally finances its operation with cash flows generated
internally and bank facilities obtained in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Taking into account the amount of the anticipated funds generated
internally and the available banking facilities, the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and
working capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement
its prudent policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining
a strong and healthy liquidity level and ensuring that business
opportunity will be promptly seized.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to strengthen, develop and diversify its
portfolio to ensure sustainable business growth in the future. While
the Manufacturing and Sales Business remains the core of the
Group's portfolio, other business segments will continue to develop
to contribute to the Group's income. The Group will stick to this
diversification strategy to generate stable return and promising
business growth for the Shareholders.

Gaming Distribution Business

The management expects that the services provided by Zhongxing
Haotian to the Takara Gaming Group will continue to improve the
segment results of the Gaming Distribution Business. Besides, the
Group is evaluating the return and prospect of this business and may
reallocate lesser resources to develop this business in the future.

Lending Business

Due to the keen competition in this market and the volatile economic
environment, the risks and difficulties facing the Lending Business
may be intensified in the course of loan portfolio expansion. The
Group will also closely monitor the repayment abilities of borrowers
and perform risk assessment on each loan application prudently.
Meanwhile, the Group will devote more resources to develop an
online money lending platform with more fin-tech elements to
provide more value-added services to our customers. The Group will
also continue to identify new customers and allocate more financial
resources for business development in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Manufacturing and Sales Business and Trading Business

Quality management and enhancement will be the focus of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business in the year of 2019. To provide
products and services of the best quality to our customers, the Group
will devote more human resources and financial resources to provide
more technical training programmes and organise more activities and
campaigns to deliver this important and positive messages throughout
all levels of the entities, which will be led by the key management of
the Group.

Looking forward to 2019, more challenges are expected, including: (i)
the further increase in prices of raw materials; (ii) the further increase
in labour costs in Shenzhen; (iii) the more stringent environmental
requirements in Shenzhen; and (iv) the global economic uncertainty,
such as the impact of the trade war between the U.S. and the PRC
and the possible impact of Brexit, which may adversely affect the
business of the export sales customers.

To cope with the challenges faced by the printing industry and to
maintain the profitability of this segment, the Group will continue to
put more efforts in the following areas: (i) efficiency and effectiveness
enhancement by streamlining the production process of its factories
so as to reduce operation and production wastage; (ii) talent
recruitment, provision of value-added services and upgrade of its
technology infrastructure; (iii) quality management and enhancement
of its products as mentioned above and introduction of new product
lines to enhance its competitiveness as a whole; (iv) procurement of
alternative materials, verification of their quality and negotiation with
vendors for more favourable terms; (v) expansion of its market share
to cover high value products, allocation of more resources to upgrade
the facilities and recruitment of more skilled labours to meet the
requirement of customers; (vi) continuous allocation of more financial
resources to acquire new machineries to lessen the extent of labour
intensive works and increase the factory capacity as a whole; and (vii)
allocation of more sales and marketing resources to further expand in
countries other than the U.S. and evaluation of long term cooperation
or joint venture opportunities with other printing manufacturers with
production facilities in other Asian countries to diversify the risks
arising from the trade war between the U.S. and the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

In 2017, the Group completed the land swap transaction with the
Qingyuan government, and civil works were commenced and nearly
completed by the end of the Year. Due to the global economic
uncertainty, the Group is re-evaluating the risk and return of
establishing new production plants for the Manufacturing and Sales
Business because substantial capital investment will be required. The
original construction plan of new plants will be slowed down. The
Group will reconsider the business relocation plan and the factory
construction plan after evaluating the future business direction
and development plan and the associated costs and benefit of this
segment. Furthermore, the Group will actively seek for cooperation
opportunities with companies in other industry to better utilise and
develop the land parcel in Qingyuan as mentioned in the Property
Business in this section as below.

The Group will continue to adopt prudent measures to enhance
the overall efficiency, expand the customer networks, increase its
value proposition and improve its business model to overcome the
uncertainty in the PRC and the global economy in coming years.

Music and Entertainment Business

In coming years, the Group will allocate more financial resources to
the professional training of artistes, the promotional activities and
the investment and organisations of concerts and shows. In view
of the desirable investment return from films generated in previous
years, the Group will continue to invest in the film and entertainment
market in the PRC and to identify and evaluate potential projects in
the PRC and overseas. The Group also plans to source more artistes
with development potentials and further invest in talent cultivation.

Property Business

In respect of the property development business, apart from the
possible disposal or development of the two commercial land parcels
held by Zhongging in Qingyuan as mentioned in the business and
financial review section of the Property Business above, the Group is
also seeking co-operation opportunities with third parties to develop
a logistic centre or other facilities to serve the new Chimelong Tourist
Resort, which is in line with the future city development plan of
Qingyuan.
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BEEENWR DN

In respect of the property investment business, the Group will aim to
complete the renovation work of mini-storage spaces on both ground
floor and 1st floor and obtain the approval from relevant government
authorities in the year of 2019. Moreover, the Group will allocate
more resources to promote the mini-storage business and rebound
the decrease of the occupancy rate due to the renovation work during
the Year. Nevertheless, depending on the market condition, the Group
may also consider the disposal of the whole or part of the Fanling
Building, which may result in the cessation or disposal of the Group’s
mini-storage business which is currently carried out at such properties.

Securities Trading Business

The Group expects that the fair value of equity securities listed in
Hong Kong may keep fluctuating in the foreseeable future due to
the volatile global economic environment. The Group will closely
monitor the market and market data related to the prospective
investees before committing to any securities investment, and will
closely monitor the performance of the investments after purchasing
as well as adjust the investment strategy in a cautious manner when
necessary to minimise the impact of market volatility. The Group will
allocate less financial resources to the Securities Trading Business
gradually and reallocate more resources to develop other business
segment.

The Board would like to emphasise that the proposals mentioned
in this section are in preliminary stage only and no timetable or any
agreement or memorandum of understanding has been made or
entered into by the Group in connection therewith.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases are principally denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. Except for Renminbi,
there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of Hong
Kong dollars and U.S. dollars during the Year. The management
will closely monitor the foreign exchange rate risk of Renminbi and
identify significant adverse impact (if any) it may cause on the Group’s
operations in the PRC. The Group will consider using appropriate
hedging solutions when necessary. The Group did not use any
financial instrument for hedging purpose during the Year and it did
not have any outstanding hedging instrument as at 31 December
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property, plant
and equipment amounted to approximately HK$48.0 million (Year
2017: approximately HK$13.6 million). The capital expenditure for
the Year was mainly attributable to the acquisition of machineries
for production in the PRC, the renovation work of two factories in
Shenzhen and the construction work conducted on the industrial land
in Qingyuan.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$5.7 million (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$7.8 million) which had been contracted for but had not been
provided for in the financial statements for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. The Group did not have any capital
commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that
had been authorised but not contracted for in both reporting periods.
The Group expects to finance the capital commitments by internal
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged leasehold building
and investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$233.5 million (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$222.4 million) to secure the mortgage loan of certain investment
properties and general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save
as aforesaid, no other assets were pledged by the Group as at 31
December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,600
full-time employees (31 December 2017: approximately 1,500).
Total staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the Year
was approximately HK$175.3 million (Year 2017: approximately
HK$157.3 million).

The remuneration schemes of the Group are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees and the reward packages, including discretionary bonus,
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff’s and the Group’s performance. Apart from salary payments
and contributions to the retirement benefit schemes, other staff
benefits include participation in share option scheme and medical
insurance for eligible employees. In-house and external training
programmes are also provided as and when required.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
DURING THE YEAR

On 16 March 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Ritzy Success Enterprises Limited as purchaser and
Mr. Yuan Ji Zhong as guarantor to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of Zen Vantage Limited (“Zen Vantage”) and the entire
sum owing by Zen Vantage to the Group (the “Sale Debt”) as at
completion at the aggregate consideration of HK$153 million which
shall be adjusted to the net asset value of Zen Vantage and the
face value of the Sale Debt as shown in the pro forma completion
accounts of Zen Vantage (the “Disposal of Zen Vantage Group”).
Completion shall be conditional upon, among others, the obtaining
of the approval from the shareholders of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation and the business transfer within
the Group. Immediately prior to the completion of such transaction,
(i) Zen Vantage will be holding Chung Tai Printing (China) Company
Limited, which is in turn holding A 2 KA R ERE (ORI AR A ]
(unofficial English translation being Neway Chung Tai Paper Products
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (collectively, the “Zen Vantage
Group”); and (ii) the principal assets of the Zen Vantage Group will
be the land and properties owned by the Group in Longgang District,
Shenzhen, the PRC and the building costs, leasehold improvements
and fixtures on the land and properties leased by the Group in
Longgang District, Shenzhen, the PRC. There will be no change
to the principal business of the Group as a result of such disposal.
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained for the Disposal of Zen
Vantage Group during the Year. Completion of the Disposal of Zen
Vantage Group has yet to take place as at the date of this report. For
further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 16 March 2018, 11 April 2018, and 31 December 2018 and
the circular of the Company dated 25 June 2018.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Major transaction — Acquisition of machinery

On 21 January 2019, 25 XEIR ORI BER A E (unofficial
English translation being Neway Chung Tai Printing (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) (“Neway Chung Tai (SZ)") entered into the
sales contract with Heidelberg China Limited CEEEHEFRE A
Al) (“Vendor”) for the acquisition of a six-colour offset press with
coating system at a contract price of EUR1,464,777 (equivalent to
approximately HK$13,196,000). Such acquisition, when aggregated
with (i) the acquisition of a IST UV system for seven-colour offset press
with coating system by the Neway Chung Tai (SZ) from the Vendor
pursuant to the sales contract dated 6 July 2018 signed between the
Vendor and the Neway Chung Tai (SZ); and (ii) the acquisition of a
seven-colour offset press with coating system by the Group from a
fellow subsidiary of the Vendor pursuant to a sales contract dated 6
July 2018 signed between such fellow subsidiary of the Vendor and
the Neway Chung Tai (SZ), constitutes a major transaction of the
Company. The acquisition has not been completed as at the date of
this report.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 January 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 28
March 2019.

Discloseable transaction — Provision of a loan to third
party

On 14 February 2019, Grand Prospects and an independent third
party lender entered into the loan agreement with the borrower and
the mortgagor. Pursuant to the loan agreement, Grand Prospects and
the independent third party lender agreed to grant to the borrower,
which is an independent third party, the loan in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$13,000,000 for a term of 12 months, bearing interest
at a current rate of 13.125% per annum. The principal amount
contributed by Grand Prospects to the Loan was HK$6,500,000.
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Also on 14 February 2019, Grand Prospects and the independent
third party lender entered into a memorandum of cooperation which
governs the rights and obligations among them in respect of the
Loan.

As the borrower is an associate of the mortgagor and the loan is
granted to the borrower within 12 months from the grant of the
previous loan to the mortgagor, the contribution by Grand Prospects
to the loan is aggregated with its contribution to the previous loan
in calculating the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”)). Therefore, such loan arrangement constituted a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 14 February 2019.

Discloseable transaction — Renovation framework
contract

On 22 March 2019, Neway Chung Tai (5Z), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the renovation framework contract
with a contractor pursuant to which the contractor has agreed
to undertake the renovation works for Neway Chung Tai (S7) at a
total contract price of not more than RMB2.4 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,803,000). During the period from 23 July
2018 to 21 February 2019, the Group has signed various contracts
with the contractor for the refurbishment of the SZ Factory at an
aggregate contract price of approximately RMB2.7 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,154,000). The renovation framework
contract, when aggregated with the various contracts, constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019.

Major transaction — Proposed grant of loan

On 28 March 2019, the Group, Kwong Da, Kada and the common
director of Kwong Da and Kada entered into a confirmation deed
to agree on a loan arrangement and the completion arrangement
relating to the put option. The confirmation deed is subject to the
approval by the shareholders of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2019 for details.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERRSE

The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company is
committed to enhancing and reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
development of the Group.

In the opinion of the Board, save for the deviations disclosed in
this Corporate Governance Report, the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to the shareholders of
the Company. Every Director carries out his/her duty in good faith in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations and
acts in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight members during the Year and as at
the date of this Corporate Governance Report, which include
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for
independent decision-making.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Executive Directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the following members during the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

The names of the Directors on the relevant dates are disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, the chief executive officer of the Company
(the "Chief Executive Officer”), is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). The detailed
relationships among members of the Board are disclosed under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Executives” on pages 53 to 57.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to (i) the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise; and (ii) the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREARSE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
existing independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by different persons in order to preserve independence and
a balanced judgement of views. The Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of
the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running the
Company's businesses and developing and implementing the Group's
strategic plans and business goals.

Despite that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are uncle
and nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Annual Meetings Between Chairman and Non-executive
Directors Without Present of Executive Directors

Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code prevailing during the Year required
the chairman to hold meetings at least annually with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. The chairman of the Board
during the Year, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie was himself an
executive Director and as such, compliance with this code provision
was infeasible. However, Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code has been
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 and now requires the
chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least annually with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors. The Company will comply with this provision in coming
years.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed for a term of three
years from 5 April 2016 to 4 April 2019, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was
appointed for a term of three years from 19 April 2017 to 18 April
2020, and Mr. CHU Gun Pui was appointed for a term of three
years from 23 June 2017 to 22 June 2020. Save for the above, all
other non-executive Directors have a term of appointment which
commenced from 1 April 2016 and will continue for a period of three
years until 31 March 2019. The term of appointment of each Director
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and the Listing Rules and
the terms and conditions of their respective letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Bye-laws and the nomination
policy adopted by the Company in December 2018. Please refer to
the paragraph headed “Nomination of Directors” below for further
details of the nomination policy of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
the legal and regulatory developments and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Briefings
and professional development trainings will be arranged for the
Directors whenever necessary.

Professional Training for Directors

Each of the existing Directors, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr,
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren,
Mr. WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and Mr. LAU Kam Cheong confirmed to the Company
that he had complied with provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the
Year by reading all materials provided by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and/or attending trainings on
the topics relating to the updates on the new requirements under the
Listing Rules launched by professional parties.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan joined the Group as the Company Secretary
since 23 August 2010. Acting as the Company Secretary, Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan reports to the Board and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. She has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings during the Year. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices were given.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Board practices and conduct of meetings (Continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting during the Year to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest development and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also had separate and independent access to
the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. During the Year, draft
minutes were normally circulated to the Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version was open
for the Directors’ inspection.

The Bye-laws contain provisions, with certain permitted exemptions,
requiring Director(s) to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Director(s) or any of their respective associates have a material
interest.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ attendance records

During the Year, the Board held four meetings, two of which were
regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance of the Group. The Company did not
announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the holding
of quarterly meetings necessary.

Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires the independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors to attend
general meetings of the Company and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders. During the Year,
except Mr. LEE Kwok Wan who has not attended the special general
meeting of the Company held on 13 July 2018, all independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors have attended
all general meetings during the Year.
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AN\ X 55 3 ==
TEERRE
THE BOARD (Continued) EEg (&)
Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General BEESeR BEEZEESERRE
Meetings (Continued) e (&)
Directors’ attendance records (Continued) EEHELE ()
The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of UNTHEASESNAFELFE AR A
the Board, the Board committees and at the general meetings of the Exee EETEeeZ NEREKX
Company for the Year is set out below: @ 7 ek
Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the Year
RAFEHERY SERY
Special Annual
General General
Meeting Meeting
Audit Remuneration held on held on
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee 13 July 2018 20 June 2018
R=ZB-NF§ RZB-N\E
tA+=H ~AZtH
g7z BTz
EEfs EE® EBENRZEY® FMZEEE RRBHIAE RRAFAY
Executive Directors BTES
~ Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie —BRBELE 4/4 N/A N/A on 17
(Chairman) (/) TEA TEA
- Mr. SUEK Chai Hong ~BEERE 44 N/A N/A 11 17
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TB#%) TEA NiE B
Non-executive Directors kHTES
- Dr. NG Wai Kwan ®e®/ -REREL 3/4 N/A N/A 1”71 il
TER TEA
- Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —BRImM & 44 N/A N/A 17 17N
TER TER
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat -EHMBELE 4/4 22 22 1 17
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
- Mr. LEE Kwok Wan ~-ZEZE%E 4/4 212 212 0/1 il
- Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky —BHmEE 44 212 212 1 11
~ Mr. CHU Gun Pui —REMEAE 4/4 N/A N/A 1 17
TER TEA
Note: K&t -
The board meeting of the Company held on 31 August 2018 was attended by RZE—NFNA=ZFT—HBROTZARAEFE
his alternate director. EEHABREESLFE -
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
was noted by the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve a conflict of interests), appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior executives. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by these senior executives and the Board has the full support for
them to discharge their responsibilities.
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TEERHRE

DELEGATION (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the investment
management committee (the “Investment Management Committee”)
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo,
Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of them was independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding such Director’s remuneration.
Remuneration of each Director is determined by reference to
the Group’s operating results, the duties and responsibilities of
the Director with the Company, the performance of the Director
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer in relation to its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the executive Directors and shall have access to
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREARSE

DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has held two meetings
to review the remuneration of the existing Directors and senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in relation
thereto.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to
shareholders upon request.

Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of the
investment matters of the Company, and in order to cope with the
Company's business development in the future, a committee of the
Board known as Investment Management Committee was established
in March 2014 for identifying, assessing and analysing all investment
opportunities for the Group and to make recommendations on
acquisition and/or disposal of the Group to the Board from time to
time.

The Investment Management Committee comprises five members,
namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr. CHOW Yun Cheung, and Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan throughout the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report, all of whom possess experience and
familiarity with financial and investment analysis.

During the Year, the Investment Management Committee has held
two meetings and all members of the Investment Management
Committee attended such meetings.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not established a nomination committee which was
in deviation of Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.5 of the CG Code. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new
Directors from time to time, so as to ensure that it has a balanced
composition of candidates appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company. The Board as a whole is also responsible
for assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in
particular the chairman of the Board.

In December 2018, the Company has adopted a nomination policy
(“Nomination Policy”) for the nomination of directors so as to ensure
the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of the Company’s business strategy and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Board has primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and making
recommendations to shareholders of the Company for election
as Directors at general meetings or appoint Directors to fill casual
vacancies, and in carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate
consideration to the Nomination Policy.

According to the Nomination Policy, Board appointments will be made
on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. In assessing the suitability of a proposed Director, the Board
will consider the candidate’s academic background and qualifications;
experience in the industry; character and integrity; willingness and
capacity to devote adequate time commitment in discharge of a
director’s duties; and will also consider whether the candidate can
contribute to the Board a diversity of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

Any Board member may nominate or invite a candidate for
appointment as a Director for consideration. The Board shall evaluate
the personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria as
set out in Nomination Policy. The Board shall also undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of each candidate and make recommendation
for the Board's consideration and approval.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MR GR 2 7
Annual Report 2018

REESE
BEESHMAKNLIRBREZE D LB HEH
DEEESTREASNEE FAS KK
X -BA  ARESERETHENES
SVRE  ABREAKUREZEHES
NBREESSHABRAE N R EKFT
EZATHEK MARTREBMEBA
RIRRELES - EFS2REARAE
TEBYIERTES B UM NERE
E(LERESTEXF) 2ETHE-

RZE—N\F+ZA KAARERIRS
EERMIBRBOR (MRREK]) - JAE
REFEREARTT EREBH K
e ERFFEE 88 AT AR A
EBRBOATRCEZTSHRERF-

EXeTEREYERESEENEBZAHE
REAALRMARFRREBLEES AR
BRRE DEREEXTTEFHMR
Rk MREITHEERTEREDE
BIRREBK -

RERBER EFEMAZTHUN
AT BRA UEBIREZRIREA -
EfEREAEZEREAR EFF
ERFEANBMESRER TEE
2 mRERE TEREELERRAR
WORBEETESRE THERERE
ARBAIARAESTSRHEZ OB
BREETNERER - Fik L RHBEE
=R BRER XL ME MRS
FIR e

EREFEXREHARAIEFBREA
EIEFUHER - EFSBRERESR
BRAEZEEFEBUIREANBEAE
H-EFQNAHBMUKRENETED
ZEBES WROHEBEZAMHES
SEHE LM



Corporate Governance Report
EREARSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and developing and reviewing and monitoring the codes
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors. During the Year,
the Board reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 1 September 2013
(the "“Board Diversity Policy”). In assessing the Board composition,
the Board would consider various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, professional experience
and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.
Despite the Board did not consist of any female members as at the
date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Board considers
that an appropriate balance of diversity in terms of experience and
knowledge of the Board is maintained.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information put to the Board for approval and the
financial position of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Group has complied with Provision C.2 of the
CG Code by maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the Company is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system while the Board oversees the management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on
an on-going basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the Year, no
significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the “COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

o Risk assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Internal Control System (Continued)

Control activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks for the achievement of objectives are carried out;

Information and communication: Internal and external
communications to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of the internal control system is
present and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Group, which include:

the access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

the executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the Year, no
significant control deficiency was identified.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Audit Function

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually, covering a period of each financial
year and the results are reported to the Board via Audit Committee
afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have
been considered during the Board’s review, which include but are
not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks since the last annual review and the Group's ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment; and (ii) the
scope and quality of management’s on-going monitoring of risks and
of the internal control systems.

The Board and the IA function had conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
during the Year. The Board, through its review and the review
made by IA function and Audit Committee, concluded that the
risk management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources,
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the
training programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Audit
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky,
and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of them was independent non-executive Directors (including
at least one independent non-executive Director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee is published
on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to
shareholders upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and external auditors before submission to
the Board;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management systems via the IA function and their associated
procedures; and

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee has held two meetings and
reviewed the Group’s final results and annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2018. The Audit Committee has also reviewed
with the management the Group's accounting policies, the risk
management and internal control systems via the IA function and
the effectiveness of the Company's IA function. It has also discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Group, reported to the Board on material issues, if any, and made
recommendations to the Board. It has reviewed the work performed
and fees charged by the external auditors and made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee. There is no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditor's Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 117 to 124.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to HK$2.0 million and HK$1.0 million respectively. The
non-audit services charged by the external auditors of the Company
for the Year included (i) interim review of the financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2018; (ii) filling of
tax return of the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii) professional
services rendered on a very substantial disposal of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules conducted during the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communications with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information to enable shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any enquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and
for the shareholders to stay informed of the Group's strategy and
goals. External auditors, the Chairman as well as the chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting;
or (ii) not less than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written
requisition stating the resolution which is intended to be moved
at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on
their shareholdings and related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolution is proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after the general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 40, was appointed as the Chairman
since August 2009. He has been an executive Director since July
2004 and the chief executive officer of the Company from November
2007 to 31 August 2009. He is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie obtained an
EMBA degree and a Master degree in marketing from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He had two
years of experience in investment banking and subsequently moved
to commercial sector and acted as a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie possesses sophisticated and
professional management experience and is familiar with investment
analysis. He is responsible for monitoring the Group's business
development and to search for business opportunities in the PRC
market and overseas. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie has not entered into any
service contract with the Company and there is no designated length
of service but his appointment is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-
laws and the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie is entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$2,310,000 per
annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. NG Wai
Kwan, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is a director of CNA Company Limited, which
has an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and Divisions 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 57, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer since August 2009 and has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1992. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. SUEK Chai Hong obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Finance from the York University,
Canada. He has more than 30 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is entitled to
receive a remuneration of HK$1,386,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an
executive Director and the Chairman.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 69, was appointed as an non-executive
Director in March 2007. Dr. NG Wai Kwan holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom. Dr. NG Wai Kwan has over 35 years' experience in supply
management, logistics planning, innovation and executive and
leadership development.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
Wai Kwan and the Group, Dr. NG Wai Kwan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2016 until 31
March 2019 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Dr. NG Wai Kwan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive
Director and the Chairman.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2002 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2007. He is
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK) and an associate member of the Institute of
the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators (UK), the Hong Kong Institutes
of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Global Management
Accountant.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren has over 35 years of experience
in financial management, corporate administration and corporate
finance in several multinational corporations and listed public
companies.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and the Group, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren has been appointed for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April 2016 until 31 March 2019 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions
of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this report,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$170,000 per annum.
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Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from December 1994 to August 2009 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director in August 2009. He is
currently a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. WONG Sun Fat holds a Bachelor degree of Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 30 years of experience in
electronic products business and vast experience in manufacturing
operations.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG Sun Fat and the Group, Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2016
until 31 March 2019 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. WONG Sun Fat is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2013. He is currently the chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan holds a MBA degree in Business Administration and a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and Accountancy and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has more than 20 years of accounting and
management experience. He is the chief financial officer of a sizable
company in Hong Kong engaging in the manufacturing of watches.
He was once appointed as the company secretary of the Company
from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan and the Group, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 5 April 2016 until 4 April
2019 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules
and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at
the date of this report, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2017. He is currently a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds
a Master degree of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor degree of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAl Sai
Wo, Ricky is a practising accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountant and an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has more than 15 years of accounting and
management experience. He is currently the financial controller and
the company secretary of Jolimark Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2028), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was once appointed as the company
secretary of the Company from August 2006 to March 2007.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment dated 19 April 2017 made
between Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky and the Company, Mr. LAl Sai Wo,
Ricky has been appointed for a term of three years commenced from
19 April 2017 to 18 April 2020 subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. CHU Gun Pui, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2017. Mr. CHU Gun Pui holds a Bachelor
degree of Commerce majoring in marketing and a Bachelor degree
of Science majoring in computer science from The University of
Auckland. Mr. CHU Gun Pui has over 15 years of experience in sales
and marketing field in entertainment industry.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr,
CHU Gun Pui and the Group, Mr. CHU Gun Pui has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 23 June 2017 until 22
June 2020 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. CHU Gun Pui is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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As at the date of this report, each of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. WONG Sun Fat has an
interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and/
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong
Kong). For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
of the Directors’ Report of this annual report. There is no change in
such Director’s interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and/or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO from 31 December 2018 up to the date of this
report.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 56, was appointed as the alternate
Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director, in July 2008.
He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU Kam Cheong
joined the Group in 2001. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting from
The Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom and has over 30 years of
experience in management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Ms. NG Wai Chi, aged 59, has over 35 years of experience in label
and silkscreen printing. She joined the Group in 1992 and is currently
the vice president of Chung Tai Printing Company Limited and Chung
Tai Printing (International) Company Limited. Ms. NG Wai Chi holds a
Master of Science degree in Engineering Business Management jointly
awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom. She is responsible for the corporate
social responsibility and quality management of the Group and is
currently a committee member of Green Council Certification Scheme
(GCCS) of Green Council.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas, aged 39, is a director of various
companies under the Music and Entertainment Business of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2009. He was the human resources
manager of Neway Karaoke Box Limited for the period from 2001 to
2007 before being appointed as an executive director thereof. Mr.
WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas has over 15 years of experience in the
related fields of management and holds a Bachelor degree in human
resources management from the Hong Kong Baptist University and
a Master of Science degree of management from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group”) present its annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”). All cross-references
mentioned in this Directors’ Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the Year,
the principal activities of the Group include (i) distribution of gaming
machines; (i) money lending; (i) manufacturing and sales of printing
products; (iv) artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums and movies; (v) property development and investment;
(vi) securities trading; and (vii) trading of printing products. The
principal activities and other details of the principal subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
125 to 126.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (Year ended 31 December 2017 (“Year 2017"): Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s businesses with analysis using key
performance indicators, the particulars of important events
affecting the Group after the reporting period and the likely future
development of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 31.
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Directors’ Report
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$48.0 million (Year 2017: approximately 13.6
million) during the Year in order to increase its production capacity.
Details of such acquisitions and other movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company has not issued any shares or
debentures.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to its shareholders were approximately HK$634.1
million (Year 2017: approximately HK$648.5 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 308.
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DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

(alternate Director: Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-laws”), Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. LAl
Sai Wo, Ricky will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “2019 AGM") of the Company. Being eligible, each of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”)
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Percentage of
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ordinary  of the Company

Name of director Capacity Shares held  {EZARATE&#1T
EENA 514 FEEBEREE BAF DL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Founder of a discretionary trust who 39,872,000
can influence how the trustee
exercises his discretion (Note)
s lht AR EITATERNBESN
ZREEEMBIMA (i)
Beneficial owner 1,210,000
E=BEAA
41,082,000 16.20%
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner 700,000 0.28%
BERELE E=EAA
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 8,000 0.01%
REHELT E=EAA
Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner 100,000 0.04%
BB Em#EE A

Note: These Shares were held by CNA Company Limited (“CNA")
which in turn is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2018, CNA beneficially owned deferred
non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the
Company:

Name of subsidiary

ESRKRGO HERORESF
2R (&)

(i) REBEIEROZFE

Bz N\F+_H=+—H
IF CNAB =B ARB T E
N2 ERERELRR

Number of deferred
non-voting shares held

MEAREHE BFEEREEELZREA
New Box Mini Storage Limited 2
hREIMEBR AR

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited 100
RREIR (R ED) ARA A

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited 3,000
P REIRIBR A A

Profit Link Investment Limited 2
RPRIREEEBRAA]

The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited 9,500

R A EN I B R 2 7]

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

CNA is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie and the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in Hong
Kong. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is deemed to be interested in all
the deferred non-voting shares owned by CNA in the above
subsidiaries of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, no Directors nor chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
at 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of every
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long Positions

FERR

BHE-_Z-/\F+ZA=+—HI &

AL (RRBZEEHRIT

KA B BR

SN RARBIRIRE 7 M B 51155336
RATIFE 2 & h Fracsk 2 i &

MR ZERIORRIAT
"R

Percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares held HARRATE BT
KRR E B &% BEERERHA RAET DL
CNA' Beneficial owner 39,872,000 15.72%
EnEAA
Fiducia Suisse SA Trustee 39,872,000 15.72%
ZEEA
David Henry Christopher Hill Interest in a controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.72%
RIEHDEE 2
Rebecca Ann Hill? Interest of spouse 39,872,0007 15.72%
[
Notes: Bt
1. CNA is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary 1. CNAH Preserve Capital Trust ( —JEMH &% 5=
trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the beneficiaries of which AR 2 e EETE EXRABREE
include a family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable EBEE—EBRERER—EREBKL
institution set up in Hong Kong. Fiducia Suisse SA, which is wholly- MZEE W) BB - Fiducia Suisse SA
owned by Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill, is the trustee of Preserve (FDavid Henry Christopher HillZt £ 2 &
Capital Trust. A ) A Preserve Capital Trustf) = 5EA ©
2. These 39,872,000 Shares duplicate with those held by CNA. 2. $%539,872,000/% f& 17 HE FHCNARE B 2 [A
—HEAR S ©
3. Spouse of Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill. 3. David Henry Christopher Hill %t 4 2 B2 & °

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who had any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as at 31 December 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commenced on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants to take up the options:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(0) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the offer may
be made to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the aggregate number of issued Shares at the day on which the
Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 10,193,545 Shares
(restated to reflect the share consolidation effected on 5 April 2016),
representing approximately 4.02% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this Directors’ Report. The maximum number of Shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of aggregate
number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.
Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is a grantee of the options).
Where any grant of options would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associate in excess of 0.1% of the
aggregate number of issued Shares and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of grant, in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant, such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for grant of the option.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target
and no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in
relation to an option that has not been exercised.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. There was no outstanding
share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2018
and 31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either any directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements,
and the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and which was subsisting as at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group has engaged in certain connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions which are subject
to annual reporting requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of these transactions are set out below:

Connected Transactions

Software Products Development and Software Technical
Service

On 1 May 2018, F 2 REHE XY BR A G, a company
incorporated in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Zhongxing Haotian"”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a software products development contract
with Takara Gaming Solutions Limited (“Takara Gaming”), pursuant to
which Zhongxing Haotian was engaged by Takara Gaming to develop
certain software products and provide technical training and support
for Takara Gaming at a fixed monthly fee of RMB175,000. The term
of the software products development contract is from 1 May 2018 to
31 December 2018. The total service fees payable by Takara Gaming
for the Year amounted to HK$1,653,088.

On 31 July 2018, Zhongxing Haotian (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into the software technical service contract
with ERBABEEE ORI BR AT, a company incorporated
in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Takara Gaming (”Baojia
Haotian”), pursuant to which Zhongxing Haotian shall provide
technical consultancy service relating to multimedia application
software to Baojia Haotian at a fixed monthly fee of RMB550,000.
The term of the Software Technical Service Contract is from 1 August
2018 to 31 December 2018. The total service fees payable by Baojia
Haotian for the Year amounted to HK$3,042,082.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Connected Transactions (Continued)

Software Products Development and Software Technical
Service (Continued)

The entire equity interest in Baojia Haotian is held by Takara Gaming,
and approximately 73.61% of the entire issued share capital of Takara
Gaming is held indirectly by Anchor Kapital Limited, a company
which is wholly-owned by the trustee of a discretionary trust of
which the immediate family member(s) of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (an
executive Director and the chairman of the Company) is/are one of
the discretionary objects. As such, Takara Gaming and Baojia Haotian
are regarded as connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Loan arrangement

On 27 August 2018, Grand Prospects (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) together with Free Harbour Limited (“Free Harbour")
and 11 other co-lenders entered into a loan agreement with an
independent borrower and guarantors, pursuant to which the lenders
agreed to grant to the borrower a loan in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$380 million for a term of 12 months, bearing interest
at the prime rate plus 8.05% per annum (i.e. 13.3% per annum) for
the 1st month to the 5th month and at the prime rate plus 6.25% per
annum (i.e. 11.5% per annum) for the 6th month to the 12th month.
The principal amount contributed by Grand Prospects and Free
Harbour to the loan is HK$5 million and HK$15 million respectively.
Also on 27 August 2018, the lenders entered into a memorandum of
cooperation which governs the rights and obligations among them in
respect of the loan.

A family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (an executive Director and
the chairman of the Company) is the sole ultimate beneficial owner
of Free Harbour. As such, Free Harbour is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

(%)
HEXS (&)

%ﬁ/ﬁéﬁ%?ﬁ&é}i’#ﬁﬁffﬂﬁﬁ
-

B 5K 2 B0 A B Takara Gaming$:¥
A > MTakara Gaming% &B 2 3% 17 I AR Fh
#973.61%F Anchor Kapital Limitedf #
BE ZArHBa—BA2EEENETA
PR BRBTE (RRRWMITES
REIRNERREXB I ZEERET
HRoz— EHit BIE L™ Takara
Gaming B 8 AR BN A BRI E
At

BEMZH

R-ZE-NFENA-Z+EH EHR(K
NAIZEBMBAR ERBEFREA
A ([BED ENMBHEMERERA ) H
BUERARERAGTLER H®E B
I ZEEFARBBEREBERABRHZE
X K4 48 % 5380,000,000% 7T 0 A HA
NREA BHE—EAZFAEALRRE
BF = 1 B88.05F (BIFE R =X A13.3
B)stB UEkAEANEAZE+
RE&EREFNEINF 86.25E (BIFF
EEBNSE)FER -ERRBEBEHZEN
& 2 A% 55 5l A&5,000,000% 7T &
15,000,000/ T c BN R =ZE— \FEN
AZ+tH ZEERAILEERS
B HBRZEERARZE R ZEF
N &7 o

ARBMITESRERFERBEEZ —
PAREKRBREEZE—SREDRHEAR
A BIRE ETRA - BERARNRAGEZH
BALe

Neway Group Holdings Limited £ KMz R BR D 7
Annual Report 2018 F



Directors’ Report

EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions
Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

The Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Supreme Cycle Inc. (“Supreme Cycle”) on 30 November 2016.
The principal activities of Supreme Cycle are investment holding
and property investment and its principal assets are units 21, 22,
23, 41 and 77 of 1/F and the whole of 3/F, Hop Yick Commercial
Centre (Phase 1), No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long, New Territories,
Hong Kong (the “Yuen Long Properties”). Pursuant to the tenancy
agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) dated 16 March 2016 entered
into between Supreme Cycle as landlord and Well Dragon Limited
("Well Dragon”) as tenant, the Yuen Long Properties have been
leased to Well Dragon for an initial term of three years from 16 March
2016 to 15 March 2019. Since Well Dragon is wholly-owned by a
trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one
of the discretionary objects, Well Dragon is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules and the transaction contemplated
under the Tenancy Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules upon completion
of the acquisition of Supreme Cycle on 30 November 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong
(Continued)

Principal terms

The terms of the Tenancy Agreement were determined after arm'’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto. The principal terms
of the Tenancy Agreement are set out below:

Use: Operation of a karaoke outlet or related business
ancillary to karaoke operations conducted by Well
Dragon and its affiliated companies.

Term: An initial fixed term of three years commenced from
16 March 2016 and ending on 15 March 2019 (both
days inclusive) (the “Initial Term”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Tenancy
Agreement, Well Dragon has an option to renew
the tenancy for a further term of three years from
the expiration of the Initial Term (the “First Renewal
Term”) by giving Supreme Cycle prior written notice
not less than six months before the expiration of the
Initial Term.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the tenancy
agreement for the First Renewal Term, Well Dragon
has an option to renew the tenancy for a further
term of three years from the expiration of the First
Renewal Term (the “Second Renewal Term") by giving
Supreme Cycle prior written notice not less than six
months before the expiration of the First Renewal
Term.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

(Continued)

Principal terms (Continued)

Rent:

For the Initial Term, a monthly rent of HK$370,000
exclusive of rates, government rent, management fee
and air-conditioning expense.

For the First Renewal Term, a monthly rent as agreed
by Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon and in any event
the increase of monthly rent shall be within a range
of 0% to 10% of the monthly rent of the Initial Term.

For the Second Renewal Term, a prevailing market
rent to be agreed by Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon
and in the absence of agreement, to be determined
by an independent surveyor nominated by the
president of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The monthly rent under the Tenancy Agreement was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties thereto with reference to the prevailing
market rents in the same district.

During the Year, the rental income charged by the
Group to Well Dragon was HK$4,440,000 (Year
2017: HK$4,440,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong
(Continued)

Annual caps
The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy

Agreement are set out below:

For the year

(&)
FERERS (&)

REEHEHHAYH (&)
FEER

REHVEBRBMETIRINFE LR
o

Annual Caps

ended/ending 31 December amount
BE+t-A=+—HLEE FELRSE

(HK$)

(A7)
2016 —ZE-RF 3,515,000
2017 —E—+F 4,440,000
2018 —E-NF 4,440,000
2019 —E-NF 4,791,500
2020 —E-TF 4,884,000
2021 T4 4,884,000
2022 —E-= 5,270,650
2023 —EC-=F 5,372,400
2024 T F 5,372,400
2025 —E-RF 1,119,250

The above annual caps were determined based on the rental income
receivable by Supreme Cycle from Well Dragon under the Tenancy
Agreement taking into account the maximum 10% increment of
the monthly rent for the First Renewal Term as agreed under the
Tenancy Agreement and a further 10% increment of the monthly rent
estimated for the Second Renewal Term.

Details of the above transaction have been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 April 2016 and 30
November 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 20 July 2016.

The Company has followed the policies and guidelines when
determining the prices and terms of the continuing connected
transactions.

It FE FIR T E M Supreme CycleiR i
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the Tenancy Agreement and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditors of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditors have reported to the Board
that:

(i) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to external auditors’ attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

(iii) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreement; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
external auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps disclosed in
the relevant announcements of the Company in respect of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.
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Directors’ Report
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is determined
by the management of the Group with reference to the market
conditions and qualifications of the employees. The reward packages
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group's performance.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual duties and responsibilities and performance and
market practice and conditions.

Both Ms. NG Wai Chi and Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas, the senior
management of the Company received an emolument which falls
within the band of HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 for the Year.

The Share Option Scheme as set out on pages 64 to 66 above was
also adopted by the Company as a long-term incentive or rewards for
the staff’s contribution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the Year, the Company applied the principles of and
complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save for certain
deviations. Details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
during the Year are set out in Corporate Governance Report on pages
32 to 52.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this Directors’ Report, an
indemnity provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the date of this Directors’ Report, at least 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations for charitable or other purposes totalling
HK$575,000 for the Year (Year 2017: HK$192,000).

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to identify
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 80 to 116 for further
information on the work done and efforts made by the Company on
environmental protection and other aspects for sustainable growth
and development of the business of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial performance, operating results, business operation
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out
below. However, there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below, which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could become material in the future.
The management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these
risks, and where appropriate, will monitor these risks closely and adopt
any necessary risk mitigation measures. In respect of the details of the
risk management system and internal audit function of the Company,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” on pages 46 to 48.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018

EHRBRERE

ERARBI A ARAESZERREES
FIRZE RAZEEERE B2 &E
ERAUTEE RAFERARZLF
BEBEITRMZ225% °

B

RAFE AEBERERZREZSEME AT
VERY B R 4258 /5575,0008 T ( —E—+
FZ:192,000/87T) °

HEEERRERE

AEBENEMRRERMRER XY
AREER - AEENHREAENT
ATE BHYERERAREBAR
M F BB R B #)BE IR MR R & -
BRARBRRBRENANEEEHA
FER R N EROEAMTEMENTE
N2 F2HFEEEFI6EME 2
RE HEREABRENE—T THF

I o

FTERRRAHBEE

AEBNPBRIR  KEXE XHKEE
KB RAIRE X Z TR R\ N T BB = Ay
TE - AKEEHNEERRKLTH
BRERHEN TX A B TXARE
S IR RE R AR B T AASN - IR
WAEARE BLA] B E AR E bR R
RABRAEEZ - AAREREEHE®
MM ER YRR EERETEE
Z 5 AR - IR AT B [ B 4 R
Bt o B AN~ B AR E IR R A K A B
BB ZFIS F2HFIEEFE48
BERRREENMARMERE] &8



Directors’ Report

EEERE

Business Risk

The Group currently has seven operating segments in various
industries and each operating segment has its specific business risks.
For the Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading Business,
the Group is subject to intense competition in terms of product
prices and production costs, and is also affected by seasonal factors
prevailing in the countries of targeted and existing customers. For
the Lending Business, the collectability of outstanding loans and
the customer network of the Group are both affecting the financial
performance of the segment. The Music and Entertainment Business
may be affected by the economic environment of Hong Kong and
the PRC as it will have impact on the consumption behaviors of both
individual and corporate customers. With respect to the Property
Business, alternatives can be found in the respective location of
the Group’s premises and thus the rentals of its units offered to
customers are subject to fierce market competition. To maintain the
competitiveness of the Group, the management of the Company
will meet regularly with the head of the respective business units to
update the business environment.

Environmental Risk

The Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged to comply
with a variety of environment protection laws and regulations on the
discharge and disposal of waste materials, water and gas imposed by
relevant governmental bodies in the PRC. These law and regulations
govern the disposal of these wastes and impose fines and penalties
for serious violation of environmental requirements, and any non-
compliance may jeopardise the operating licences of the Group's
subsidiaries engaged in the Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Moreover, environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are subject to change from time to time. It may be impracticable
for the Group to continuously quantify the costs of complying with
such laws and regulations, and any further change may also lead
to a substantial increase in the operating costs of the Group. In this
regard, the management of the Company regularly reviews adherence
to relevant environmental laws and regulations with the head of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business.
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Market Price Risk

The Group’s Securities Trading Business is exposed to the risk of
decreasing fair values of equity securities as a result of the volatile
market changes. The management of the Company together with
the Investment Management Committee of the Board monitor
the changes of respective securities’ prices and may change the
investment portfolio held and investment strategy whenever
necessary.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out both in Hong Kong and the
PRC and are regulated by their laws and regulations accordingly. In
particular, the Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged
to comply with a variety of environmental protection laws and
regulations on the discharge of waste, water and pollutants and the
labour law in the PRC. While any non-compliance may attract fines
and penalties and jeopardise the operating licenses of the Group,
the imposition of more stringent regulations may also increase the
operating costs of the business segment. For instance, the increased
minimum wage in Shenzhen imposed by the PRC government during
the Year has led to an increase in staff costs of the Group. To manage
such increment, headcounts have been reduced and old machines
have been replaced to maintain the staff cost to sales ratio of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business for the Year.

During the Year and up to date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 80 to
116.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 9.0% (Year
2017: approximately 11.5%) of total purchases for the Year while
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 24.4%
(Year 2017: approximately 27.4%) of total purchases for the Year.

The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 8.4%
(Year 2017: approximately 8.0%) of total revenue for the Year while
the Group's five largest customers were accounted for 27.4% (Year
2017: approximately 26.8%) of total revenue for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares)
had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
and five largest suppliers.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2019 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at
the 2019 AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R 8 kERKRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
of Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), presenting the environmental and social
impacts of its business activities during the Year ended 31 December
2018, and its performance in measuring and managing these
sustainability aspects during the Year.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of this report. To the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report
addresses all relevant material issues and fairly presents the ESG
performance of the Group. The Board of Directors confirms that it has
reviewed and approved this ESG Report.

Reporting Boundary and Scope

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules,
focusing on environmental and social performance of business of
the manufacturing and sales of printing products, being the largest
business segment of the Group in terms of its contribution to the
revenue for the Year.

The boundary of this ESG Report encompasses the ESG performance
of (1) Chung Tai Printing (International) Company Limited, (2) its
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely & 24 KEIF ORI ER QD
Al (unofficial English translation being Neway Chung Tai Printing
(Shenzhen) Company Limited); and (3) 88y Elfl CRII) AR A A
(unofficial English translation being Kam Hon Printing (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) (“Kam Hon Printing”). They are the three principal
subsidiaries of the Group’s business of the manufacturing and sales
of printing products. For governance section, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 52 of this Annual
Report.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018

BARA®E

AR A Neway Group Holdings Limited
FEEEZERARARY ([AAR] &
REMBAR KB AEE])E=1H
RIS g RERNRE  2IEE=ZT
—N\F+ZA=+—HLVBFEEH
EERHREREENTE URRAF
EEGEMERAFEERZBAIEN
= e

EEENTEERRAREERNE
T-BEMM AR - HERERRS
BMEMAEHBERZE L RAMET
AEENRR HENEARR -EFE

ROBEHALBEBARE HELEA
W

BREEAREE

AREBE -HE8RERBEHRE TR
A8 — +EE GRIT -8 RER
WEE) MER SHREEHRE®S
HERHEER (UAFEHAEEY
Wa BRI EAAEENRAEK D)
MIRFE ML ERIR -

ARE HEREABRESNHEEAE
B (M XER (B AR AR QK
2EMBRRAFTEFRKER CRINDE
RAE: RGOBHEIR CRIDBRA
A (MR )RR e REAR
B o % =R B SRR B EN 2 an B3
FHEEBHNEZMNB AR -BHRER
MR BLHEANFRENZAEFEA
HEEERMRE

* ERE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HE8kERKRE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Effective ESG management can be translated into operating efficiency,
improved compliance, cost reduction and a better corporate image.
The Group has set up internal policies, management systems
and quantifiable targets to drive continuous improvements in its
performance on the ESG front.

As a manufacturer principally engaging in production of paper goods,
the Group understands its responsibility to ensure environmental and
resources management while producing high-quality products for its
customers. Spearheaded by the senior vice president, the sustainability
agenda of the Group is driven towards environmental and social
stewardship, overseen collectively by the top management and five
executive committees as illustrated in the chart below.

Senior Vice President

=R B

Management
Representatives

BEERE

RRE HEREREERE

BRMH RS T\i@&ﬁ/ﬁé’ﬁﬂ%{tﬁi
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BRELRT HEPEHERE HERE
BN EFERERR -

ER— T ELEEREEMORER -
AEBEREEETRRRELERE
B ANARFAERLEER Eois
MEEET AEENAFEERZERE
HERHNEBRRERMEZEN ST ME
WM TREL AESREREENRAME
MITE B/ MEEREEER-

Labour Executive
Committee
BI#HTEE/ A

Health and Safety
Executive Committee

REZE2HITERE/ M

Committee
RIBITE B/MA

Environment Executive

Ethics Executive
Committee
BEHNTEE/E

Management Systems
Executive Committee

EEBRNTRE/ M

The Management Systems Executive Committee (“MSEC")
coordinates efforts of every department of the Group to regularly
carry out risk assessments and formulate control measures with
reference to the assessment results. The MSEC also sets social
responsibility targets and develops corresponding action plans to
achieve them. The progress is monitored and reviewed by the MSEC
every year to ensure progressive improvements towards the targets.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT HhEzHE

The Group understands that stakeholder engagement is vital to NEBRFAOEMDEHNXEYEHPRE
identifying the risks and opportunities associated with the ESG. The e LEREERE B TEEE.
Group engages with stakeholders through a range of channels, REBFZETREBEHEEMHEER &
identifying emerging issues of concern and act to respond to them. RS AR EE T L EEE o
The table below shows the communication channels that the TREVWAEFHEZHENBREENL
Group uses for engagement with stakeholders and the issues that HHOENBTEEIE-

stakeholders are concerned about.

Our Stakeholders

EMNEDE
Customers Employees Community Suppliers Government Investors
zF E& it HER B REE
Issues of Concern
BXEE
o Customer satisfaction e  Training and e Environmental o Third party risk e legitimacy of service ¢  Corporate
e Data privacy development protection management and business ethics governance
o XPWRERE ¢ Remuneration o Contributiontothe o  F=FREKRER o Employee protection ¢ Business operations
o HER *  Occupational health community o Tax compliance o Information
and safety o RHERE o REBAELEREEE disclosure

o BIIRER o HHEHNEH = o BEER

o o EERE o EERE

o BERRRZZ o BiBER o BHEE

Communication Channels
BRERE
o Company website o Staff meetings e Compliance with o Website for ¢ Compliance with e Annual reports and
o Feedback by phone ¢ Annual appraisals applicable laws and prospective suppliers applicable laws and interim reports
o Formal process for o EIgH regulations o Responses to supplier regulations e (Corporate
handling complaints ¢ FEEE o Support charitable inquiries o BTEREEER communications and

o KRARM institutions o BEMHEREL press releases
o BEREER o BETBREEER o DEHEREHR o FREFHFE
o RERFHERRF o XHEEER o BEBARFER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to measuring, managing and minimising
our environmental impact by implementing an environmental
management system in accordance with international standards.

Environmental Management

The management of the Group has the overall responsibility of
assuring that the environmental management system requirements
are incorporated into the Group’s business processes and that
required resources are allocated to support the implementation of
the management system. It is also responsible for reviewing and
ensuring compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations
in the PRC, including but not limited to the Environmental Protection
Law, Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy and Law of the PRC on
Promoting Clean Production.

The Environmental Executive Committee is appointed by the Group
to periodically identify potential environmental impacts arising from
the Group's operations through site inspections and reviewing
documents. Through regularly reviewing performance objectives and
management plans in accordance with the established guidelines, the
Group ensures that the ISO 14001:2015 certified management system
is always up-to-date, applicable and effective.

Environmental Factors Management

To better manage the environmental factors associated with the
Group’s operations, an Environmental Factors Management Manual
which specifies the procedure to identify, evaluate, record, control
and re-access the environmental factors is established. This process
enables the Group to develop corrective action plans in case of an
environmental emergency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Management (Continued)

RIRRE (&)
REEHE (&)

e  Consider impact on the environment of all business activities

ERMERGEBHRANTE

Identify
=%z

FIRAREESRERAJEELNRERZREERE

e List the environmental factors and potential hazards that may arise from the Group’s activities or products

e Conduct site inspections
HEITE RS

HiAREER T RAFIETER

EECHIER/EENEERRERERENTEER

e Conduct interviews with relevant operational staff and departments

e Determine the materiality of the identified factors/ hazards and the level of their impacts on the environment

R EREER—BR | B8 H B MIREE R

Re:
£k

lead to environmental accidents)

e Record the newly identified environmental factors in the “List of Environmental Factors”
e Classify the environmental factors into Group A (emissions), B (resources consumption and waste) and C (potential hazards that may

HRFERZDERAR FEp) B (BIREFEREREN) R CA (RIRES| RRRFEERNEEEHE)

|
Evaluate
BT
rd
l

management and evaluation of each material factor

Group A and C are considered as material environmental factors. The Group sets up procedures, indicators and targets for the

AERCEMBREERERR - ASEREERTETHEEARRGERF EEREF
e For Group B, the Group adopts a grading system to control the resources consumption pattern and avoid over-consumption

ANEE ABAATR AR ARSI E - AR BB FUHFEAE = K e B R HFE

Control ¢
2=

°
7

The environmental factors are reassessed upon change in laws and regulations, introduction of new technology and measures,
substantial change in operational procedures, and occurrence of severe environmental incidents

EREDRBPIZE R RERNSIA BERFNEAZY RBEERBEERNE LR ST EREEER

Environmental Target Setting

To better manage the Group’s material environmental factors and
its performance on those aspects, the Group has set quantifiable
targets for 2018 covering emissions control, waste management and
resources conservation, etc.

Among the objectives set for the Year, the Group has attained 100%
achievement rate in six aspects, namely wastewater discharge,
stationary source emissions, mobile source emissions, noise,
hazardous waste and Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) consumption. The
Group will continue to improve operating efficiency, aiming to achieve
target in all facets.

The table below shows the Group’s progress towards the
environmental targets set for the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERHBSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIFIRE ()
Environmental Management (Continued) BEEE (8)
Environmental Target Setting (Continued) RURIEEHIZ (&)

Target of the Year Status

FEBR AR

Paper Consumption

o,
D A5 H 7 ac:?eéed
Consuming not more than 4 pieces of paper per thousand press pile boards of production units i
BTHRAEESMUHBERETHBBER -

PVC Consumption

()
BECHEFRE ac1h0ig\{°ed
<_> Reducing the purchase of PVC by more than 10% from the previous year i

BERALKNBER L —FRLBEBRI0%

Electricity Consumption
EhEFE 79%
Consuming not more than 30 kWh of electricity per thousand press pile boards of production achieved
units EE
BTEOREEEMCHEEETHIBI0TRF

Water Consumption

units EZiZ
ST ENRIAEE BN M FEKE T HEB0.230E

Stationary Source Emissions

EIRBEK ac1h0ig:IA:ad
Total Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) emitted fewer or equal to 120.0mg/m? s iE
ERUAERLECEMERBEE VPRI ENTT FK12002% -

Mobile Source Emissions

K ERHFE 69%
‘ Consuming not more than 0.23 tonnes of water per thousand press pile boards of production achieved

o,
= B BRI ac1h0i(e)\{°ed
@‘;' Conduct annual test for vehicle exhaust gas ey
BEETERERG -
Wastewater Discharge
BE K BE B
Parameters of discharged wastewater: pH value 6-9; Suspended solids <60mg/L; 100%
QE': Chemical oxygen demand <90mg/L; Biochemical oxygen demand <20mg/L; achieved
) Ammonia nitrogen <10mg/L; Colorimetric value <40 EE
PR K KRB : BB (E6-9 : BFW<60= R/ AFA  tBFEE<90ZR A
EEFEE<202R,/ AFF: ARA<I0ZR, A BFE<40
%aéajr%d%ug} Waste 100%
& 100% transfer of hazardous waste acl‘%i;ed
100%HE B H EREEY -
gcéoslaise 100%
ﬂ Do not exceed 60 decibel (dB) during daytime and 50dB at night ac?zle;';ed

AT iE607 R - iR T HB:85090 B

\
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R 8 kERKRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Management (Continued)
Environmental Target Setting (Continued)

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Resources Conservation
Paper and Packaging Materials

Paper is a major materials used in printing operations. As a leading
market player, the Group understands its responsibility to manage
its paper consumption throughout the production process, from raw
materials to finished paper products, to minimise paper wastage
whenever practical. This year, the Group has set a target of using
not more than 4 pieces of paper per thousand press pile boards of
production units and attained an 85% achievement rate during the
Year.

In its operations, the Group uses paper certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) Chain of Custody Certification to
ensure that paper used in the production lines is from properly and
responsibly managed forests, avoiding over-deforestation or other
impacts that may lead to natural habitats destruction. In the office,
the Group has implemented green office practices such as double-
sided printing in order to minimise the use of paper. The Group’s
Administration Department monitors the paper consumption monthly
and investigates any abnormal consumption behavior.

The Group consumes paper, plastics and metals in finished products
packaging. During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
1,335 tonnes of paper, 584 tonnes of plastics and 2 tonnes of metals
for packaging. The Group aims to gradually fade out the use of PVC
and has targeted to reduce the purchase of PVC by more than 10%
from the previous year. It has attained a 100% achievement rate for
the Year. Besides, the Group also encouraged its clients to return
carton boxes for reuse purpose in order to reduce packaging materials
consumption.

Purchase of PVC (kg)
BEBREZHE(AT)
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20,000

10,000

REFRE (H)
REEE (&)
RYURBEE (HF)
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ANREEREREEREZMRRRER
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B EIR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)
Energy

The major sources of the Group’s energy consumption include petrol
for vehicles, purchased electricity for operation and natural gas
consumed for boilers during production. The following table and chart
show the energy consumption and consumption intensity during the
Year under review and in 2017.

RiERE ()

BRER (&)

BER
AEENEREREERAEHERN
o EE LB R E B iR iR
YE PR R AR R, - T 51 B R #5144
ERARZT—CEMERHEE R

Energy Consumption (gigajoules (GJ)) and
Intensity (GJ/ 000 HKD revenue)
REFHE(TRER)REE(TREER FTHBTKER)

80,000 0.15
0.13
0.12
60,000
0.1
40,000
59,995 63,729
0.05
20,000
0 0
2017 2018
—E—+F —E-N\F
B Energy consumption Energy intensity
BETRUERE LR E
Change%
18 %
Electricity kWh
BN T E B 14,355,885 15,385,896 +7.17%
Petrol Litres
B ~FH 36,410 43,234 +18.74%
Diesel Litres
g ~FH 29,576 0 -100%
Natural Gas cubic metre (m?)
RAR AV, N 156,537 178,818 +14.23%

The Group pursues higher energy performance by implementing
various conservation measures. It has replaced the traditional water-
intensive dispersers with energy efficient models, controlled the room
temperature and enhanced ventilation to reduce energy consumption
in daily operations. The non-invasive electromagnetic scale control
systems installed in 2017 have significantly improved the overall
efficiency of the boilers by reducing energy consumption up to 12%.

During the Year, the Group consumed 38.19 kWh of electricity per
thousand press pile boards of production units, and is striving towards
the target of 30 kWh in the next reporting cycle.

REBERBERRRE AEBEHITZHE
BRI FE e - RPIVABRBE B SR RN B =
BERERKHE - 1215 20| Ko I 52 78 A LA R
PHEEENRERER -E-F—tF
ZERIFFMAABMRKIRB R R SR
EZRITTIMENBRRBY G ERHEEER
M2 12% e

RAFE  AEBESTHRIEESMA
FAEE4/5A38.19F L& - WE AR T @
WEBHEDOTREHBIZ -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERELBHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)
Energy (Continued)

To raise the awareness of employees about energy conservation, the
Group provides training to selected employees from each department
on judicious use of resources. This training is a pre-requisite for
employees who handle energy facilities, before their jobs commence.

Water

During the Year, the Group’s total water consumption and water
intensity were approximately 168,961 tonnes and approximately 0.32
tonnes per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue, respectively. The
Group did not have any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose
during the Year.

RiERE (B

BRER (&)

BEIR (4%)
RRBEEUBOERNER AEH
175 5B P #0387 18 B AT IR B AL
BRI - £ 558 3% 48 TR SR ifs T {0
1B BB TE TR 4A BT % R ER AL 153 -

KER

RAFE  REBMBREKE RFEKE
B9 R4 5168,961M8 & & T 4 T W &
#90.32W8 - MAFE - NEBEFEES B A
KR E W AT P RE o

Water Consumption (tonne) and
Intensity (tonnes/ ‘000 HKD revenue)
FKE (W) RBE (W TRITKE)

200,000
0.34

150,000

100,000
156,081

50,000

0.32

0.4

0.3

0.2

168,961

0.1

0

2017 2018
—E—tF —E-N\F
B Water consumption Water intensity
FKE FKREBE

The Group’s water-saving initiatives include regularly inspecting and
maintaining water facilities to prevent water leakage, and periodically
tracking water usage to avoid excessive use. A target of consuming
not more than 0.23 tonnes of water per thousand press pile boards
of production units was established and during the Year, the Group
has attained a 69.4% achievement rate. The Group will redouble its
efforts in conserving water in operations and hope to make further
progress next year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HE8kERKRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control
Air Emissions

Air emissions from the Group’s operations comprise of mobile source
emissions from vehicles and stationary source emissions of VOCs
from the production process. Based on usage, the Group’s vehicles
generated 0.64 kg, 82.01 kg and 7.30 kg of sulphur dioxides (SOx),

RIRRE (&)
Bzl

ZERFEHY

AEENZERFRDBERERNVBZBIR
PR R e R ERR 7 B E R PR R B B
E%Mé%°@%$%@%zu# ZAS S
EoBEHRAFEEEL0ARTIHAIL

nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matters (PM) respectively during 8201 AT REALYRT IO T E T
the Year. FHK o
Air Emissions from Vehicles (kg)
ERERHER(DT)
100.00
7.09 7.30
75.00
50.00
80.72 82.01
25.00
0 1.01 0.64
2017
—E2—tF —T)N\F
B SOx NOx Particulate matters (PM)
[iE=Rla EE=rl a7 RIFRERL

To mitigate air emissions arising from vehicles, the Group maintains
its vehicles’ exhaust gas treatment systems annually. Some vehicles
adopt high energy-efficiency fuel which helps reduce friction and
increase dirt busting, eventually enhancing the engine performance.
The Group also tests vehicles’ exhaust gas annually to ensure strict
compliance with the Shenzhen Motor Vehicle Exhaust Emission
Standard during the Year.

VOCs are generated from the use of ink in the production processes.
To control and minimise VOCs emissions, the Group has installed an
exhaust gas treatment facility to remove VOCs before the stream is
discharged. This effectively reduces up to 90% of VOCs emissions.
During the Year, the level of VOCs emitted from the Group was
assured by a third party agency to meet the “Printing Industry Volatile
Organic Compounds Emission Limits” (DB/815-2010).

BB EWNEREN NEEEFY
CHBEWMNEREBERFETEE &
TEHDEASMERE ZERHE
BB R KR INgkR e R IRSED
HHMRE - AR E T EFRBUTENE
PR AERAFEENERIIEEE
RS ZE -

BERUE#LCEMAEERRESF AN
BEE BTGB LBEBIBE TG
tem AEEELTHBEREIERNE
REERANEREBEZEEERIEEW -BER
BREEBEAARERSEIOREEES
LM RAFEE NEBMEELS
BIEEMENERE = FZE  BRM
& CENRITT B E A #L A YR
&) (DB/815-2010) °
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R 8 kERKRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control (Continued)
GHG Emissions

The Group generates direct GHG through the burning of petrol and
natural gas by its vehicles and boilers. Indirect GHG emissions are
generated from purchased electricity. For the Year, the total GHG
emissions were 13,810.42 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO2e). Direct emissions (Scope I) amounted to 615.08 tCOze while
indirect emissions (Scope Il) amounted to 13,195.34 tCQOze.

GHG Emissions (tCO,e) and

RIERE (B
BEmE 4 (4])
BEREHK

N5 (B R B o K SRR R I8 A M R R AR
MEEEELRERE BEMNENAIM
EHBAERB AFRERERBEMN
W8 513,81042 —_ A {tiRE S - B
BEE (& E)3ZE615.0808 — ALk E
= HEEERE (FBEN)E13,195.340
—SEftiEE-

Intensity (tCO,e/ "000 HKD revenue)
BERBRIERRZBE(M_StBEE THITKE)

15,000

0.04

003 003

0.03
10,000

12,134 13,195 002
5,000

0.01

0 L B OO 0
2017 2018
—T—+tF —E-N\E
B Scope | Scope Il Emission intensity
&= = PEREmE

To minimise GHG emissions, the Group has used a cleaner fuel source
(natural gas) for its boilers operation since 2012. The non-invasive
electromagnetic scale control system installed in 2017 has greatly
increased energy efficiency of the boilers, contributing to a total
reduction of 53.63 tCOze of GHG emissions per year.

Effluent and Waste Management

In respect of effluent management, the Group ensures compliance
with the Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in Guangdong Province.
The Group has appointed an external party to conduct regular testing
of the discharged wastewater. During the Year, the total wastewater
discharged amounted to approximately 29,502.3 tonnes. The Group
has also obtained assurance from an external party regarding its
compliance with laws and regulations during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HE8kERKRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Effluent and Waste Management (Continued)

The Group has established a waste management procedure to classify
and handle waste generated in its operations. Each type of waste is
sorted into different categories, namely hazardous, non-hazardous,
recyclables and non-recyclables. Hazardous wastes are further
classified according to the National Hazardous Waste Inventory and
are collected and handled by external agencies. The Group keeps
records of all waste types identified and review each type of waste
annually or under circumstances when there are changes in the
production line, introduction of new products and facilities, etc.

During the Year, the Group’s operations generated 12.38 tonnes of
hazardous waste and recycled 203 tonnes of non-hazardous waste.
The hazardous waste was 100% transferred and handled, with no
leakage or contamination of the environment. With the installation
of the non-invasive electromagnetic scale control system, hydrochloric
acid waste was reduced by 8 tonnes per year. The Group strictly
observes all relevant laws and regulations, including the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste.

Hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and
Intensity (tonnes/ ‘000 HKD revenue)

EEBRRYELE (W) RZE M,/ TEITRER)

RERE (&
BKRBRYER (F)

AEBEGIEENERRERF HEEEE
HIBEYETT D RN RIE - B EEME D
BTFERR BRETERY BEEE
Y AR EREY MR B ERY - B
EREMRE (BREREYRE) &
—H 088 WHIMNBEEIKR S REHE -
SECREMECHBNEEDEL
VT EFERSHENEY NELER
BE S AFEMRERESERTET

a5t o

RARFE  REBHEEE12.38MH EEE
ZYREIW203EEEEEY - BEE
ZYE100%E% NEE KA RFH5
FIRIE - TR IFH AN BHIRKIEE R
Rtk HBEMNSTFHERERLDT
8ME - NEEE B IR BT (P REBEMS
RRBAE) SMEMRBHER KD
FERER -

Non-hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and
Intensity (tonnes/ ‘000 HKD revenue)

BREBREYELE (M) RZE M,/ TETRE)

15 0.025 800 2
002 002
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0015
400 1
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B Hazardous waste Hazardous waste intensity B Non-hazardous waste Non-hazardous intensity
BEEEY BERENEE EERERY) BERENEE

Noise Management

The Group realises that its machines may cause noise nuisance to
the surrounding environment. In view of this, the Group has set a
target that noise levels at locations where the Group has operations
do not exceed 60dB during daytime and 50dB at night. The Group
has obtained assurance an external party for compliance with the
Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary
(GB12348 — 2008) during the Year.

REEE
AREBMEBEEKESSELLERFE
RENRZ A AEEHTEEZ:
AAREEEEXEKNLE  BEEET
S iE6e0n B - A NS iB505 B o
REBCESITIRBHEAFEE
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RE HERELBHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Promote Green Products

The Group continually seeks opportunities
for promoting healthier and more
environmentally-considerate products to
its customers. The Group launches paper
products that are accredited with FSC, in
an effort to drive greener development
and operations of customers and
downstream industries. Kam Hon Printing,
one of the Group’s subsidiaries, targets
to gradually increase the proportion of
FSC products in its sales. It is expected to
reach a 5% increase year-on-year in the
next five years.

Practising the philosophy of “protecting
the forests, caring for the environment,
caring for the community and achieving
sustainable growth”, the Group is

ot b O

-

Neway Chung Tai Printing
(Shen Zhen) Company Limited

11D e g g i i g O
e Commmpory. # H U

o e s elalend i P e b
S st s s 1. Y 1] e R
e v —
By e i i et T

4 L st e

Tim e s e e
Kb e i 9 L LR

committed to protecting the forests and the animals living while
sustaining its printing products manufacturing business. The Group
adheres closely to the FSC Chain of Custody (COC) Management
Manual, which standardises implementation of COC in the Group’s
printing business to ensure that raw materials of the purchased
paper materials are from FSC-certified and protected forests and that
the wood products produced in its production process are strictly

controlled.
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RE HERERBHRE

OUR PEOPLE

The Group places great importance on employee management,
not only by cultivating a healthy and safe working culture, but also
protecting employees’ rights and respecting individuals.

Employee Profile

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,600 full-
time employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC, approximately
94% of whom were employed in the PRC. The proportion of male to
female employees is approximately 53%:47%, which is similar with
that of last year. Approximately 67% and 29% of its workforce aged
31-50 years and 30 years or below respectively. Regarding educational
profile, approximately 14% have undergraduate degree or above.
Approximately 23% of them are at managerial level.

Gender Profile

HRIER
47% 53%

B Male Female
S 7t

Educational Profile

BEER

14%

-‘

86%

B Undergraduate Below tertiary
degree or above education
B E KRBT

BT
REEFERZTEREEE FIEFRE

Rzz2a) TIEXIES)  EIREEB T
REEEA -

EBERR
HE_T—/\F+_A=+—8 &%
EREENTEAEL1,60082RKES
EHRHNMU%NTFREA - BEEEHEK
M1E B ML B4 B53% 47% @ BB EFE
& ° 315 2505% & 3055 sk LA N & 2 B
HEEEEN67T%N29% - EHE BN
FHE - #14% B A A EFRE - 7£F7
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Employee Distribution by Age

EENFRDH
4% ——————
- 29%
67%
M 30 or below 31-50 M over 50

30 A T 31mES05%  508A L

Functional Profile

BEeER

77%

B Managerial staff General staff
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RE HERELBHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Profile (Continued)

The turnover and new hire rates are approximately 83% and 78%
respectively for the Year. Such high turnover rate is mainly due to
relocation of one of our production plants in 2018. The proportion
of employee turnover and new hire by age and gender in 2018 are
presented in the graphs below.

Turnover and New Hire Rates
by Gender Category
REBIDENRAEERFTEBL R

81% 82%

ET (&)

EBEHER (&)

RAFE REREERFEEL XS5
#)E83%NT8%  MAEXESMNETER
AREAEBEEFP—RBRAERER_-F
—NEWRB —FT— NFILFHR LR
SomEB RN ERLA WO TEFRT
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Turnover and New Hire Rates

140%

by Age Category

RERDBHRK L ER HERL =R

22%

56% 56%

|
Male Female 30 or below 31-50 over 50
S i 30BREIA T 31 E508% 505
B Turnover Rate New Hire Rate B Turnover Rate New Hire Rate
PN TR E PN R =
Employment Practices EEER

The Group strictly complies with all labour laws and regulations in
both Hong Kong and the PRC related to labour standards, including
but not limited to the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.
The Group is certified with SA8000:2014 Social Accountability
Certification during the Year, demonstrating its efforts in social
performance, especially employees’ rights and welfare.

The Group protects human rights of its employees, including
employment right, dismissal right, working overtime right, etc. The
labour contracts and related policies are based on mutual agreements
between the employees and the Group. They can refuse to work
overtime or on holidays. For those who do so can receive allowance
under the national law. Employees will not be asked to work overtime
or at night and undertake work that involves high physical intensity
during pregnancy, labour and lactation.
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RE #HE8kERKRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employment Practices (Continued)

The Group respects each individual, creating a working atmosphere
free of discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts or motives
in all phases of employment on the grounds of race, social status,
nationality, religion, gender and other legally protected status are
strictly prohibited in the Group. Employees can report to the employee
representative of the labour union, senior managerial staff or the
Senior Vice President through the grievance redressal system. The
personnel without any conflict of interest are assigned for case
investigation. Immediate corrective measures are taken and retaliation
under any circumstances is not tolerated.

Regarding employee dismissal, financial compensation and injury/
disability subsidies are provided in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. In Hong Kong, subject to certain conditions under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong Kong),
employees employed under a continuous contract for not less than
five years are eligible for long service payment. The way of calculating
long service payment and the maximum entitlement of employees
accord to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong Kong).

Hiring child labour is strictly prohibited in the Group. Identification
documents of new-comers are checked to ensure they are aged 16
or above. If child labour is discovered, the Group schedules them for
body check-ups and stop them from working. Such cases are reported
to the local labour department. Those under 18 are not allowed to
work in positions involving hazardous and dangerous operations or in
night shifts.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to employment and labour practices. Nor did the Group
identify any incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.
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R 8 kERKRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development

The Group invests in training and development to keep its people
abreast of the latest developments in the industry. Training
programmes are developed by the Human Resources (HR)
Department.

Types of Training Programme

Induction & Pre-job Training

Transferee Training

B K% T A £ 8 TEREI

BT (&)

AR R
AEBERENFIRERE  REEREMH
BRAXABERZZHAE - FIIRIEH
ANEBIREBRE -

EIREES

On-the-job Training
TE R

e Company background and policies

N jibﬁ&ﬁﬁ(;ﬁ

e Operations of the new posts

BB R

e International standards

BIERIR %

The Group encourages internal knowledge transfer by experienced
and qualified employees. The department heads deliver courses
related to management skills and professional techniques. The
trainings on ISO 9001 Quality Management are conducted by
qualified professionals. The HR department is responsible for
monitoring the completion status of each business unit monthly.
The Group subsidises its employees to participate in qualified
external training if the internal programmes cannot satisfy with the
developmental needs.

In 2018, by both gender and position categories, approximately 96%
of the workforce participated in training programmes and received 11
hours of training on average.

Occupational Health and Safety

It is the Group’s responsibility to provide a safe and healthy
working environment to employees. Having a comprehensive safety
management system in place helps the Group effectively identify
occupational hazards and implement controls to safeguard the
well-being of its employees. The Group strictly complies with the
occupational health and safety laws and regulations in the PRC,
including but not limited to the Work Safety Law of the PRC, the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
and the Fire Prevention Law of the PRC.
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RE #HE8kERKRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

To manage safety related issues in operations, the Group has
established an Occupational Health and Safety System, which
comprises of representatives from different departments. The Senior
Vice President and the Management Representative are responsible
for approving the safety evaluation planning and making feasible
suggestions based on the current situation respectively.

Occupational Health and Safety System Structure

Senior Vice
President
SAREBE

BT (&)

BERERETE (&)
AEELBERENEESEE ALEE
SHTRBPANEERNBEREER
RERF -SRERHEREEBERES
RlaEReRe T RE LB EETE
SR UL A 1T 5 o

BERERZZRAGRE

Management
Representative
EERERE
Production Compliance Human Resources
Department Department Department
AR AL ANEREB

The Management Representative organises the annual occupational
safety management evaluation and sets up an Assessment Team.
The evaluation is carried out by well-trained internal inspectors on a
yearly basis. More frequent evaluations are arranged for special cases.
The responsible departments have to adopt corrective and preventive
measures if the assessment outcomes are unsatisfactory. The HR
department will then follow up the implementation of the corresponding
initiatives.

The Group’s production sites are certified with Occupational Health
and Safety Management System (OHSAS 18001:2007/GB/T 28001-
2011). The Group has established an Environmental and Occupational
Health and Safety Management Handbook with reference to the
international standard.

One of the Group's priorities in promoting health and safety in the
workplace is to identify occupational hazards at the early stage.
Conducting internal evaluation and safety training carried out by
the Production Department, Human Resources Department and
Compliance Department respectively. Other departments have to
cooperate with them to ensure the Group is in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.
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RE HERELBHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)

Occupational Health and Safety System Structure
(Continued)

When there are critical changes in the production activities or there
are new related laws and regulations, the Group evaluates the
potential occupational hazards and implement the corresponding
measures for minimising the risk. The Safety Officer is responsible for
establishing and implementing the Safety Planning for the Group. It
aims at safeguarding employees from occupational incidents. The key
highlights of the planning are listed as below:

ETI (&)
BERBERTZRHEEE (F)

EAEREREANNE SR
ERIMER ARBEEFAEERER
WA ARITHEREBARDER 22 E
TEERARKERIERTRE2MRE)
BORREETIRNELERBESI B
SMER WM TRAR:

Appoint qualified safety professionals to assess the current system

RERERLZEEXRABFRBRITRASR

Provide personal protective equipment, regular body check-ups and safety training

REEADEERE CHETIRRBRERZZE

ﬁ) -

Give extra care to juvenile workers, manual labours, pregnant and new mothers
BHINABEFSEEL BOSHET 2ELNESR

Organise drills on fire prevention and first-aids

RH BN RS RAE

(? :

There were 14 work-related incidents and the number of lost days
due to work injuries was 258 for 2018, which was higher than 2017
(5 incidents and 206 lost days). There were no work-related fatalities
reported. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to providing a safe working environment
and protection of employees from occupational hazards.
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RE HERERBHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)

Occupational Health and Safety System Structure
(Continued)

Safety Training

Safety training forms an integral part of the Group’s safety
management. Safety related issues are communicated both externally
and internally. The Procurement Department delivers occupational
health and safety policies to suppliers and contractors. The Group
organises safety training on a regular basis and posts updates of the
relevant internal policies promptly to employees.

Safety Training
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The HR department conducts safety training programmes for all
employees on the Group’s relevant policies regularly to ensure
awareness about occupational safety is enhanced. The managerial
staff have to understand the relevant laws and regulations before
monitoring the internal safety system. The Group arranges specific
training for employees working in positions with higher potential risks
and new-comers so that they understand safety requirements of their
respective positions and are well-prepared.

During the Year, the Group organised approximately a total of 2,399
person-times and 8,069 hours of safety training.
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RE HERELBHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Engagement

The Group strives to ensure work-life balance for its employees.
During the Year, the Group organised trips which helped strengthen
the bonding among them as well as their sense of belonging to the
Group.

The Group strives to fulfil its share of social responsibility amid the
pursuit of business growth. During the Year, the Group donated
approximately HK$575,000 in community investment, of which
approximately HK$112,000 donated to the employment security fund
for the disadvantaged group in the PRC supporting the development
and employment of the physically disadvantaged. The Group will
continue to implement the philosophy of “taking from society and
giving back to society”.
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RE HERERBHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group is dedicated to delivering consistent and quality products
and services to customers and collaborating with suppliers to create
win-win outcomes.

Product Responsibility

The Group has established an ISO 9001:2015 certified internal quality
management system. Led by the Senior Vice President, the system
covers three aspects, namely working environment, monitoring and
evaluation and knowledge, regulating the Group’s daily operations
for the purpose of providing quality products and services to its
customers.

Internal Quality Management System

Working Environment

TR BB R G

Maintain humidity at
production plants for
specific printing products
#3185 EN Rl 2
EREERENRE

Monitor and evaluate

the production process and
products with international

and national standards
RIBEI SN Bl NIRE R E ]
HEEERFRER

Provide a stable working
environment to employees to
guarantee productivity
aESRMBENTIFRERE
LUBREE D

A quality target is set annually for different departments, covering
approximately 50 items. The Quality Management Department is
responsible for collecting the related data on a monthly basis and
suggesting corresponding corrective measures on aspects for which
the targets are not met.

Monitoring and Evaluation

ZEER
AEBE ) A& R (R — 2 BB Z dn
RIRFS  WHEEER A (FEHEFmAAR -

EmEME

AEBEKZIAHEEERERG W&
ISO 9001:2015R %% ' = KA RHEE
MEHZSA=-—EEGRE BIEIIERE-
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BEE ARRFRERHEEER AR
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Knowledge

HIH

Incorporate both internal and
external knowledge
in the operations

EEENES NI RIRAE

Internal source:
past experience and

improvement results

RER  BECRRAEER

External source:
conferences, information
collected from customers and
suppliers and standards
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RE HERELBHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Internal Quality Management System (Continued)
Customer Satisfaction

Regular communications with customers is essential for maintaining
a high level of customer satisfaction. Before commencement of
production, the Group understands its customers’ environmental
requirements and applies the one with higher standards when
comparing with internal requirements. The Production Department
verifies the working procedures and materials before production
commences.

During the process, the Customer Service (CS) Department
communicates closely with customers if the semi-finished or final
products cannot meet their quality or environmental requirements.
The CS Department then requests the responsible departments to
reproduce the products and the quality assurance personnel carry out
sample quality checking.

The Group has developed a recall system for handling cases of
defective products. All recalled products are scrapped. Details of such
cases are recorded for future reference and the Group will take proper
corrective measures to prevent reoccurrence. In 2018, there were 21
complaints received and all were settled.

The Operations Department conducts surveys on a yearly basis to
assess customer satisfaction on the Group's products, services, quality
and timely delivery. The Group follows up to address areas with
unsatisfactory performance promptly.

Customer Communications during the Sales Process

During manufacturing

SUEHR

Before production commences

B3R & E Al

e Understand customers’
environmental requirement

BREFHRENER

below standards

»

o Verify the working procedures
and materials

BB TIRIZFr R

BTN EIRE T

AR LSRR
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e Reproduce the products
MERTEIR%E - QISEHEE

o Recall defective products

e Document the complaints
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RE #HE8kERKRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

There were 815 suppliers and sub-contractors of the Group in
2018, and almost all of them are located in the PRC. The Group has
formulated a comprehensive mechanism for selection and evaluation
of suppliers and sub-contractors.

Recognising the social and environmental impacts that may ensue
along the supply chain, the Group is committed to minimising
such risks in collaboration with its suppliers. When selecting
suppliers, the Group evaluates them based on criteria that include
social responsibility, chemical safety, security management, green
procurement and quality system assessment.

Supplier Assessment Criteria

Chemical
Safety
(=S

Social Security

Responsibility Management
HEEE ZhhER

ZEESR (&)
HEBER
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DERE BANDAETRE - AEBD
FTHE N HEREE LD BEN TS
| o

AEBABHERAESHTELIRE
WREE WBNEHEHSEEER
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European and US Standards B & 3= B1Z %
Sony Standard & /E1Z%E

Panasonic Standard A 12 %

Waste/rubbish classification &4,/ 57 3% 5 48
Emergency Plan fE &5t 2l

*  Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) #1#} % & 2 & &

e Security management system {R % & I2 & 4

e Control the process of storage and transportation of goods
BT BRI FIES

e Control the personnel in and out of factory A 83 ) T iz #l

Certification of ISO 9001 ISO 9001 FR#
Quality management measures 5% & I £ 5

e Prohibition of child labour, forced labour and prison labour
RIFERAET RHLTIRERST

o Safety Management % 2 & I2

The new suppliers and sub-contractors have to undergo the first
quality check of samples by the Quality Management Department.
An on-site evaluation is then carried out in order to become the
Group's qualified suppliers and sub-contractors. They are assessed
on their price competitiveness, timely delivery, technical support and
partnership with the Group monthly. For the main raw materials
suppliers and sub-contractors with lower risk, an on-site evaluation is
conducted every two years, while it is on a yearly basis for those with
higher risk.

The Quality Management Department engages with suppliers who
have unsatisfactory results and maintains close evaluation. If the
suppliers and sub-contractors do not make significant improvement
within an assigned period of time, the Group terminates the
cooperation relationship with them.
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R 8 kERKRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group has high expectations of its staff in terms of integrity and
honesty. In complying with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC and the Criminal Law of the PRC, all forms of corruption such as
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering are strictly prohibited
in the Group.

Anti-corruption standards have been incorporated in the Group's
policies and these are communicated to employees as well as external
stakeholders. Employees are strictly prohibited from using any of the
Group’s information to exchange for personal benefits or receiving
any forms of bribe from its business partners. In case of any monetary
or non-monetary gifts received in consideration of the relationship
with external parties that cannot be rejected, responsible persons
must report the case to the HR Department and return the concerned
gifts within a week.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism to allow
stakeholders to report suspected activities in a confidential manner.
Reported cases are subject to independent investigations and are
followed up properly. The concerned person may be terminated
if the cases are justified. Retaliation on the complainants is strictly
prohibited. The respective departments have to formulate advice on
improvement to prevent future incidents.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have a
significant impact to the Group.

Data Protection and Privacy

Data security is key to a trusting relationship between the Group
and its business partners. Data privacy policies are applicable to both
internal and external stakeholders. External parties, such as clients and
suppliers, are prohibited to visit confidential production areas without
being accompanied by staff, preventing leakage of products details
which have not yet been launched. For every order received, the
Group signs a confidentiality agreement with its clients. Responsible
person from every department designates to follow up the whole
production process.
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RE #HE8kERKRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)
Data Protection and Privacy (Continued)

Employees are subject to the Employee Code of Ethics which prohibits
them from disclosing or publishing any confidential documents of
the Group and the confidentiality obligation remains valid after
termination of services also. Confidential products are handled by
appointed personnel during the whole production process to protect
them from data leakage. Training in relation to data protection and
privacy is arranged by the HR department regularly to enhance their
awareness.

Intellectual Property Rights

As part of the Group’s ongoing efforts to stay ahead of market
trends, the Group continually allocates resources for innovation.
During the Year, the Group obtained 3 patents. The Group values
intellectual property rights and exercises stern control for protecting
intellectual properties of its own as well as those of other parties.
The customers, suppliers and other related parties of the Group can
only legally use the patents, trademarks, technologies and other
intellectual property rights owned by the Group with its authorisation.
The Group did not infringe any intellectual property rights during the
Year.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redressal.
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R -HERERRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY RIBREEHME

Unit 2018 2017
B —E-N\F —E—+F

Total Energy Consumption GJ
R HEER FREH 63,728.60 59,994.75
Energy consumption intensity GJ/HKD ('000)
BERERE FIEE B (F) 0.12 0.13
Electricity kWh
£ TR B 15,385,896.00 14,355,885.00
Natural gas m3
RAR AV N 178,818.00 156,537.14
Diesel litres
S nF 0.00 29,576.19
Petrol litres
Wi nF 43,234.56 36,410.39
Water Consumption tonnes
FEKE o 168,961.25 156,081.00
Water consumption intensity tonnes/HKD ('000)
EREE WE,/ T (F) 0.32 0.34
Packaging Material
LEYH
Paper tonnes
4R U7 1,335.18 9,511.84
Plastic tonnes

. BR i 584.18 553.62

Environment

B Metal tonnes
& B e 2.00 0.60
GHG Emissions
BERBEHEM
Scope I: direct carbon emissions tCO2e
E - BB W —StiE = 615.08 517.73
Scope Il: indirect carbon emissions tCO2e
[ - B M= afbiE 2 13,195.34 12,133.93
Total GHG emissions tCO2e
BERBHRRE W _S{tiREE 13,810.42 12,651.65
Total GHG emission intensity tCO2¢e/HKD ("000)
BRERBHEREERE W —EitirE s,

BT (F) 0.03 0.03

Air Pollutant
ZRI5EY
SOx kg
meaEltym N 0.64 1.01
NOx kg
Aey YN 82.01 80.72
PM kg
SBF AR AT 7.30 7.09
VOCs tonnes
BRUEERLEY 183 0.03 =
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R -HERERRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) REZEME (F)
Unit 2018 2017
B —E-N\F —E—tfF
Waste
BEY
Hazardous waste tonnes
BEREEY i 12.38 10.79
Hazardous waste intensity kg/HKD ('000)
BEEBEENTE AF/#T (F) 0.02 0.02
== Non-hazardous waste tonnes
RE mEREREY L 203.00 660.71
Non-hazardous waste intensity kg/HKD ('000)
BEBREYTE A/ #T (F) 0.39 1.44
Effluent tonnes
757K o 29,502.30 25,688.00
Effluent intensity tonnes/HKD (‘000)
EIKEE W (F) 0.06 0.06
Total Headcount
BTHAE 1,597 1,537
By Geographical Region
% i &
PRC
i no. of employees 1,498 1,460
Hong Kong BEAH
BB 99 77
By Age
& F iR
30 or Below
30BREA T 467 362
31-50 no. of employees
Workforce  IEPPRE S (VN 1,062 1,128
Demographics
CL PN T H Above 50
508 A £ 68 47
By Gender
&1 Rl
Male
Bl no. of employees 850 828
Female EE A
4 747 709
By Educational Background
RYBEES
Undergraduate degree or above
BRI A | no. of employees 218 122
Below tertiary education BEAR
KRBT 1,379 1,415
X
A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HERERRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RESEHME (&)

Unit 2018 2017
B —E-N\F —E—tfF

By Professional Profile

RERE

Management

EBAE no. of employees 364 286
General staff BEAH

—RB8T 1,233 1,251
Employee Turnover Rate

EERAL =

Total

k) 83% =
By Age

BRER

30 or Below

30BREA T 154% 177%
31-50

315 E505% 56% 44%
Above 50

5055 A £ 22% 66%

By Gender

&1 Rl
Workforce
Male

Demographics oy

84% =

B8N ABEE

Female

pegi3 82% -
Employee New Hire Rate

EEF(EMRL R

Total

#sa 78% -
By Age

1 F iR

30 or Below

30 A T 140% 154%
31-50

3158 2505% 56% 42%
Above 50

505% A £ 7% 9%
By Gender

&Rl

Male

Bt 81% 68%

Female
pegis 75% 67%
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RE HERERBHRE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RESEHME (&)

Unit 2018 2017
B —E-N\F —E—tfF

Percentage of employees trained

Training and XilEEB DL 96% -
plavalaaniEeie s Average training hours per person hour
e A TSR N 11.00 -
Work-related incident case
TEHEBER RE 14.00 5.00
Lost days due to work-related injury day
THEBEAIERR X 258 206
Clslenet o Work-related fatalities no. of employees
Safety TERBET AZ B8 AZ 0 0
BERZE Number of employees participating person-times
in safety training
DEZEIIESHE AR 2,399 2,947
Total safety training hour hour
2 B I AR R B B 8,069 3,581
Hours contributed to volunteer work hour
Community BERACENAE N - 1,600
[\[=ai0s - Donations HK$
HERE BHK BT 575,000 192,000

Neway Group Holdlngs L|m|ted "-PE%ET"“EE;FEZ‘—J .
/ Annual Report 2018 #




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HERER

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX

Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)
BRENESR

A. Environmental
A RE

Aspect A1:
Emissions
EHEA1:

BB

HE

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HEREREREESIER

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RIKE

FRARBIAZEREBYN KR LT AEREZSEEMHNE

i

(@ HEE: K
(b) BEFHEITABEAZENEBEERRR
H)E K o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
BREN HRYERKEEEREE
EEAL
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
BEEN where appropriate, intensity.
EEA1.2 BERBRHENE (UMETE) REE (WEA) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
BREEN appropriate, intensity.
BEA13 FELEEEEEYEAS (UEE) REE (Em) -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
BAEEM  where appropriate, intensity.
EBA14 FELAESEEYESE (AEE)REE (WEA) -
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
BREEN results achieved.
EEA1S HUREHERENERRAEKR-
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
BEEEM wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
E#8EA1.6  achieved.

HMEIEEEREZSEEMN L L REELESENRE

REFBRRR -
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BXPRE HERER

w5

Section/Remarks

B R

Environmental
Management
RIREIR

Emission Control —
Air Emissions

BERR I ) — Z= mEE R
Emission Control —
GHG Emissions

BERE ) — R = RS HE
e

Effluent and Waste
Management

VKR EEEYE R
Effluent and Waste
Management

yEIK R REE Y E IR
Emission Control

BEDIE I

Effluent and Waste
Management
K REEYER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)
BRERER

Aspect A2: Use of
Resources
fEEA2 :
ERER

Aspect A3: The
Environment and
Natural Resources
[EMEAS :
BRERAAER

(%)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BIARE HEREABREEIER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials.

—RIKE

BRERAEIR (BIER K REMEME) BBUE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in

BABEEM  total (kWh in '000s) and intensity.

BEA21  RREHSNERER RWEERERE UTETR
B i) REE -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREN BFEKEREE-

E1EA2.2

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
BAREN results achieved.
EBEA23 HEEREA MG B RATISKR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
BREEN water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
$£4ZA2.4  and results achieved.
il st SRERE R /KR P B (R AAT 8 - DA AR T vk R &t
B RPTISECR -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in
BEEEM tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
E#8A2.5  produced.
IR MFTABEMEEE (AT E) REEESBAG
= (@A) -
General Disclosure
Policies on minimizing the issuers’ significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

—RWE
BEREITAHRERARAERENEAZENREK -
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the

BREEN environment and natural resources and the actions

f5#2A3.1  taken to manage them.
HEBHRBERAARERNEATEREHFIE R
EHETENTE-

BXRE e RERRRIED

Section/Remarks

BEHE

Environmental
Management
RIREIE

Resources Conservation
— Energy
A EIR—BEIR

Resources Conservation
— Water

B E R —IKE IR
Resources Conservation
— Energy

B E IR —BEIR
Resources Conservation
— Water

BB R—KER

Resources Conservation
— Paper and Packaging
Materials

B EIR — R kB
M

Noise Management,
Promote Green
Products

REER HESEE
oo

Noise Management,
Promote Green
Products

BREEE HEREE

2o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERHBSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BMXMERE HtEREBRARIED
(#&)

B. Social

B. &

Aspect B1: General Disclosure Employment Practices
Employment Information on: BETH

[EHEB1 : (@) the policies; and

E & (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—REE
EABERRE BEREA TERE BH TEHE Zxk-
RO AR LA Be H At 155 38 Jo 48 F 9

(@ BER: R

(b) BFHETATEAXENHBERZRAD

B R o

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employee Profile
BEEEM  and geographical region. EEBR
#E#EB1.1 BRI EREEE  FAR RIS ES A -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employee Profile
B#&EM  geographical region. EEBR

EEB1.2 MR FicARI MRS S HEERKLL R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - HERERRE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BMRRE HERERRBIES
(#%&)

Key Performance HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

Indicators (KPIs) BRXMBE HEREABREEIIER B8 B

BRENER

Aspect B2: Health General Disclosure Occupational Health

and Safety Information on: and Safety

[EmEB2 : (@) the policies; and BxEmkis

BEHEZS (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

—RIKE
FRREZE2TIERERREREEEXBELREEN:
(@ B R
(b) ETHBETABEAZENHEBERZLRD
BE R o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Occupational Health
BREN ETEBEMET AR X and Safety
1EEB2.1 BEREIZE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health
BREN ATEEATIEEE and Safety
E#%B2.2 BERERZE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Occupational Health
BREN adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. and Safety
EEB2.3  HMAIRANBRERER 2EM AREERTRE BERRELZSE
BHEe
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Training and
Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development
Training duties at work. Description of training activities. HlkER
fEEB3 : —RE
BRERIEI BRRMEESRTIIEBRE MBI BR - il H3EE -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Training and
BREN employee category. Development
$E51EB3.1 BUFIREERMEISHZIEEA DL - Bl R E R
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Training and
BAREN gender and employee category. Development
EEB3.2 RKRUFIKEEERMES BREETKNXIFHE HIkER
g o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR HERERKSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BMRRE HERERRBIES
(%)

Key Performance HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

Indicators (KPIs) BRFBE LEREAREEIER B8 B

BRERER

Aspect B4: Labour General Disclosure Employment Practices

Standards Information on: EREER

[EHEBS : (@) the policies; and

ZITAEE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or forced labour.

—RIKE
BRANIEE T o4 Ta)
(@ BE: R
(b) BFHBETAGEAXENBEBERERRAD
B R
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Employment Practices
@AM to avoid child and forced labour. EREHR
EEB4.1 i RaHER S AN ERAR R ET R&HIET -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Employment Practices
BAEEM  when discovered. BETH
EEB42 HMERRERBAKERE @ISR Z K -
Aspect B5: Supply General Disclosure Supply Chain
Chain Management  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply Management
[EEBS5 : chain e E e
HEEER —RIKE
ERHESENREIMERARBUR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
BMBEN ImMEISSMEHENEE Management
1E1EB5.1 ik A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - HERERRE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BMRRE HERERRBIES
(#%&)

Key Performance HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

Indicators (KPIs) BRFBE LEREAREEIER B8 B

BRENER

Aspect B6: Product General Disclosure Product Responsibility

Responsibility Information on: EmEE

[ETHEB6 : (@) the policies; and

EmEE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RIKE

BRMRMERMBRBHNERELZS BS REMMEBEFEARHE

5 AR

(@ BE: K

(b) BFHBETAGEAXEZNBEBERERAD

B o

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Customer Satisfaction
BAMEM  received and how they are dealt with. BERMEE
E1EB6.2 EEHNEMIRBEIRFEHE ANEESE-

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Intellectual Property
BREEN protecting intellectual property rights. Protection

EEB6.3 MMM ENRENBEEABNDR - 1R P 0 25k 2 4

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Customer Satisfaction
BAEEN  procedures. EPREE

{51 B6.4 S ERTBEREMEWERT -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Data Protection and
BAREN policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Privacy

EEB6.5 HMUEBEEERNRERLEBEE ARMEENTRER ERRERILE

T3

Neway Group Holdings Limited £ KMz R BR D 7
Annual Report 2018 F



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR HERERKSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)
BRERER

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption
[EEB7 :

R&ES

Aspect BS:
Community
Investment
[EEBS :

(%)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BIARE HEREABREEIER

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RIKE

BRAIEBRER  $R - MFFROERER

(@ BE: R

(b) ETHBETABEAZENHEBERLRD

B R

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

BREN practices brought against the issuer or its employees

EEB7.1 during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERPAHBHITASHEERELEFENETH
ARMEBE RFAAER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

BEEN procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

EEB7.2 MM EHERRBRER  AREBRITRERG A

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take

into consideration the communities’ interests.

—RIKE

FRAUMHEL2HERTREEMELEFTENBRRAXKIDEER

IR F 5 B BUR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

BEE% FIEpHE-

1E#B8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
BEHEN AEFTIREMBAER-

1E#%B8.2

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MR GR 2 7
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BXRE e RERRRIED

Section/Remarks

BEHE

Anti-corruption
k&5

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption
K&

Employee Engagement
BT 40

ESEaS

Employee Engagement
B T4

EPaN

Employee Engagement
BT 46

ESPaN



Independent Auditor’s Report
B REN RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 305,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

=2

HNeway Group Holdings Limited
TPEKEEZERERAF KRR
(REFEZEFME T2 ERLA])
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A*(UTEEIERA]) RAKEBR
Al (ATHEIEEE]) B MR
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A=Z+—BEa B mREHE
ZAIEFENGEBER RAMEEEA
BR GERDEPRIGERENE
W& URGEMBHREMT 2EE2
SATBEBME-

HARR ZEHAVBHRRERER
BEFE R RMAE (BB B RELE
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E-NEF+ A=t BEEMEIR
oA MERBEZBLEFENGSY
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the inherent
level of complex and subjective
judgement and estimates
required in determining the fair
values.

The Group’'s investment
properties portfolio comprises
commercial and industrial
properties located in Hong Kong
and the PRC and is stated at fair
value of HK$239,199,410 as at
31 December 2018 with a fair
value gain of HK$10,942,146
recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

Our procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment
properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers and obtaining
an understanding of the
valuers’ scope of work and
their terms of engagement;

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B BT S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed

the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group’'s investment
properties are measured using
the fair value model based
on a valuation performed
by independent qualified
professional valuers. As
disclosed in notes 4 and 16
to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining
the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the
valuers have applied income
capitalisation approach or
direct comparison approach,
as appropriate, for respective
properties, which involve, inter-
alia, certain estimates, including
appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary income potential
and market transactions of
comparable properties, as
appropriate.

Evaluating the appropriateness
of the valuers’ valuation
approaches to assess if they
meet the requirements of
the HKFRSs and industry
norms;

Challenging the reasonableness
of the key assumptions
and appropriateness of
valuation models applied
based on available market
data and our knowledge of
the property industry and
whether the assumptions
and methodologies are
consistent with the bases
used in prior year; and

Assessing the reasonableness
of key inputs used in the
valuation, on a sample
basis, by checking to
the publicly available
information on market
transactions of comparable
properties, comparing rental
income, terms of existing
leases to the existing lease
summaries of the Group
and evaluating whether
capitalisation rates adopted
are comparable to the
market.
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SRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Net realisable value assessment of properties under

development for sale

We identified the net realisable
value assessment of properties
under development for sale as
a key audit matter because of
the management’s judgement
and estimate involved in the net
realisable value assessment for
the relevant project.

Included in the consolidated
statement of financial position
are the properties under
development for sale amounted
to HK$43,325,216 as at 31
December 2018, which is stated
at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

As set out in note 4 to
the consolidated financial
statements, management has
estimated the net realisable
value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development
for sale with reference to the
comparable market transactions
in similar locations.

Our procedures in relation to
evaluating the appropriateness of
the management’s net realisable
value assessment of properties
under development for sale
included:

e Discussing with management
to obtain an understanding
of the net realisable value
assessment;

e Evaluating the appropriateness
of the comparable market
transactions in similar
locations identified by the
management; and

e Obtaining legal opinion
on whether there is any
restrictions for the Group
to realise the properties
under development for sale
pursuant to the Updated
Freeze Order (as defined in
note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements).

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7

Annual Report 2018

FREETSEE (FE)

BRETSE

RAENBF MY E
REGEHETEE

HEERRPNEN TR FEFG

AMRREEERTY
ENUERFERER
B ER RANREE
HWT R ERHE Y
BIRE A R aHh o

@A%ﬂ#ﬂﬁ% &
R-E-NE+=A
Zt+-BRFEEES
11 %43,325,216/ 7T -
HT AR R o] 837 )%
BZBRIEETR-

IR A S MR M &
AFE ERERB2E
W”EEWTEKFW
5 thit BERHE
E%E¢%%WTK
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ°

AMBERFEERE

HEEZRTOEN

T“ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ
EHEFEE:

o HEBENH
PAT fRR] 23R %
[EEXE

o FHEEEERS
MIEANLER &
HETHERHZ
BEE: R

o 3 ESERE
FEHRES (T
ZREAMBR
KME22) 855
ERERYES
BeEAGELM
REEBVEEE
ﬁo



Independent Auditor’s Report
B REN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B REN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. CHAU Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEBREREMEEBRAREK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTES HKS$ HK$
iokz3 BT BT
Total revenue FEl g 592,625,942 515,533,643
Gross proceeds from sale of HERHEEEREY
held-for-trading investments Fri8 F B #a %8 39,230,890 118,243,982
631,856,832 633,777,625
Revenue Wz
Revenue from goods and services RKEEMERSZ
W sk 5 578,124,633 504,422,237
Rental income e A 7,304,238 6,500,175
Interest income from lending business KEWMEEKZ
F B WA 7,197,071 4,611,231
Total revenue Bl 592,625,942 515,533,643
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (456,216,282) (356,859,195)
Gross profit E7 136,409,660 158,674,448
Other interest income H i F 2 A 2,366,386 1,932,508
Other income H At g A 13,195,256 3,168,076
Selling and distribution expenses HE &MY (29,784,530) (26,041,840)
Administrative expenses THHAX (116,999,209) (123,099,454)
Other gains and losses Hib i zs R E 1B 7 (25,899,343) 40,167,450
Net (impairment losses) reversal of B oElmE N
impairment losses on trade EHEEY
receivables and contract assets (REEE)
B S 1 B [0 FE (11,402,625) 1,150,168
Finance costs BlE B AR 8 (3,098,378) (2,509,172)
Share of results of joint ventures A RN (7,518) (1,349,720)
(Loss) profit before taxation MR (E1E) & (35,220,301) 52,092,464
Taxation =18 10 (3,004,214) (4,142,567)
(Loss) profit for the year RE (FE1E) @ A 11 (38,224,515) 47,949,897
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEBRERkEMEERARREK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTE HKS$ HK$
k23 BT BT
Other comprehensive (expense) Hit2mE (X)) WA
income:
Item that may be reclassified R Ex EE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz ZIEE
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINET
translation of foreign operations FTELZIEN =% (32,468,608) 40,699,906
Items that will not be reclassified to BB IEE
profit or loss: BmlHE -
Surplus on transfer from property, B E - R MR
plant and equipment to investment [0
properties 2 B - 9,371,865
Deferred tax arising from transfer of B BEKERE
property, plant and equipment to EESIGEYE
investment properties PTEE ZIERERTE - (2,342,966)
Fair value loss on equity instruments BREMEEBRA
at fair value through other RN F(EHER
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") ([FBBEEMEEW
AL AFE
PIBR]) 2 IRARTA
ZRNFEEE (12,705,867) -
(45,174,475) 47,728,805
Total comprehensive (expense) income AE2HE (FX)
for the year WA 458 (83,398,990) 95,678,702
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LA~ A +EMG ARG
(BE)=A -
Owners of the Company RABHEE A (37,922,569) 48,145,604
Non-controlling interests eV = (301,946) (195,707)
(38,224,515) 47,949,897
Total comprehensive (expense) income INTATEERERE
for the year attributable to: (R ) WA #a%E
Owners of the Company KRAREE A (82,359,444) 94,849,265
Non-controlling interests IR = (1,039,546) 829,437
(83,398,990) 95,678,702
(Loss) earnings per share Fh (EE) &BF
Basic N 13 (14.95) HK centsi&ll 18.98 HK cents/& Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R T
At 31 December 2018
R—ZE—\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTES HKS$ HK$
bt BT BT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BER&E 14 69,187,841 125,412,446
Prepaid lease payments AR E IR 15 56,729,796 63,444,314
Investment properties wEYE 16 239,199,410 229,165,879
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FHBEMEEWA
RAFEYEZ
AR T A 17 11,573,728 -
Club membership EATEEE 3,403,700 -
Prepayments and deposits AR RIBE RG] & 24 4,411,600 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 18 - 24,870,548
Interests in joint ventures REZERR 2R 20 413,750 421,268
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, = IEE W - HE
plant and equipment &L pa kD 24,871,390 5,543,984
409,791,215 448,858,439
Current assets MENEE
Inventories rE 21 32,510,153 42,551,931
Properties under development for sale HFEERTPYE 22 43,325,216 45,351,716
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE 23 = 107,374,656
Derivative financial instrument TESBITA = 7,851,180
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEEATE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") YR ([EBER
BAFEYE])
ZERMEE 17 87,895,380 -
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FREMEEWRA
BATEVEZ
BATA 17 14,679,744 -
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 18 = 14,192,719
Trade and other receivables, 5 kEAM
prepayments and deposits FEMSRIE - TR
KB NG & 24 167,372,625 200,166,882
Contract assets BREE 19 15,719,178 -
Loans to joint ventures BTRERRIZER 20 3,215,059 3,874,009
Loans receivable JE W & 3R 25 80,750,879 31,055,801
Prepaid lease payments TN HEERE 15 1,191,528 1,345,094
Amounts due from related companies JE Y B 38 R B RIR 26 2,433,094 1,310,456
Tax recoverable AU R B IR 571,625 -
Short-term bank deposits REIRITIER 27 23,682,998 102,879,162
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEE 27 185,786,206 199,687,987
659,133,685 757,641,593
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIELECEE 36 88,183,524 -
747,317,209 757,641,593
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R E
At 31 December 2018
R—Z2—\F+=-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F B+
NOTES HK$ HK$
it BT BT
Current liabilities RBBE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 K H g~ 5008
VA R & 51 5038 28 108,141,167 102,238,651
Contract liabilities BHEE 29 3,330,271 -
Tax liabilities MIEBE 3,401,860 4,656,583
Amount due to a non-controlling R —RME AT
shareholder of a subsidiary — R IR R
RIE 30 17,080,392 18,011,527
Amount due to a related company JER —REEQF]
I8 31 129,334 903,191
Obligations under finance leases BEMEERE
— due within one year —R—F NI 33 - 182,179
Bank borrowings RITEE 32 86,807,056 59,892,800
218,890,080 185,884,931
Net current assets RENVEEFE 528,427,129 571,756,662
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 938,218,344 1,020,615,101
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Amount due to a related company e —REEE R T
KIE 31 328,478 380,146
Deferred taxation BRI 34 10,607,945 10,722,401
10,936,423 11,102,547
Net assets BEFE 927,281,921 1,009,512,554
Capital and reserves BEARRGEE
Share capital % A% 35 2,536,395 2,536,395
Reserves s 922,075,570 1,008,687,044
Amounts recognised in other MO BRFBIEHE
comprehensive income and ZBEMmMNHEA
accumulated in equity relating to 2EWARER
assets classified as held for sale Wtz &5t
iy 5,420,387 -
Total attributable to owners of KAREE AEGERE
the Company 930,032,352 1,011,223,439
Non-controlling interests JEVE RS (2,750,431) (1,710,885)
Total equity EmAaRE 927,281,921 1,009,512,554

The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 305 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

HNE125BEF3058 2452 EHREk D
mEFEeRN _Z—hAhF=A=-+ )\t
NIRETE THUNTEEAREE:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie & &= B
Chairman £ &

SUEK Chai Hong E& & E
Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

RE-2—/\FT-A=f—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREARE
Deemed
contribution Capital Properties  Investment Non-
Share Share from  redemption  Contributed  valuation  revaluation Translation Retained controlling
capital premium  a shareholder reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
-4 ES k&
[ REEE RR2ER HARERE R4BH ERE EfifE EXGE REEd N FERER #if
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B En o o R BT i B B B En o
At 1 January 2017 R=E-t%5-A-H 2536395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62400 103,571,033 56,223,266 - 116460 195958536 916,374,174 (2540322) 913833852
Profit (loss) for the year TERT (B8) - - - - - - - - 43145604 48,145,604 (195,707) 47,949,897
Bxchange differences arising on translation of B SHNERFEL BN EE
foreign operations - - - - - - - 39674762 - 39,674,762 1,025,144 40,699,906
Surplus on transfer fom property, plantand ~ £#1% - HERAEERE
equipment to investment properties (rote 16) % ENE 2 B (Hit16) - - - - - 93T - - - 93865 - 9371865
Deferred tax arising from transfer of property, ~ ##1% HERREEHE
plant and equipment to investment properties % A 16 & £ 2 BB - - - - - (2342,96) - - - (2342,986) - (2342,96)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEH2ERA - - - - - 7,028,899 - 39674762 - 46,703,661 1025144 47728805
Total comprehensive income for the year RERARNEE - - - - - 7,028,899 - 30674762 48145604 94,849,265 829437 95678702
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t5+-A=1-8 2536395 368949127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 63,252,165 - 39791222 244104140 1,011,223439 (1,710,885) 1,009,512,554
Adjustments (note 2) X7 - - - - - - (13,063,890) - 1403247 1,168,357 - 1,168,357
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZF-\5-A-H (875 2536395 368949127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 6325165  (13,063890) 39791222 258336387 1,012391,7% (1,710,885) 1,010,680,911
Loss for the year s | - - - - - - - - (37922569 (37,922,569 (301,946)  (38,224,515)
Bxchange differences arising on translation of B SN ERFEL BN EE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (31,731,008 - (31,731,008 (737,600) (32,468,608
Fair value loss on equity investments at FVIOCI  EBE 2 AWARATEEZ
BAkE A TEER - - - - - - (12,705,867) - - (12,705,867) - (12,705,867)
Other comprehensive expense for theyear  AEE#2 AR - - - - - - (12705867 (31,731,008) - (4436875 (7376000 (45,174475)
Total comprehensive expense for the year TF2ERZEE - - - - - - (12705867) (31731008 (37.922,569)  (82,359444) (1,039,546  (83,398990)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\Ftzf=t+-8 2536395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 6325165  (25769,757) 8,060214* 220413818 930,032,352 (2750431) 927,281,921
* As at 31 December 2018, translation reserve included the amount * REZE-NFF+ZA=+—H ELFE

of HK$5,420,387 recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity relating to assets classified as held for sale.

BERSDERIFIELHEZ EEMRAM
PEHUAFERUEREm PR 22
5,420,387 7T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRTREB®MK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
(Loss) profit before taxation BrAiAT (E518) & 7 (35,220,301) 52,092,464
Adjustments for: EAEE T3 3% -
Write-down of inventories WoRFE 52,585 543,411
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BE K&
equipment HREITE 14,349,985 10,273,310
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  TE/{< 7 & 7 IE # £ 1,279,870 1,031,454
Net gain on disposal of property, HjE%% TR s K
plant and equipment R 2 W F R (260,845) (4,244,150)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBAFIZ
518 - 5,396,840
Gain on Land Swap Transaction THERR F 2 W
(as defined in note 7) (EMFTRNER) - (46,611,407)
Change in fair value of investment REWMEZ
properties NEEEE (10,942,146) (20,273,024)
Loss recognised in respect of loans to METEERRIER
joint ventures R 2 EE 1,391,092 2,874,868
Net impairment losses (reversal of %%@H&%ﬂlﬁ‘zﬁﬁ
impairment losses) on trade Bt CRlEE 1R
receivables o) F5 11,467,527 (1,150,168)
Net reversal of impairment losses on AHEEZREBE
contract assets [B)% %8 (64,902) -
Change in fair value of derivative TTESRMIAY
financial instrument NEEEZH = 2,837,217
Share of results of joint ventures JEihAE N R 2 EE 7,518 1,349,720
Dividend income [Ee=N'ON (4,667,276) (1,518,823)
Interest expense FERZ 3,098,378 2,509,172
Other interest income H A S WA (2,366,386) (1,932,508)
Operating cash flows before RetEBEEREHAIZ
movements in working capital KEBERE (21,874,901) 3,178,376
Increase in inventories T?Eii pill (7,651,616) (6,379,932)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other g5 K E b R -
receivables, prepayments and deposits AR RIBE ARG &
A (1) 48,922 (17,876,120)
Decrease in contract assets AHBERDY 3,133,084 -
(Increase) decrease in amounts fE UG BE3E N B FR0A
due from related companies (N ) kA (1,122,638) 171,090
Decrease in held-for-trading investments #{FE B &R &
N - 24,872,700
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BiBIETE A TEYER
ZemEERD 27,330,456 -
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable JEUSE FR (18 00) (49,695,078) 5,729,542
Increase in trade and other payables and & 5 K& H {ib jE < 5k 18
accruals VA R JE 5T 3R IE 5 AN 4,667,138 171,290
Decrease in contract liabilities EHaERL (4,872,028) -
Cash (used in) from operations L& ()5 zRE (50,036,661) 9,866,946
Dividend income SRIPN 4,667,276 1,518,823
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EERNEH (2,056,171) (610,195)
Overseas tax paid EREINGIE (2,888,847) (2,897,465)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM R (FTFE)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FEReFH (50,314,403) 7,878,109
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRTREB®ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
NOTES HK$ HK$
Hiat BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Investment in available-for-sale HERAHHERE
investments - (3,505,900)
Purchases of equity investments BAEBEMEEBA
at FVTOCI BEAFEYERS
R ARG E (3,134,800) -
Repayment from loan to BT HEER
an available-for-sale investee BWEFZEFER - 32,362,460
Deposit paid for acquisition of Eﬁﬁﬁﬁf%% iz &
property, plant and equipment B (25,760,678) (5,543,984)
Placement of short-term bank deposits ~ F& & Hﬂ IRITEK (78,317,944) (64,101,510)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits 42 BX 2 £f fETﬂ_m 149,404,263 28,164,048
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBEBA 38 = 2,340,000
Loans to joint ventures BTEER ﬂZEjﬁ (1,401,697) (3,013,772)
Repayment from loan to a joint venture 44 F — KA & QA
ZEHER 669,555 1,000,000
Purchase of property, plant and BAME BB L&E
equipment (42,530,339) (12,257,936)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  HE R
plant and equipment F13 5k 18 4,647,166 4,268,943
Compensation received T MBRZFET
for Land Swap Transaction W B 1 7 = 52,022,307
Interest received 2 A E 2,366,386 1,932,508
Refundable deposit received FBELERKY
for potential disposal RER® 15,000,000 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  REEBI T8
ReFE 20,941,912 33,667,164
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Rl EEE
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEER (6,672,784) (1,450,400)
New bank borrowings raised FTIBIRITIEE 33,587,040 -
Repayment to a related company A—KEEER (825,525) (10,675,637)
Repayment of obligations BEMEEE
under finance leases (182,179) (236,890)
Interest paid EARFLE (3,098,378) (2,509,172)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) mMETEMRE (FTA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFE 22,808,174 (14,872,099)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRBELEE (D)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & hn &8 (6,564,317) 26,673,174
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHAZzHER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR BEEE 199,687,987 165,573,968
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERESgEHTE
RATE CHANGES (7,337,464) 7,440,845
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND FHRzZHE& R
OF THE YEAR Re%E 185,786,206 199,687,987
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH BEeRREZEEHBZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oA
Bank balances and cash IRITE#EHRNIRE 185,786,206 199,687,987
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=1T—HILFE

1.  GENERAL

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 48.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Amendments
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Share-based
HKFRS 2 Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKAS 28 2014 - 2016 Cycle
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

In addition, the Group has early applied Amendments to
HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation”
which will be mandatorily effective for the Group for the

financial year beginning on 1 January 2019.

Except as described below, the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and

the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained
profits and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18

“Revenue” and the related interpretations.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=1T—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o Revenue from trading of printing products

o Revenue from manufacturing and sales of
printing products

Rental income (within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”)
and loan interest income (within the scope of HKFRS
9 “Financial instruments”) are not within the scope of
HKFRS 15.

Information about the Group's performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application
of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following table summarises the impact of transition
to HKFRS 15 on retained profits at 1 January 2018.
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HKFRS 15 at
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Retained profits

R & 5 7

BERS MR 2 BRI E Mg R IHE

Manufacturing and sales of printing
products recognised over time
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

ERAHIEEMBREE
A (TEEMBREEA])

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) R ERMEET (48)
2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 BEVBREEDNE
Customers” (Continued) 15[ BEFEEHWE]
(#&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BEXERE B EREE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) B 15755 78 5 19 72 & HF
ZE(#)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts NTHRAEZEIRNRZZE—N\F
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial — A—H 25458 B ER
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not KFTERZEBMIEL - &
affected by the changes have not been included. STEHHEECIER AR
EA °
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017  Reclassification ~Remeasurement 2018*
REEBHE
EATR HEERF155
—E-tf RZB-NE
+ZRA=t-H -A-H
HECREE ENSE EfitE ZIREE*
Notes HKS HKS HKS HK$
s B BT BT BT
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E @ 42,551,931 - (15,997,180) 26,554,751
Contract assets ARERE @) - - 19,071,183 19,071,183
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other BHREMERNTIE
payables and accruals AR EE 3R () 102,238,651 (8,202,299) - 94,036,352
Contract liabilities BHEE b) - 8,202,299 - 8,202,299
Capital and reserves BAR ik
Retained profits RERH (@ 244,104,140 - 3,074,003 247,178,143

* The amounts in this column are before the
adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9.

* U7 BIE G &R T2
EERZE O T (EL S B RT
ZEAE e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

ERAHIEEMBREE

A (TEEMBR
RERAZET (&)

£ HEH

AT~

1)

21 BEMBREEAUS
1555 [ B F &4 W

(%)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group's contracts with customers for
manufacturing and sales of printing products are
tailor-made based on customers’ specification with no
alternative use to the Group. Taking into account the
contract terms, the legal and regulatory environment
in Hong Kong and the PRC, the contracts provide the
Group enforceable rights to payment for performance
completed to date and hence should be recognised
over time upon application of HKFRS 15. Amounts
of HK$15,997,180 and HK$3,074,003 have been
adjusted from inventories and opening retained
profits respectively with corresponding adjustment of
HK$19,071,183 to contract assets.

As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of
HK$8,202,299 in respect of manufacturing and sales
contracts for printing products previously included
in trade and other payables and accruals were
reclassified to contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

2.1

2. ERAHIERUMBREE
A (TEEMBREEA])

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) R ERMEET (48)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 BERAMEBEBREERZE
Customers” (Continued) 1555 [ZEFEH W]
(#&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BEXERE B EREE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) B 15755 78 5 19 72 & HF
Z(#E)
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying TRIBFEFERA ST B HE
HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated statement of ERFISHEREER =
financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its Z—-NF+-_A=+—82
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other SEMBIRAREERNEE
comprehensive income and consolidated statement ZEeEREEMEERA
of cash flows for the current year for each of the line MERIZZEURSTE R
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the JHE B\ 2 1A
changes have not been included. AEBREERN-
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial B e M LR &
position
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
RER
ERUBERSE
ERIE155
Fr 28 ik ZEE
Note HKS$ HK$ HK$
ki3 BT BT BT
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 3 (a) 32,510,153 13,281,749 45,791,902
Contract assets AHNEE @) 15,719,178* (15,719,178) -
Current liabilities REBRE
Trade and other B o REMEMNFE
payables and accruals AR FE &t 5008 (@) 108,141,167 3,330,271 111,471,438
Contract liabilities aMEE (@) 3,330,271 (3,330,271) -
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Retained profits R R (@) 220,413,818 (2,437,429) 217,976,389
* This amount includes the adjustment of impairment of * I % B 617 51 fE 2B BT
contract assets of HK$218,921 from the application of K2 2 2 Bl £ 9%5% iy #1 &

HKFRS 9.

#) & B R 8 EH 2 &
218,921 »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised the revenue
from manufacturing and sales of printing products
when the goods were delivered and title had
passed. Upon the application of HKFRS 15, the
contracts provide the Group enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date and
hence should be recognised over time. Without
the application of HKFRS 15, there would be no
recognition of contract assets and revenue and cost
of sales would be decreased by HK$15,938,099 and
HK$13,281,749 respectively and inventories increased
by HK$13,281,749. In addition, contract liabilities of
HK$3,330,271 would have been classified as advances
received from customers and is included in trade and
other payables and accruals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or

2. ERHITERBYBHREE
A (TEEMBHREEA])
REMERT (&

21 BFERUBREERSE
155 [FFE AW
(%)
BEAEREEYBEHEE
g%g%ﬁﬁﬁ%gﬁf

Bty & R KA Z ETHHA

loss and other comprehensive income AR ZE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
AERBE
B AR
F2H HE F1RNEHE
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
if3 BT BT BT
Revenue from goods and REEmERE
services Yoz (@) 578,124,633 3,133,084 581,257,717
Rental income S ON 7,304,238 - 7,304,238
Interest income from RENEEKZ
lending business FlEMA 7,197,071 - 7,197,071
Total revenue Bl 592,625,942 3,133,084 595,759,026
Cost of sales HEKAE @) (456,216,282) (2,715,431) (458,931,713)
Net impairment losses on BHRYIER
trade receivables and ANEEZ
contract assets REBEFE (b) (11,402,625) (64,902) (11,467,527)
Notes: Hat
(a) Without the application of HKFRS 15, revenue and (a) EARAEAUMBRE
costs of sales would be increased by of HK$3,133,084 B EISHEHBERT
and HK$2,715,431, respectively. Iz & 8 & A o R
#113,133,084% T &
2,715,431 7T °
(b) The amount of HK$64,902 represents the net reversal (b) AR ERE BB RE%E

of impairment losses of contract assets from the
application of HKFRS 9. This amount would not be
recognised without the application of HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERHEAMKEREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A ([EBMEHREEL])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) R ERMEET (48)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 EFRAVKBREERE
Customers” (Continued) ARSI &
(%)
Summary of effects arising from initial BEXEFE B EREE
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) B 15755 78 5 19 72 & HF
Z ()
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash B A E o T B R L
flows
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
KEA
EBUNBRE
% R 5155
2R Ekd HEE
Notes HKS$ HK$ HK$
iria BT BT BT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rexy

Loss before taxation BREIRIEE (@) (35,220,301) 352,751 (34,867,550)
Net reversal of impairment A8 EE ZRE

losses on contract assets EERDFE (@) (64,902) 64,902 -
Increase in inventories FEEM @) (7,651,616) 2,715,431 (4,936,185)
Decrease in contract assets A4 EER D (@) 3,133,084 (3,133,084) -

Increase (decrease) in trade B 5 R EtERZIE
and other payables and VAR JE ST SR IBE N

accruals () (b) 4,667,138 (4,872,028) (204,890)
Decrease in contract liabilities & 418 &5 b) (4,872,028) 4,872,028 -
Cash used in operations  REfMEZRE (50,036,661) - (50,036,661)
NET CASH USED IN e AT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEBE (50,314,403) - (50,314,403)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

2.1

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash
flows (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Without the application of HKFRS 15, the loss
before taxation and increase in inventories would
be decreased by HK$352,751 and HK$2,715,431
respectively and there would be no net reversal of
impairment losses on contract assets and no decrease
in contract assets.

Without the application of HKFRS 15, decrease in
contract liabilities of HK$4,872,108 which represents
the decrease in advances received from customers
of HK$4,872,108 would be presented as decrease in
trade and other payables and accruals.

2.

ERHIERMBREE
A (TEEMBREEA])

RERAZET (&)

2.1

BEREUBBELASE
1555 [ B F &4 W
(%)
BEAXEHEERBEHEE
RIFE 155538 F HY =2 EE#E
Z(#)

HtraHE RE KA ZE
(%)

Hit:

(a) EAREREAMBRE
AR EISHMBERT B
B Al & 18 & 17 B 180 %
2 B 4352,7517% 7T &
2,715,431 70 MA & E
S EENEEZRAER
BREFE WAENEE
Tamd o

(b) EAREREAMBRE
ZRIEISHEHNBERT A
# 8 &R 4,872,1087%8
THEBERE P B D
4,872,108 70 ' W 25 &
B 5 R E A FEA FRIE A K
FERTRRIER A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”, Amendments to HKFRS 9
“Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation”
and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities; 2) expected credit losses (“ECL")
for financial assets and contract assets; and 3) general
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and
has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018.
The difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1
January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERHIEAMKEREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A ([EBMEHREEL])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) R ERMEET (48)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the 22 EARAMBHREFEAEISR
related amendments (Continued) (€T AR | EEABEBE

&) (%)

Summary of effects arising from initial BEXEFE B EREE
application of HKFRS 9 BIE9F & B E
The table below illustrates the classification and TEREMBEESTHBT KR
measurement (including impairment) of financial assets EAER|FR N E e
and financial liabilities and other items subject to ECL B39 E AN TBEHEE
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial EENTREENTRAE
application, 1 January 2018. ARHEMIBERERER

B8 (Bl ZE—NF—H—
)Mo R E (B
B) -

Amortised
cost
(previously
Available-  Held-for-  Derivative  Financial Equity classified as Investment
for-sale trading  financial assets investments Club loansand  Contract revaluation  Retained
investments investments instrument  atFVTPL  at FVTOCI membership receivables) assets reserve profits
EREf
EBEE  2EMA RHRK
BATE RAVE (%058
UREE  BEER fTEER 14 14 RERR REEf
RE RE IR SEMEE RARE EFER RURE) ANEE #E  REER
Notes HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
it BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Closing balance at R-F-tF+=A
31 December 2017 S+-AzHAES
- HKAS 39 -BAEERE30R 39,063,267 107,374,65 7,851,180 - - - 528,654,206 - - 244,104,140
Effect arising from initial ERABAERUBES
application of HKFRS 15 ERHESRERNTE - - - - - - - 19,071,183 - 3,074,003
Effect arising from initial EARAERUBHRS
application of HKFRS 9: EEIHIRERMN
pe:
Reclassification EXNAE
From available-for-sale BAfEE (@ (39,063,267) - - - 35,659,567 3,403,700 - - (13346,603) 13,346,603
From held-for-trading BHEEE () - (107,374,656) - 107,374,65 - - - - - -
From derivative financial instrument BT £ &R TE - - (7.851,180) 7,851,180 - - - - - -
Remeasurement EffitR
Impairment under ECL model ENEEHREAT
ZRE (© - - - - - - (1,904,536)  (283,823) - (2188359)
From cost less impairment to BRANBEER
fair value RTE (@) - - - - 28713 - - - 28,713 -
Opening balance at R=B-N\§-5-8
1 January 2018 ZBOE - - - 115225836 35942280 3,403,700 526,749,670 18,787,360 (13,063,890) 258,336,387
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Available-for-sale investments
From available-for-sale investments to FVTOC/

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") for the fair value changes of all its
equity investments previously classified as available-
for-sale. These investments are not held for trading
and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future. At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
HK$35,659,567 related to unlisted equity securities
previously measured at cost less impairment under
HKAS 39 were reclassified from available-for-sale
investments to equity instruments at FVTOCI. The
fair value gain of HK$282,713 relating to those
unlisted equity securities were adjusted to equity
instruments at FVTOCI and investment revaluation
reserve as at 1 January 2018. In addition, impairment
losses previously recognised of HK$13,346,603
were transferred from retained profits to investment
revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group reassessed its investment in equity
securities classified as held for trading under HKAS
39 as if the Group had purchased these investments
at the date of initial application. Based on the facts
and circumstances as at date of initial application,
HK$107,374,656 of the Group's investments were
held for trading and continued to be measured at
FVTPL.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all contract
assets, trade receivables and trade related amounts
due from related companies. Except for those which
had been determined as credit-impaired under HKAS
39, contract assets and trade receivables have been
assessed individually with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and trade related
amounts due from related companies have been
assessed individually, the remaining contract assets
and trade receivables balances are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The contract
assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for the trade receivables and the contract assets on
the same basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(c) Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost mainly
comprise of short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, loans receivable, loans to joint ventures
and other receivables and deposits, are assessed on
12-month ECL basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit loss
allowance of HK$2,188,359 has been recognised
against retained profits. The additional loss allowance
is charged against the allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAFNTEBUBREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Al ((EEMBEREER])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) R ERMEET (48)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the 22 EFENBHREERFIR
related amendments (Continued) (€I E|RHEEBRE
7] (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BEXEFE B EREE
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) RISt & B o EE
(#&)
Notes: (Continued) ffet - (%
(c) Impairment under ECL model (Continued) (0 BiEEHEesFEERY
WE (&)
All loss allowances for contract assets and trade N—-—ZT—+F+ - A
receivables as at 31 December 2017 reconciled to —t+—HHANBERE
the opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 is as 5 E W SR IE B B B S 18 BB
follows: HE-_Z-)\F—-H—H
WHTEREFEHERD
T~
Contract Trade
assets receivables
EREE g5 ERRIE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+-A=+—8
- HKAS 39 — BB G ER
SE395% N/A A~ (3,127,071)
Amounts remeasured through FHRYRE & T
opening retained profits B ECERE (283,823) (1,904,536)
At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—A—H (283,823) (5,031,607)
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, ARREERR N_Z
the ECL on the amounts due from related parties is —NF—HA—H EKEHE
insignificant as at 1 January 2018. BATREZEREEE
B FEK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERAFIIEAMKERELE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B ([EEMBHRESER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued) REBMEET (&)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated 2.3 FERFAE#HTER - EFT
statement of financial position arising EREYWHISS Bk
from the application of all new standards, MER/ZEE
amendments and interpretation
As a result of the changes in the entity’s accounting AR Lt EEet kK
policies above, the opening consolidated statement ) i S IS AR KA
of financial position had to be restated. The following FLAES| NRETILSZIA
table show the adjustments recognised for each By TE B RN TIEE -
individual line item.

At At
31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
R=Z—t#%
+=A  ERUBHE  ERUBHE  RIE-N\f
=t+-8 ERIE15% %A %95 -A-H
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Audited) (Restated)
(m&iz) (BE3)
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE BER& 125,412,446 - - 125,412,446
Prepaid lease payments BREERE 63,444,314 - - 63,444,314
Investment properties REME 229,165,879 - - 229,165,879
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BREMEZAKARATE
SRz RATA - - 21,749,561 21,749,561
Club membership efMes - - 3,403,700 3,403,700
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 24,870,548 - (24,870,548) -
Interests in joint ventures NEX-UNCipE: £ 421,268 - - 421,268
Deposits paid for acquisition of ERBENE BER
property, plant and equipment EHER 5,543,984 - - 5,543,984
448,858,439 - 282,713 449,141,152
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated
statement of financial position arising

ERHIERMBREE

A (TEBMBHREEA])

REREET (&)

2.3 FERAMBMTER BT
SEIEFARERIE S Eup S

from the application of all new standards, MB/ZEE (1)
amendments and interpretation (Continued)
At At
31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
R-Z—-+%&
+=A  ERUESE FRUESE  Ro-Z-N\E£
=t+-8 AIE15% %595 -A-H
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Audited) (Restated)
(B8 %) (EE3)
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =& 42,551,931 (15,997,180) - 26,554,751
Properties under development for sale & EH Y% 45,351,716 - - 45,351,716
Held-for-trading investments RFIEEERA 107,374,656 - (107,374,656) -
Derivative financial instrument fTEEBTA 7,851,180 - (7,851,180) -
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBEXEATEIEZ
SREE - - 115,225,836 115,225,836
Equity instruments at FVTOCI EREME2EKARLTE
SIRZRATA - - 14,192,719 14,192,719
Available-for-sale investments AfRLERE 14,192,719 - (14,192,719) -
Trade and other receivables, B REMERIE
prepayments and deposits BRFEARITS 200,166,882 - (1,904,536) 198,262,346
Contract assets BHEE - 19,071,183 (283,823) 18,787,360
Loans to joint ventures BTEERFEZER 3,874,009 - - 3,874,009
Loans receivable U E R 31,055,801 - - 31,055,801
Prepaid lease payments ENEERE 1,345,094 - - 1,345,094
Amounts due from related companies &Y B3:E 22 7] 508 1,310,456 - - 1,310,456
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 102,879,162 - - 102,879,162
Cash and cash equivalents BekResh 199,687,987 - - 199,687,987
757,641,593 3,074,003 (2,188,359) 758,527,237
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERHEAMKEREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A ([EBMEHREEL])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) REBMEET (48)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated 23 FERAMEHTER 85T

R s a iR
mEkeZE (&)

statement of financial position arising
from the application of all new standards,

amendments and interpretation (Continued)

At At
31 December 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
R-Z-t%
+=8 ERMERE BAMERE R-Z-N\%
=+-AH ERIE15% ERIE5H -F—-H
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Fou B BT o
(Audited) (Restated)
(B&E%Z) (gE5)
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 & £t e 7008
AR e 5t 508 102,238,651 (8,202,299) - 94,036,352
Contract liabilities BNAE - 8,202,299 - 8,202,299
Tax liabilities hEaR 4,656,583 - - 4,656,583
Amount due to a non-controlling ER—RMBAR
shareholder of a subsidiary —RIEERB R 18,011,527 - - 18,011,527
Amount due to a related company R —RBEAFFE 903,191 - - 903,191
Obligations under finance leases REHERME
— due within one year —R—FREH 182,179 - - 182,179
Bank borrowings BOTEE 59,892,800 - - 59,892,800
185,884,931 - - 185,884,931
Net current assets ROREFE 571,756,662 3,074,003 (2188.359) 572,642,306
Total assets less current liabilites #EERABER 1,020,615,101 3,074,003 (1,905,646)  1,021,783,458
Non-current liabilities e b=l
Amount due to a related company  FEff —REJE A R FUE 380,146 - - 380,146
Deferred taxation EIER B 10,722,401 - - 10,722,401
11,102,547 - - 11,102,547
Net assets EEFE 1,009,512,554 3,074,003 (1,905,646) 1,010,680,911
Capital and reserves EARRE
Share capital RA 2,536,395 - - 2,536,395
Reserves i 1,008,687,044 3,074,003 (1,905,646) 1,009,855,401
Total attributable to owners of the AREEEAEGBE
Company 1,011,223,439 3,074,003 (1,905,646) 1,012,391,796
Non-controlling interests FiERER (1,710,885) - - (1,710,885)
Total equity ERAE 1,009,512,554 3,074,003 (1,905,646) 1,010,680,911
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the

Leases’
Insurance Contracts’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Definition of a Business?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle’

first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” (“"HKAS 17") and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions
to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15
as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be
accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements
relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments under operating
lease as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use and those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments will
continue to be presented as investing or operating cash flows
in accordance with the nature, as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is an operating lease lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of
these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

2.
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$91,298,180 as disclosed
in note 39. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$1,847,067 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$1,1710,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance lease
payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will apply the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sales and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale. For a transfer that
does not satisfy the requirements as a sale, the Group will
account for the transfer proceeds as financial liabilities within
the scope of HKFRS 9. In accordance with the transition
provisions of HKFRS 16, sale and leaseback transactions
entered into before the date of initial application will not be
reassessed but the new requirements may impact the Group’s
future sale and leaseback transactions.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. The amendments also
align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2020. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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B ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group’s share of
losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of investment (include goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion of
the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held for
sale when the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the
portion that is classified as held for sale from the time when
the investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified as
held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service (i.e.
being at the point the printing products from Trading Business
and albums are delivered to the customer’s specific location).

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from sales of goods (including manufactured and
trading printing products and gaming machines) is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Concerts and shows income is recognised on the completion
of the relevant concerts and shows.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Deposits received from purchases prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

The Group’s accounting policies for interest income and
revenue from operating leases are described in the accounting
policy for financial instruments and leases below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
other than properties construction in progress as described
below, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Property, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and
non-monetary assets, was measured at fair value unless the
exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair
value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is
reliably measurable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than construction in progress, less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the properties
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the land
use rights and development cost of the property. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs of completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group's
accounting policy and directly attributable cost incurred during
the development period.

Impairment on assets other than financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets other than financial assets
(including contract assets and rental deposits) to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of assets other than financial assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on assets other than financial assets
(Continued)

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as expenses.
The assets capitalised as contract costs are then included in
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which they
belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that cash-
generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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B ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on assets other than financial assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured under
fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
subsidy income from government for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme,
state-managed retirement benefit scheme and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers, including trade related amounts due from
related companies, which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial assets or financial liabilities and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business (i.e. Lending Business as defined in note 6)
are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in OCl if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC!

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits/will
continue to be held in the investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables and deposits, loans to
joint ventures, loans receivable, trade related amounts due
from related companies, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) and contract assets. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and trade related amounts due from related
companies without significant financing component. Contract
assets and trade receivables have been assessed individually
with outstanding significant balances exceeding HK$2,500,000
and trade related amounts due from related companies have
been assessed individually, the remaining contract assets
and trade receivables balances are assessed collectively
using a provision matrix grouped with internal credit rating.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade
receivables and the contract assets on the same basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the relevant financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. The Group usually writes off when
there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables and trade related amounts due
from related companies, when the amounts are over one year
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not
yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables and contract assets are each assessed
as a separate group. Loans to joint ventures, loans
receivable and trade related amounts due from related
companies are assessed for ECL on an individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, contract
assets, trade related amounts due from related companies
and loans receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: Financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Held-for-trading investments

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned in the financial assets
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 44.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period except for unlisted
equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loans to joint ventures, trade and other
receivables and deposits, loans receivable, amount due from a
related company, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018

TESFBE (&)

TR T A (&)
EHEE (HF)

EHEERE (R-F—/1F—H
—HIER BB B & ERFEIN
A1) (%)

ERAIHEERSERE  EF A
FERESFEERERKATA
WARSHBEBEZ ZEER -

RERFEYFIAENS @ BEZR
BERA8R

. BITAREF I HREKRY
[12QGSE < R

. EREH mEisE R
BRAGER: L

. fERAB Al BER E ST
BEA-

BACGREA S 2 B EBET
AL E 2 B ATE - AR
SR ZCER AR 2 2 B
T AEEARR 2 WA -

IRBER AR 2R EEM
5 HERNREB RSB AR
ZBEEZREEEARERF X

B ARKRAERERELZ
IR ZE5E o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, contract assets, trade related
amounts due from related companies and loans receivable
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable, contract asset, amount due from a related
company and loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accruals, bank borrowings and amounts due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and a related company
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative is initially recognised at fair value at the dates when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Forward contracts to dispose an equity investment at a
future disposal date are accounted for as derivative financial
instruments. Changes in fair value of such contracts are
recognised in profit or loss up to the completion of the
disposal.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in
investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4,

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent qualified professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based its valuation
on income capitalisation approach or direct comparison,
as appropriate for respective investment properties, which
involves certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation
rates, reversionary income potential and market transactions
of comparable properties, as appropriate. In relying on
the valuation, management has exercised its judgement
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation adopted are
appropriate for the relevant property and reflective of current
market conditions. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
fair value of investment properties is HK$239,199,410 (2017:
HK$229,165,879). Details of the valuation methodology are
disclosed in note 16.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development for sale

As at 31 December 2018, properties under development for
sale of HK$43,325,216 (2017: HK$45,351,716) is stated
at lower of cost and net realisable value. The management
uses their judgement and estimates in determining the net
realisable value of properties under development for sale
with reference to the comparable market transactions in
similar locations. Where there are any changes to the market
conditions in the PRC causing the net realisable value of
the properties under development for sale below its cost
the properties under development for sale is written down
to its net realisable value. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of properties under development for sale is
HK$43,325,216 (2017: HK$45,351,716).
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of interests in Sichuan Yinghua Real
Estate Company Limited (/9)|| ZZ F i EH R 2 &)
(“Yinghua”)

The valuation of the interests in Yinghua included the fair
value of 16.67% equity interest of Yinghua recorded as equity
instruments at FVTOCI amounting to HK$14,679,744 (2017:
available-for-sale unlisted equity investment amounting to
HK$14,192,719) as at 31 December 2018. Details of the
valuation methodology are disclosed in note 44.

During the assessment of the fair value of equity interest of
Yinghua, the directors of the Company use their judgement
in selecting appropriate valuation inputs for the valuation of
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. The
Group engaged independent qualified professional valuers to
perform the valuation. The fair value of equity instrument at
FVTOCI in Yinghua is based on asset-based approach which
incorporated key inputs including estimated fair value on its
properties and application of marketability discount of 10%.
The fair value on the properties is assessed based on the
income capitalisation approach with reference to market rental
value and appropriate capitalisation rate. The marketability
discount represents the discount exists between the value of
a listed company’s stock and unlisted company’s stock. Those
inputs are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. Where there are any changes in the
assumptions due to the market conditions, the estimate of
fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI in Yinghua may be
significantly affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

me

B ISR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_T—

4,

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of derivative financial instrument

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the obligation to deliver
the Group’s entire equity interests in Yinghua in the future
in return of cash is considered as derivative and measured
at fair value. The Group engaged independent qualified
professional valuers to perform the valuation. The fair value
of the derivative financial instrument is based on discounted
cash flow method which incorporated key inputs of the fair
value of the Group’s interests in Yinghua and appropriate
discount rate. The fair value estimation of the Group's interests
in Yinghua is disclosed above. The discount rate represents a
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money. Those inputs are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. Where there are any
changes in the assumptions due to the market conditions, the
estimate of fair value of derivative financial instrument may be
significantly affected.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of forward
contract measured at fair value was HK$6,651,180 (2017:
HK$7,851,180). Details of the valuation methodology are
disclosed in note 44.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services provided by the Group, less discounts
and sales related taxes during the year.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2018

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from goods and

REEmERE WS

BEEASREFARELE M
PR A AR A% P I Ko FE MK 2 3R CRAT

MR HERBAETIR) -

(i) BE=-=-N\E+=AH

=E+—-HALFE
AL EAGFRE F o R AR

services by segment for the year is as follows:

ZWEBD BT

HK$
BT
Types of goods or services: B ma REEE
Gaming Distribution Business* TR D SHE R
- Sales of gaming machines — RIS 462,499
Manufacturing and Sales Business* Bl R E R
— Income from manufacturing and —RE R REER
sales of printing products SHE 2 WA 525,690,488
Music and Entertainment Business* EE P T EIN
— Artistes management fee income —HEABTEBERA 1,412,566
— Concerts and shows income —BEBg kR ERA 7,580,861
— Income from the licensing of — B ERBEITIA
the musical works 5,887,796
— Promotion income —EEWA 991,841
— Sales of albums —HERBR 2,116,211
— Other music and entertainment services — Hofth & 4 K IR B PR 75 144,219
18,133,494
Trading Business* B %%
— Sales of printing products —ENml Sh3E & 33,838,152
578,124,633
* The segment names are defined in the section D HEE B2 E &M T

“Segment information” in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES 5. REERERERKzWEH
(Continued) (#&)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2018 i) BZE==Z2—NE+=A
(Continued) =+—HLEFE (&)
HK$
BT
Geographical markets: & T %
Hong Kong B 243,757,094
The PRC + 212,393,622
Europe BOM 39,016,945
United States EE 57,217,365
Others Hth 25,739,607
578,124,633
Information about the Group's revenue from external BREAANEERBINIEE 2
customers is presented based on the locations of the Wz BRHRFTR M E Rk
shipments of goods or the services provided. RG22 EHEZ S
HK$
BT
Timing of revenue recognition: Wit 2 e R PR D -
Over time BiE B [ 525,690,488
A point in time (R B T B 52,434,145
578,124,633
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES 5. RBEEERBREzZWE
(Continued) (#&)
(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (i) BZ=-E2—-N\HF+=H
(Continued) =+—HLEFE(H)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from TXHINBEF AW mE D
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in EERMIEESENEE-

the segment information.

Segment revenue

pa L g

HK$

BT

Gaming Distribution Business PR D S 462,499
Manufacturing and Sales Business BUERIHE X 525,690,488
Music and Entertainment Business HYE IR BT 18,133,494
Trading Business EEY 33,838,152
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEF& AUz 578,124,633
Rental income U A 7,304,238
Interest income from lending business REWEEB 2 FEWA 7,197,071
592,625,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_T—

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES
(Continued)

0]

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums is recognised when control of the printing
products, which are not manufactured by the Group,
and albums has been transferred to the customers,
being at the point the goods are delivered to the
customer’s specific location. Transportation and other
related activities that occur before customers obtains
control of the related good are considered as fulfilment
activities. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
The normal credit term is 60 to 90 days upon delivery,
which is approximate the time of issuing the invoices to
the customers.

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products

The Group provides tailored-manufacturing of printing
products to the customers. Such revenue from
manufacturing and sales of printing products are
recognised as this performance obligation satisfied
over time because the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES

*®E

B m R R# iz W

(Continued) (#&)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (i) E-_E-NE+=HA
(Continued) =+—HLEFE(H)
Performance obligations for contracts with HEEFSWZBYEF
customers (Continued) (4 )

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products (Continued)

The progress towards completing satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group's efforts (i.e. materials costs, direct staff
costs and other direct overhead costs incurred) to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to
the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depicts the Group's
performance in transferring control of products.
Contract assets arise when the Group has right
to consideration for satisfaction of a performance
obligation under the relevant contracts, and the right
is conditioned on factors other than passage of time.
Contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables
when such right become unconditional other than
the passage of time. Invoices to the customers were
issued upon the delivery of manufactured printing
products to the customers. The normal credit term is
60 to 120 days upon the issuance of invoices to the
customers. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits range from 10% to 50% of
total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before manufacturing of printing products commences,
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES 5. REEmREEzWE

(Continued) (#&)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (i) EZE-NE+ZA
(Continued) =+—HLEFE(H)
Performance obligations for contracts with HEFSHNZBYET
customers (Continued) (#4&)

Income from licensing of the musical works B2 ER I MA

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when licenses
of the Group's musical works were granted to the

s 4 7 S B 5 A R
WETEE (WEEAL

customers, being at the point the customer has the HEBMERASLER) 2R
rights to use the musical works at their own desires. A F‘ﬂ ER - AEENAEE
receivable is recognised by the Group when the licenses EMELFTRETREER

of the Group’s musical works are granted to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is
due.

Concerts and show income

Concerts and show income are recognised at the point
of completion of concerts and show to the customers.
Full payments from customers before the start of the
concerts and show are recognised as contract liabilities
by the Group until the concerts and show have been
performed to the customers.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

All the Group's contracts with customers with
unsatisfied performance obligations have original
expected duration of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
satisfied) as at 31 December 2018 is not disclosed.
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7% B G RE YR (B RO B TR B
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Z1E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

5. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES 5. REEmRERBZWE
(Continued) (#&)
(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2017 (i) B8E==2—+t&+=A2
=t+—BLEE
An analysis of the Group's revenue from goods and AEBARFRBEERMRE
services by segment for the year is as follows: ZWEFESBEYFTT
For the
year ended
31 December
2017
HE_T—+F
+ZA=+—H
LEFE
HKS$
BT
Types of goods or services: BEmek iR ERE
Gaming Distribution Business* PR D HE S
— Sales of gaming machines — B 1,513,933
Manufacturing and Sales Business* BE M IHE R
— Income from manufacturing and — K B I i
sales of printing products REHE 2 WA 458,620,260
Music and Entertainment Business* EE YT EI N
— Artistes management fee income —BABERBKA 1,578,804
— Concerts and shows income —EIEE R BERA 2,189,293
— Income from the licensing of — B EREITIA
the musical works 3,698,379
— Promotion income —EFRA 1,055,143
— Sales of albums —HERBR 1,815,456
— Other music and entertainment services —H b F 8 IR GRS 176,505
10,513,580
Trading Business* B 5%
— Sales of printing products —ENfRIE MiHE 33,774,464
504,422,237
* The segment names are defined in the section * D HEE I E &Mt
“Segment information” in note 6. [ LR —Fbe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

The Group's reportable and operating segments are therefore
as follows:

(a)

Distribution of gaming machines (“Gaming Distribution
Business”);

Money lending (“Lending Business”);

Manufacturing and sales of printing products
(“Manufacturing and Sales Business”);

Artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums and movies (“Music and Entertainment
Business™);

Property development and investment (“Property
Business”), including properties development projects
and properties leasing and investments in the PRC,
mini storage business and office leasing and properties
leasing and investment in Hong Kong;

Securities trading (”Securities Trading Business”); and

Trading of printing products (“Trading Business”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n_\ézﬁjji%iﬁ% Mj-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SHBER (8)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SHEWBRESE (F)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results RNEFIGKE RO HRE S EE S
by operating and reportable segment. ZWEREESHWLOT
Revenue Segment (loss) profit
g 28 (FR) &R
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f 4 —E-N\E e o3
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
Gaming Distribution Business BEEDHEER 462,499 1,513,933 (7,079,906) (27,552,115)
Lending Business HMEEE 7,197,071 4,611,231 4,207,173 2,211,095
Manufacturing and Sales Business BERBEER 525,690,488 458,620,260 2,779,057 43,407,080
Music and Entertainment Business BRRRERE 18,133,494 10,513,580 (2,819,534) (2,882,781)
Property Business MELH 7,304,238 6,500,175 12,127,985 16,140,229
Securities Trading Business BREEER - - (36,052,451)  (17,682,487)
Trading Business BOEE 33,838,152 33,774,464 2,206,490 2,332,176
Total st 592,625,942 515,533,643 (24,631,186) 15,973,197
Bank interest income BRATF B 2,366,386 1,339,407
Unallocated corporate expenses FOECERT (12,947,983) (11,828,168)
Gain on Land Swap Transaction ITHEBRR SR - 46,611,407
Unallocated share of results of RAE 2l
joint ventures RENREE (7,518) (3,379)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRAT ()& 7 (35,220,301) 52,092,464
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external XSG ZRTE S BN E Y R
customers. BINIEF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SHBER (8)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) TEREREE (E)
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable RSN A REDE @ HEHE
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies MizE3prifi 7 AREE 7 @ E
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the profit FBlen$8 (FER)BMNEZDHERE
earned/loss incurred by each segment without allocation B2uMN/ ExzEE  EhIE
of bank interest income, unallocated corporate expenses, DECERITREIMA - KB ER
gain on Land Swap Transaction (as defined in note 7 to the YTt ERST SR (EERE
consolidated financial statements), unallocated share of results SR ERNET) Ao 2 E
of joint ventures and taxation. This is the measure reported (EEENRIEENTIE WL BTE
to the Group's management for the purpose of resources Boi KRR GRAANERESIE
allocation and performance assessment. WmEZEE L
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities RNEFIGKE R SRS BEE S
by operating and reportable segment: ZEBENBESTTWOT:
As at 31 December 2018 R-_E—-NEFE+=-B=+—H
Gaming Manufacturing Music and Securities
Distribution Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination ~ Consolidated
HER T B4ER
ERAHER HEEHK HEEH REEH NEEH % g5%K AERH He &e
HKS HKS$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$
B7 B #7 #7 B7 E7 #7 B7 B7 #7
Segment assets HEEE 2,250,228 82,627,111 355,428,243 15,384,072 316,381,882 81,904,293 16,288,169 870,263,998 - 870,263,998
Other assets HEthEE 286,844,426
Consolidated assets GAEE 1,157,108,424
Segment liabilities HEEE 537,296 961,664 159,124,424 4,192,576 42,560,880 15,000 6,396,715 213,788,555 - 213,788,555
Inter-group liabilities SEMERE - 72,506,397 - - - 92,759,907 - 165,266,304 (165,266,304) -
Total At 537,296 73,468,061 159,124,424 4,192,576 42,560,880 92,774,907 6,396,715 379,054,859  (165266,304) 213,788,555
Other liabilities EthgfE 16,037,948
Consolidated liabilities SRAE 229,826,503
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

- S ~ BT =4
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. EEHR(H)
. —_— . ez S, -
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEENEBE (&)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-_A=+—H
Gaming Manufacturing Music and Securities
Distribution Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination  Consolidated
BER EER BHER

EEAHER HEEH HEEK REZH RESS £ 25%5 PEEH HH )
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
B B AT BT B B BT BT B BT
Segment assets PREE 3,537,434 32,539,044 308,153,073 10,825,137 309,532,191 130,840,443 17,854,635 813,281,957 - 813,281,957
Other assets HEthEE 393,218,075
Consolidated assets FRAE 1,206,500,032
Segment liabilities PR 764,250 1,898,622 117,970,294 3,971,587 45,109,287 130,000 10,060,787 179,904,827 - 179,904,827
Inter-group liabilities SAMER - 23,030,578 - - - 105,498,221 - 128528799  (128,528,799) -
Total At 764,250 24929200 117,970,294 3,971,587 45,109,287 105,628,221 10,060,787  308433,626  (128,528,799) 179,904,827
Other liabilities HuAaE 17,082,651
Consolidated liabilities RAEE 196,987,478

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources among segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain interest in a joint
venture, certain loan to a joint venture, certain equity
instruments at FVTOCI (2017: certain available-for-
sale investments), club membership, certain other
receivables, prepayments and deposits, tax recoverable,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash

equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain other payables and
accruals, tax liabilities and deferred taxation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. Z7EEH (&)
Other segment information BEioEER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=-ZE2—N\HE+=A=+—H

ILFE

Gaming Manufacturing Music and Securities
Distribution Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total  Unallocated  Consolidated
RER EER BHER
BEIHER REEHR HEER REER NEEB % E5%% ARE FIRE S
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
R B v &R B B v &R B &7
Amounts included in the HEGHES PR
measure of segment results  AEFFTAZEH
or segment assets:
Interest income (exclusion of ~ FIBMA (FRERE

interest income from HEEHHERA)

Lending Business) - - - - - - - - (2,366,386) (2,366,386)
Interest expenses HEmx - 94,696 2,257,328 - 744,204 - 2,150 3,098,378 - 3,098,378
Amortisation of prepaid lease B I8 & 50E %

payments - - 1,279,870 - - - - 1,279,870 - 1,279,870
Depreciation of property, hE BERRXETE

plant and equipment 1,451,013 74,518 11,245,268 56,712 1,178,528 - 220,835 14,226,874 123111 14,349,985
Write-down of inventories HREE - - - - - - 52,585 52,585 - 52,585
Net impairment losses (reversal & 5 U8 2 ifE

of impairment losses) on BE(REEEERE)

trade receivables e - - 11,469,155 16,662 - - (18,290) 11,467,527 - 11,467,527
Net reversal of impairment losses & #)& & 2 B S

on contract assets BEFE - - (64,902) - - - - (64,902) - (64,902)
Gain on disposal of property,  HENE - HER

plant and equipment R - - (260,845) - - - - (260,845) - (260,845)
Additions to property, nE BERRERE

plant and equipment 404,934 935 47,315,382 139,078 8,052 - 113,641 47,982,022 - 47,982,022
Loss recognised in respect of  FEETAERAEH

loans to joint ventures BALER - - - - 1,391,092 - - 1,391,092 - 1,391,092
Change in fair value of financial B8 A FEFIE 2

assets at FVTPL CBEELATEEY - - - - 1,200,000 35,457,753 - 36,657,753 - 36,657,753
Change in fair value of REWEL

investment properties ATEED - - - - (10,942,146 - - (10,942,146 - (10,942,146)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. THEHN(H)
Hivn BER (&)
BE-T—tF+-A=+—8
L E

Gaming Manufacturing Music and Securities
Distribution Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HER BER EHER
EEAHER HEEH HEEK REET NEEB 5% B5%% ARG FAR &4
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT AT BT BT BT AT BT BT
Amounts included in the HEGHES PR
measure of segment results  AEFHFAZEH
or segment assets:
Interest income (exclusion of ~ FIBMA (FRERE

interest income from HE£H2HERA)

Lending Business) - - - - (593,101) - - (593,101) (1,339,407 (1,932,508
Interest expenses HEmx - 778,046 1,116,192 - 606,052 - 8,882 2,509,172 - 2,509,172
Amortisation of prepaid lease B I8 & 5B

payments - - 1,031,454 - - - - 1,031,454 - 1,031,454
Depreciation of property, hE BERRXETE

plant and equipment 540,101 81,716 7,728,082 12,766 1,170,033 - 740,612 10,273,310 - 10,273,310
Write-down of inventories HREFE 146,121 - - 397,290 - - - 543,411 - 543,411
Net reversal of impairment losses & % U178 2 il

on trade receivables BREDFE - - (1,150,168) - - - - (1,150,168) - (1,150,168)
Gain on disposal of property,  HENE HER

plant and equipment Rz - - (4,244,150) - - - - (4,244,150) - (4,244,150)
Additions to property, nE BERXERE

plant and equipment 681,710 1,180 12,891,815 5,000 18,040 - 30,852 13,628,597 - 13,628,597
Loss recognised in respect of  FEETAERAEH

loans to joint ventures BALER - - - - 2,874,868 - - 2,874,868 - 2,874,868
Change in fair value of fTESRMIAL

derivative financial instrument A FEZE) - - - - 2,837,217 - - 2,831,217 - 2,837,217
Change in fair value of BIEEERE

held-fortrading investments A FEZH - - - - - 19,173,556 - 19,173,556 - 19,173,556
Change in fair value of REWFEZ

investment properties ATEEY - - - - (20,273,024 - - (20,273,024) - (20,273,024)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary &~ B L 2 BE 5,396,840 - - - - - - 5,396,840 - 5,396,840
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_T—\FT_A=+t—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
major products and services:

TEER (&)
REFEERRRSE 2 WE

AT RARBXREEETZEMNK
AR 2 W zm DT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Sales of printing products ENfRIE m i & 559,528,640 492,394,724
Artistes management fee income BABTEBIA 1,412,566 1,578,804
Concerts and shows income BEIEE RFBEWRA 7,580,861 2,189,293
Income from the licensing of FRERFFIRA
the musical works 5,887,796 3,698,379
Loan interest income from REREEB 2 ER
Lending Business FEWA 7,197,071 4,611,231
Other music and entertainment services E {th 3 % % 48 24 AR 1% 144,219 176,505
Promotion income EERA 991,841 1,055,143
Rental income HaBA 7,304,238 6,500,175
Sales of albums IBHHE 2,116,211 1,815,456
Sales of gaming machines 5 65 T B 462,499 1,513,933
592,625,942 515,533,643
Geographical information ith & & R

The Group's operation of Gaming Distribution Business,
Manufacturing and Sales Business and Property Business are
located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's operation of
Lending Business, Trading Business, Music and Entertainment
Business and Securities Trading Business are located in Hong
Kong.

RERE 2 BRI SHER 5~ BOE M
EXBRODEXHHER BT
BEz - AEEIZHEXY BES
55 BRMREXBUNESRE
BEXBRAETBLE-

Neway Group Holdings Limited  E £ Mz R R D 7
Annual Report 2018 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE_Z— \F+_A=1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location of the

TREFR (&)
wEER (&)

AEEXRBEIBEFZHEEZRE
BIFRBDEECEMDRIREP

customers and assets respectively are set out below: KEEMEMEET T :
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENBEF 2 h# FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E —T-tf —E-N\§ —T-tF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
Hong Kong B 257,927,242 244,837,558 241,874,638 225,561,412
The PRC B 212,724,783 139,952,285 156,342,849 198,426,479
Europe BN 39,016,945 45,446,256 - -
United States E3E] 57,217,365 49,270,510 - -
Others Hity 25,739,607 36,027,034 - -
592,625,942 515,533,643 398,217,487 423,987,891

Note: Non-current assets exclude equity instruments at FVTOCI
(2017: available-for-sale investments).

Information about major customers

There was no customer contributing over 10% of total sales of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018

B FERBEETBEEBEMEEL
ABRAHENRZBEATA (=ZF
—tF I AHEERE) -

FTEFEFEH
REBEE-ZT-N\FER-_FT—tF
T-A=+—HILEE HEX

FEREAEBHEELREES
10% -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Hittsm REE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SN W e (B518) 58 946,511 (678,650)
Change in fair value of investment WEWEZATEES)
properties (note 16) (H1zz16) 10,942,146 20,273,024
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWB AR EE
(note 38) (B1:E38) - (5,396,840)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREHEZ
plant and equipment e F 58 260,845 4,244,150
Gain on Land Swap Transaction (note) LB 5 2 Kz
(B1et) - 46,611,407
Loss recognised in respect of loans to LA F AL R AIER
joint ventures W2 EE (1,391,092) (2,874,868)
Change in fair value in financial assets FBEZIZAFENNEZ
at FVTPL TREEZAFER (36,657,753) -
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #H{EEEHRE 2
investments NTEZE - (19,173,556)
Change in fair value of derivative MTEEMIAZ
financial instrument NEEED) - (2,837,217)
(25,899,343) 40,167,450

Note:

On 17 March 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Qingyuan Hi-tech Zone Management Committee
(the "Committee”) and the Qingyuan government entered
into a compensation agreement and a state-owned land
swap agreement (BB T E#] B E £ ) pursuant to
which the Committee agreed to compensate the subsidiary
of the Company with the amount of Renminbi (“RMB")
45,010,000 (equivalent to HK$52,022,307) in cash together
with certain land use rights located in Qingyuan in exchange
of the deposits for land use rights with carrying amount of
HK$18,161,279, certain construction in progress with carrying
amount of HK$15,144,396 and certain land use rights with
carrying amount of HK$32,576,792 held by the subsidiary of
the Company (the “Land Swap Transaction”). The fair value
of the land use rights located in Qingyuan is RMB52,320,000
(equivalent to HK$60,471,567), which is arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited who
is independent qualified professional valuers not related
to the Group. Accordingly, the Group recognised a gain of
HK$46,611,407 on the Land Swap Transaction.

Wizt

RZE—+F=A+tH ' AQ7
—MEEWNBARRERSFE
ERZEE ([ZEg])) NBEERK
eI — B EHEREA T
ERpaRE B - Z8gRER
ZARBMBAR MBS HE
AR (TARM])45,010,0007T
(#8 & 752,022,30778 7T ) @ R L
RERNE T D E R Ak
ZAREMBRAGAEERAEA
£18,161,2798 L2 LM F F#ERT
% BREEA15,144,3968 T 2 &
FHRETERIRAMER32,576,792
Bz EFLERAE([LHE
B 5]) (IR B RS HFE A
EH QT EAARES2,320,0000T
(HE160,471,56787T) » JhbAL
AEBVEBEZBLSEREE
HEMMXFTHEERAER AR
FrEfT 2 EEBKRESH - Bt
AEER T BRI ZHERR =
46,611,407 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MMERNK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: LATIEB Z2F 8 :
Bank borrowings RITIEE 3,001,532 1,722,244
Amount due to a related company FET — &R R FUIA 94,696 778,046
Obligations under finance leases BERESRT 2,150 8,882
3,098,378 2,509,172
9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EE -THARKEEMS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EENTHRABMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2017: UTAENSERTFLE(ZZ
eleven) directors are as follows: —+tF NMNB)EF 2
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
YrER FYTES BuiynEs EiIEE
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LA LAU
Ka Lun, Chai  Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
BB BEE RAEH i REE ZHE KET At EEE &
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B&n B&n &R B&r B B B B o Br
(note |}
(Hisi)
2018 ZE-N%
Fees s - - 1674 115000 115000 115000 115000 115,000 N R
Other emoluments EthBe
~ Salaries and other benefits -HEREMET 2,292,000 1,368,000 - - - - - - 474115 4,134,115
~Bonus (note 1i) T (st 2887500 346,500 - - - - - - - 323,000
- Contributions to retirement —RIREHEER
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,250 - - - - - 18,000 62,250
Total emoluments fideg 5097500 1732500 164994 115000 115000 115000 115000 115000 49,115 8,162,109
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by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

9. EEX THRHARKEEME

(%%

)

EERITHRARNE (H)

(Continued)
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
EREES FTES BUFHTES g%
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE i LAl LAV
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Cho, WONG NG Wai TSE Kwok Lai Ping, CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Tin Tai Wan Cecily Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
HEB BEE @ R REH ElFe ik EE% FE felgi s @5
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT B BT AT oo AT BT BT BT BT BT
(note |} (note i) (note i) (note v) (note v))
(Hiti) (#itii) (W) (fav) (i)

2017 Bt

Fees kS - - 142500 100000 100000 41667 100000 44167 5222 70000 - 650556

Other emoluments Ethie

- Salaries and other benefits  — %% k& &R 2,134500 1,273,500 - - - - - - - 45239 386039
- Bonus (note i) ~TEAL (i) 1,050,000 315,000 - - - - - - - - - 1,365,000
- Contributions to retiement  — & kB A5t &I

benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 7,500 - - - - - - - 18,000 61,500

Total emoluments HeLs 3202500 1606500 150000 100000 100000 41667 100000 44167 52222 70000 470392 5937448

Notes: Bat -

(i) Mr. Suek Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the 0] BEBELEIRABERRNT ZITHE
Company and his remuneration disclosed above included HOoERENEEZHeEBIER
those for services rendered by him as chief executive. B BITRERFTIRERE 2 S -

(ii) The emoluments of executive directors were for their services (ii) HITEBZHMNIIRESEEARARN
in connection with the management of the affairs of the AR AEENEEATRME 2 RIEE
Company and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive e EMITEERBILIERITES
directors and independent non-executive directors were for ZEHMI B SIEAAN AR ESAT
their services as the directors of the Company. R 2 AR 75 T 35 A o

(iii) Mr. Tse Tin Tai resigned as an independent non-executive (iii) FARBAER_ZT—EFAA—H
director of the Company on 1 June 2017. BEARARAB Y IFNITES-

(iv) Ms. Lui Lai Ping, Cecily retired as an independent non- (iv) BRI _ZE—tFANE
executive director on 9 June 2017. REBIENITES

(v) Mr. Chu Gun Pui was appointed as an independent non- (v) KEWTEENR _ZE—tF A
executive director of the Company on 23 June 2017. T+ =REZAARERRTEILIEHN

TES-

(vi) Mr. Lai Sai Wo, Ricky was appointed as an independent non- (vi) BEMEENR-_ZT—+FMA+TAN
executive director of the Company on 19 April 2017. AEZTAERNRARBILIFNITE

=Ho

(vii) Incentive performance bonuses for the years ended (vii) HE_Z-N\FEE-ZT—+F+=

31 December 2018 and 2017 were determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company and approved by
the board of directors having regard to the performance and
duties of directors.

H=+—HILFEMNRBRIFTA
TRARRFHEE ST TK
BExgits ETEEEEENR
ENSE 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company as an inducement to joint or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office in any of the year.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2017: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2017: three) highest paid employees who
were neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

EE THRABREEMS
(&)
EERTRASHS (H)

RAEE - BEEERITHRAREN
BARBRETMHMN 2 25k

REMBBFE  AEERERK
RAEEMERME - ERIA
AEEFHMAR 2 BB K ER
Lz fE-

BEMS

EARBRARRFALS MA

—E—tF MBA)RBEARAE
S EEFNEZFREHIN X -
Efp=%2 (2T —tF =8)Y
HARBEERITRAHZES

as follows: FATzZBemT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e kEAMmER 3,079,240 3,439,000
Bonus (note) TE4L (K73E) 325,724 162,500

Contributions to retirement RORAE ) FT B4 50

benefits schemes 54,000 54,000
3,458,964 3,655,500

Note: Bonus was determined based on their duties and
responsibilities of the relevant individuals within the Group
and the Group's performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who were not the
directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

EE THRAIBREEMS
(&)
EEMS (8

VIARBEZTZREHEERN
MeBRIATEHE Z AZBRIT:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH BE AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/%8 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T E
2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in any of the years.

WEMEE - AEBERER R AR
SEFALMERBME - ERIA
AEE K NBR 2 BB K ER
1z fE-
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

10. TAXATION 10. BiIHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation comprises: HIEBIE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEHR
Charge for the year AKEZH 1,574,200 1,687,471
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (159,049) -
1,415,151 1,687,471
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI TSR
Charge for the year AKEZH 1,673,941 5,918,521
3,089,092 7,605,992
Deferred tax credit for the year RERIEFIER R
(note 34) (B1:£34) (84,878) (3,463,425)
3,004,214 4,142,567

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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1#8.25% 0 4 - AR 32,000,000
FETTH B0 BIIZ16.5% 1 FE o AT
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i o

KRAREERE  BITMAFIEH
MEFEFML RSB LGS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

22— \F+-_A=+—HIFE
10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. HIE (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit FERRBAEGEBEEEMS
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss U A SR 3R BT B 7 A A ¥ BR
and other comprehensive income as follows: PO
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit before taxation BrEEAT (B4R ) s Al (35,220,301) 52,092,464
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% BTG Z%E16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) AEZMIE
T —+F: 165%) (5.811,350) 8,595,257
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ A #F B 2
for tax purposes M E 2,334,726 1,605,907
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARTWAZ
tax purposes M E (3,045,762) (10,850,045)
Tax effect of tax losses/deductible REBRB KBRS
temporary differences AR EE
not recognised M E 4,157,814 3,742,361
Overprovision in prior years BEFERETR (159,049) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL AIARER
not recognised Mg EE (202,030) (299,642)
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses ~ JE B R AT 75 B8 2
previously not recognised Bxe - (329,015)
Effect of different tax rates of REMARDEERKE Z
subsidiaries operating in other MEARTRABEZ
jurisdictions T 728,625 1,455,040
Tax effect of share of results of DREERRIEREZ
joint ventures M E 1,240 222,704
Tax effect of deferred tax liabilities Ko Beim M A TR
resulting from withholding tax on EENELEREAE
undistributed profits MR E 5,000,000 -
Taxation for the year FRHIE 3,004,214 4,142,567
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. F (F8E) =T
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit for the year has been FTEARE (E1E) & IR
arrived at after charging (crediting): kR (FFA)
Auditor’s remuneration =AM & 2,000,000 1,900,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERARSE 2 FEKAE
expense (including write-down of (BEMRFE
inventories of HK$52,585 (2017: 52,5858 7T
HK$543,411)) —E—tF
543,4117%870) ) 213,110,596 356,859,195
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BEMEEITE
equipment 14,349,985 10,273,310
Less: capitalised in inventories B BARERAFE = (5,901,425)
included in cost of sales FTASHE K (9,265,323)* N/A 38 B
5,084,662 4,371,885
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8/ 78 & 70 8 8 55 1,279,870 1,031,454
Minimum lease payments in respect of WRE/THYEZ
office/factory premises =EHEE 16,589,853 12,540,307
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments 8 TN (215 E EE )
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — e ITENHMET 165,753,655 149,899,872
— Contributions to retirement benefits —RIREFE B
schemes 9,544,501 7,416,030
Less: capitalised in inventories WBRERAZTFE —* (78,907,026)
included in cost of sales T AHE KA (102,824,847)* N/A 713 FR
Total staff costs BB TIRA 72,473,309 78,408,876
Research expenses (included in WX
administrative expenses) (GTATTERAZA) 3,541,487 2,595,935
Bank interest income RITH B A
(included in other interest income) (FFAEH A F) B ARA) (2,366,386) (1,339,407)
Interest income on loan to KEGLTAIHEERES
an available-for-sale investee ZEF BN
(included in other interest income) (FTAEAMF BUWAR) - (593,101)
Technical consultancy services income FEA R AR S WA
(included in other income) (GFAEMUAR) (4,695,170) -
Dividend income g B UA
(included in other income) (GFAEMUAR) (4,667,276) (1,518,823)
Government grants IR 1 B
(included in other income) (sFAEMUAR) (1,267,175) (1,034,443)
Net impairment losses (reversal of BHNEEREEEES
impairment losses) on trade receivables [ Ug 5k I8 (B &5 18 75 28
of impairment losses on contract assets (B {E&518) 11,467,527 (1,150,168)
Net reversal of impairment losses on BEaNEERE
contract assets B8 7 (64,902) -
Gross rental income from investment REEEWMEZ
properties e A B (7.304,238) (6,500,175)
Less: Direct operating expenses B AFEEHESKRAZ
incurred for investment properties REYE B
that generated rental income LERSY
during the year 12,248 9,838
(7,291,990) (6,490,337)

i Upon the application of HKFRS 15, revenue relating to *
manufacturing and sales of printing products were recognised
over time and the relevant expenses were charged to the cost
of sales directly.

RIE & B ERF 155
& BUE R S5 & HIF) & dn 2 Was B
BERF R HERR > MAARIF X B B 3
BRI
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by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12.

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company for the year is based
on the following data:

=)

BE-_ZT-)\f$T-A=1—H
IEFE AR 3 2 3R AT
WS (ZFT—tF %) B
o HA R DA SR IR 4 12 A R B AT AR A

B o
AN

BR(EE)BF

AERARBHEBEABIEERER
(E18) BN Ty E R LT BURR

-

2018 2017
—B-N\E —EF—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable ~ AR ESRER (HE)
to owners of the Company for the ¥ |y N/NSIET ZS N
purpose of calculating basic (loss) FEIE AR (BHR) &M
earnings per share (37,922,569) 48,145,604
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Number of ordinary shares in issue for R ETEFRER (EE)
the purpose of calculating basic (loss) & Fl~ B 31T
earnings per share g tilice gE! 253,639,456 253,639,456

No separate diluted (loss) earnings per share information has
been presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding issue for both years.

R R EF E I B\ EITEINZ
BELTBE RUEB Y 25|EHK
g (R BN 2B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. NE - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
Construction land and Leasehold and office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
BELE HE  BREER
ERIR REF VES BAERE BERRE "E @
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT AL BT BT BT
CosT RE
At 1 January 2017 W_Z—+%-f-8 15,566,137 150,515,601 59,734,135 44810185 454,682,884 14370306 739,679,248
Exchange adjustments ERHE 517,325 6,227,410 458,744 2,607,473 4,319,768 93,866 14,224,586
Additions HE - - 2,723,408 2,595,310 7,566,385 743,494 13,628,597
Transfer BE (939,066) 939,066 - - - - -
Disposals LE - - - (232,375) (3,421,091) (198,000) (3,851,466)
Disposal upon Land Swap Transaction R+t B X 55 HE (15,144,39%) - - - - - (15,144,39%)
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE
(note 16) (Bft16) - (10,319,925) - - - - (10,319,925)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—t£+ZA=1-H - 147362152 62,916,287 49780593 463,147,946 15,009,666 738,216,644
Exchange adjustments EHBE (312,682) - (927,360) (357,997) (6,250,505) (144,609) (7,993,153)
Additions RE 8,773,065 - 13,804,720 2,172,935 22,045,475 1,095,827 47,982,022
Disposals HE - - - (549,509) (4,701,550) - (5,251,059)
Reclassified as held for sale BN BAREHE
(note 36) (Hiit36) - (126,255,706) - - - - (126,255,706)
Written-off HisE - - (18,056,093) - - - (18,056,093)
At 31 December 2018 WZE-N\F+=A=1-H 8,460,383 21,106,446 57,827,554 51,046,022 474,241,366 15960,884 628,642,655
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT REREE
At 1 January 2017 i e R - 50,488,595 59,249,720 43449875 438,593,051 11,676,842 603,458,083
Exchange adjustments EHEE - 1,604,089 326,130 1,347,137 1,177,746 41,285 4,496,387
Provided for the year rEHE - 3,870,437 1,050,513 1,061,033 3,289,682 1,001,645 10,273,310
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - - (207,582) (3,421,091) (198,000) (3,826,673)
Transfer to investment properties BREREANE
(note 16) (Hit1e) - (1,596,909) - - - - (1,596,909)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+5+=A=1-H - 54,366,212 60,626,363 45650463 439,639,388 12,501,772 612,804,198
Exchange adjustments [E 5 R - - (394,014) (139,895) (2,197,196) (90,531) (2,821,636)
Provided for the year REEE - 1,944,348 4,190,165 2,459,258 4,580,611 1,175,603 14,349,985
Eliminated on disposals LERHH - - - (415,481) (449,257) - (864,738)
Reclassified as held for sale BNAEABERE
(note 36) (Hits6) - (45,956,902) - - - - (45,956,902)
Eliminated on written-off gl ap - - (18,056,093) - - - (18,056,093)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+=A=1-H - 10,353,658 46,366,421 47554345 441,573,546 13,606,844 559,454,814
CARRYING VALUES RAEE
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\§+=A=+-H 8,460,383 10,752,788 11,461,133 3,491,677 32,667,820 2,354,040 69,187,841
At 31 December 2017 R=F-+F+-A=+-A - 92,995,940 2,289,924 4,130,130 23,508,558 2,487,894 125,412,446
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than

construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

14. W% -BERFRE (F)

FpE BERREER (i
TREBIN 2 BN RANTEE
B R B

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease MELR R BR30ZE505F
terms or 30 — 50 years Ex (ARBEBE)
Leasehold improvements 12.5% - 20% MEMEEE  125%-20%
Furniture, fixtures and office ~ 10% — 25% GRCEER  10%-25%
equipment MAERE
Machinery and equipment 10% - 25% %%ﬁ&‘“ﬁ 10% - 25%
Motor vehicles 25% - 33'% E 25% - 33 5%
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—tF
HKS HKS$
BT BT
The carrying values of leasehold THEL W EEFY
land and buildings shown above FEEHERE:
comprise:
Leasehold land and buildings in UREBEBzHE
Hong Kong THRIEF 10,752,788 11,174,918
Buildings in the PRC AR ZEF - 81,821,022
10,752,788 92,995,940

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$10,752,788 (2017: HK$11,174,918) has been
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (2017: banking facilities granted to the Group
and obligations under finance leases).

Leasehold improvements with an aggregate cost of
HK$41,449,182 (2017: HK$60,173,029) were fully depreciated
are still in use as at 31 December 2018.

At 31 December 2017, the carrying values of motor vehicles
included an amount of HK$370,885 in respect of assets held
under finance leases.

BREEA $£10,752,7888 7T (—
T—+F:11,174,918F L) 2!
¥ BELREDEGETRT 1E
BAEEERZ —MRIBITEERE (=
T—tF AEEERZETEE
MEEREEMT) 2T

B AR & $£41,449,1825% 7t (=
—+%:60,173, 029,%75>E’ﬁﬂ
EVMEREEREITE TR =
T-NFE+-_A=1+—B1NARE
ﬁﬁo

RZE—+HF+=-A=+—8H"
RENEREEDERES MBERE
HERHB 2 EE 2 3KFE370,885%5

ﬁc
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. EFNEHEMRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The Group's prepaid lease REEZEMNEE
payments comprise: HIEBLE:
Leasehold land in the PRC URPEzZEEL 57,921,324 64,789,408
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBMEREDITR:
Current asset mEBEE 1,191,528 1,345,094
Non-current asset FERBEE 56,729,796 63,444,314
57,921,324 64,789,408

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has an
addition to prepaid lease payments as a result of Land Swap
Transaction with details in note 7.

The carrying amount of the leasehold land is charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. BREWE

HK$
BT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+tF—H—H 190,125,000
Transfer from property, EREME BELHR
plant and equipment 18,094,881
Fair value change recognised RiERERZ AT EE
in profit or loss 20,273,024
Exchange adjustments ME 8 672,974
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-_A=+—8H 229,165,879
Fair value change recognised RiERERZ AT EE
in profit or loss 10,942,146
Exchange adjustments 0E i & (908,615)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-NF+-A=+—H 239,199,410
Unrealised gain on property revaluation 82 R EMIiBzEAH
included in other gains and losses *";“EE%%E%W
— for the year ended —BE_Z-N\F
31 December 2018 TZA=1t—BLLHE 10,942,146
— for the year ended —BE_T—LF
31 December 2017 TZA=+—HILFE 20,273,024
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the use of certain REBEZ_ZE—+F+_A=+—

premises of the Group have been changed from owner-
occupation to leasing out for rental income. The properties
with carrying amount of HK$8,723,016 are transferred from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties and
the fair value of the properties was HK$18,094,881 at the
date of transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the properties of HK$9,371,865 is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
“properties valuation reserve”.

BIEFE 1‘5‘%. S FENRR
2l EANAeDHEABERES K
A BRI {E8,723,016/8 T HI W) 3

Y% BB MR {%L%iﬁém
X MR QFEREEE A

18,094,881/ T ° %%Eﬁ@ﬁéﬁi
TEBRZER9,371,8658 TN A
e Gk N S E
Ef#EE] PRS-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of investment properties has been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited and Citiland Surveyors Limited for properties located
in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively
and Jb RN & E R AR & £ 2 A for properties located
in the PRC at date of transfer and as at 31 December 2018
and 2017. They are independent qualified professional valuers
not related to the Group.

Investment properties with fair value of HK$116,199,410
(2017: HK$110,165,879) as at 31 December 2018 are
determined based on the direct comparison approach
assuming sale of each of these properties in existing state
and by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market and adjusted for differences in
the nature and location.

Investment properties with fair value of HK$123,000,000
(2017: HK$119,000,000) as at 31 December 2018 are
determined based on the income capitalisation approach,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties
are assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The market rentals are
assessed based on estimates of future cash flows, supported
by the terms of existing lease and the market rentals of the
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
is determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use. At
the end of the reporting period, the financial controller works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs into the model.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to management
of the Group.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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BREWZE (&)

WEME N EIRIE ST E
BRI RKENEMITIHAR
BEENVESIR_ZT—NFR
—E—+HF+-_A=+—HHNIE
EFTETHEE R RTSINE
EFEARETRAAMRMAREH
WEREZEER T~ N\F
M=—F—+F+=_RA=+—HH®
BEMETHHESL - ZE QT
HAEAEAEETBEBENBE LS
BN EEGER -

RZE—NF+ZA=+—HZ
NFEAE116,199,4108 T (= F
—+4F:110,165,87978 7T ) 2 %
BEYEDREBRLELET  B&F
BEREZSEYELRBREE  TEL
EZREHES LA B2 A &R
EXGURRME RUEZEZRE
R -

RZE—NF+_A=+—H2Z
N1 A123,000,0008 0 (==
—+%:119,000,000% 7T) 2 &
BEYETIRWABERCEETE @ AT
EYENHBEEMATISESIR
RIEEEHZEANYENTEERD
S R TRME R ALIR - TS
EREBERARRERETABETT
- I LAIR AT E TR T 3T 48
LENTERSEFER - EANL
ENBDESMBUMEHER S
SHRBEEEE TEERYE
CEENMISTERETHAE Uk
MAEERENENBERZ -

REFRENEZATFER A
EYEzsRSARERENRE
ERIME - NEHR MHARE
BN A ERGEMEES
EE R BOHERMEEAE
ZHE - WEEN A FELRER
2E) HRaAKEEIEEBERKNE
FY R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

BREWMZE (&
ERAEARTAHREAREZ
NFEFEZEHR
TRINFEEREME R FER
158 P At (B £ ol B (B A8 =X AP P (8
A2 N BsRE ARR -

Inter relationship between
significant unobservable

Fair value  Valuation Significant Range of significant inputs and fair value

Description Fair value as at hierarchy  techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs measurement

EXTURERAEA

#i AYE ATEER  HERE EXFURRBARE EXTURRBABBEE  AVEFEZENREBE

31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
RZE-N§  R-T—+tF “E-N\F “E-tF
tZA=t-B +ZA=t+-H
HKS HKS
o B
Industrial properties in 99,710,000 92,195,000  Level3 Direct comparison (i) Based on market HK$2,927 to HK$2,845t0  The higher the market price,
Fanling, Hong Kong approach observable transactions HK$4,144 per HK$3,795 per the higher the fair value.
of comparable square feet square feet
properties
REAREZIENZ 99,710,000 9,195000 EZHB  EELHE () BRETHEMEZ RS BIAR mERE ATEAR-
GEREEST) 29278 E 2855
[RUTY: 8 3,795
(i) Level adjustments 0% to 4% 0% to 4% The increase/decrease in
level adjustment/location
adjustment, the higher or
lower the fair value.
i) HBlAE 0%Z4% 0%%4% arae/iEREes/
8 ATEAR/DE.
(iii) - Location adjustments 0% to 4% 0% to 4%
(ii) frERE 0%%4% 0%Z4%
Properties in the PRC 16,489,410 17,970,879 Level 3 Direct comparison () Based on market RMB73,378 to RMB84,661t0  The higher the market price,
approach observable transactions  RMB88,519 per  RMB85,752 per  the higher the fair value.
of comparable square meter  square meter
properties
L B % 16,489,410 179708719 F=M5  ERLEE () BETLENZZ BYAX BYAK mEeR ATEAR-
MHAIBER S %\E#‘B,mi QE#}SA,BWE
E=
AR®88519T AR5, 7521
(i) Level adjustments 0% to 1% 0% t0 1% The increase/decrease in
level adjustment/location
adjustment, the higher or
lower the fair value.
i) RplAE 0%Z1% 0%Z1% gRmE/NEREES/
AE RTEDS/BE-
(iii) - Location adjustments 1% to 2% 0% to 1%
(i) frEHE 1%%£2% 0%Z1%

Commercial properties 123,000,000 119,000,000 Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 4% 4% The lower the capitalisation
in Yuen Long, approach taking into account the rate, the higher the fair
Hong Kong capitalisation of market value.

rental value
RERTAZERNE 123,000,000 119000000 E=HA  WAER(LE () EREE 4% 4% BRI EBE RTERR-
GIATEESEE
0EKL)
(i) Market rental value HK$34 to HK$40 to The higher the market rental
HK$89 per HK$76 per value, the higher the
square feet square feet fair value.
(i) mEHeEE BIAR mEReERES
WELE W0ETE ATERR:
89T 168
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

16.

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties are located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties with
aggregate carrying value of HK$222,710,000 (2017:
HK$211,195,000) were pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings as stated in note 32 and general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

16.

17.

BREYE (&)
AEBREMETDN AN EE R T
B o ANt [ ph BRER A & S A
miREELREREZMENE
RETARTEERNE - W55
RERBREMENK-

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—8"
48 BRI {8222,710,00008 7T (=&
—+%;211,195,000 7t) 2 %
BEYHEBEWFIRIT EAMGFE
2 IRITTIER R A EEER 2
—RIBITEEER

ZERHEHMEEBAZRAF
BIRZBRATR EB
BERZAFEIERzER
BE
EZBHME2EBRAKERAFES
RZBRATH

2018
—2-NF
HK$
BT
Unlisted equity securities established in the PRC ~ 7AFR Bk 32 2 3F _E TR AN 75 55
(note i) (Hteti) 14,679,744
Unlisted equity securities established RES PR REINLLZ
in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas (note i) Ik EMBRAE S (B ati) 11,573,728
26,253,472
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEABDTA:
Non-current asset JEMENE E 11,573,728
Current asset MENE E 14,679,744
26,253,472
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL 17.

ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group has an obligation to
dispose of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary which holds
16.67% equity interest in Yinghua in cash in the future.
The disposal of Yinghua is expected to be completed within
one year from the end of the reporting period and thus this
equity investment at FVTOCI is classified as current asset as
at 31 December 2018. Yinghua is principally engaged in the
property development in the PRC.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was an
additional investment of HK$3,134,800 in an unlisted equity
security established in overseas. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group has investments in six unlisted equity securities
established in the PRC, two unlisted equity securities
established in overseas and one unlisted equity security
incorporated in Hong Kong which were held for an identified
long term strategic purpose.

These investments in equity instruments are not held for
trading. Instead, they are held for medium to long-term
strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit
or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of
holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising
their performance potential in the long run.

Details of the fair value measurement on equity instruments at
FVTOCI are disclosed in note 44.

ERHEMEERARAF
BEIRZBRATH EB
BRBRAFEIIRZ R
EE (&)

ERHMEEBARDFET
RZBRATA (&)

At

(i) R-ZE—-N\E+-_A=+—H &«
EEEEANARLERERER
HE H916.67 %R AN 2= M B 2
BHBARIAREES - BERE
B ETE AR RS RET —FR
A EL - RIBEBEMEEI
ABEAFEVENRAEER =
—N\E+-A=+—BHEAR
BE - REEMEFZNPEKEE
ek

(i) REZE-ZE—N\F+=-A=+—
BIEFE A BYEEIKIL
B3 £ T IR AN FE S5 TR Z BB MR
#3,134,8008 LR =T — \F
+—A=+—8 AEEHETEH
R MARIFELTRAZES 18
INK ST YRR FE_E TR AR 7B 55 R
BB —RIEETRRAE
FETIRE RS REDRHBER
EM KRR AR

ZEBRANTARELFFIEE
B HR - BEFDFEF KRR
A Bt ARBEFDEERES
ZERATARERERBEBE
2 ERARA AR RES
BERR ERZFRENERR
RN FENEHESHEAEE
REEBNBAEZERERER
HERBERANORE AR -

BEBEEBRAZRFEINRZ K
ATAEZ AFEFEFBRIE
A4 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL 17.

ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

ZEHMEEBARLF
BEIRZBRATH EB
BREATFEIRZSH®
EE (&)
EBERBRAFEIERNESR
BE

2018
—E-N\E
HK$
BT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong REBZ FTRARE 81,244,200
Derivative financial instrument (note) TSR T A (F:7) 6,651,180

87,895,380

Note: Derivative financial instrument represents the Group's
obligation to dispose of the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
which holds 16.67% equity interest in Yinghua in the future.
Such forward contract is classified as financial asset at FVTPL in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Details of the fair value measurement on financial assets at
FVTPL are disclosed in note 44.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018

He: STHEERMTAEALSEAREER
RREERFBRERME6.67%
RAERNEEEZEWNB R RIAR
BE S - BERHEORIEE LY
BIRELRBFEE DB AABIER
BRAFEINENGREE -

BBRBREAFEINENSRE
EZ A EEFBRHE44H

5= o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

18. AHHERE

2017
—T—tF
HK$
T
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AREERERE:
Club membership gMgE 3,403,700
Unlisted equity securities established REBKTZAFESEZ
in the PRC measured at fair value FELEMBRAES 14,192,719
Unlisted equity securities established A B S IR AR E 2
in the PRC measured at cost (note) JEETRARES (HaE) 12,007,685
Unlisted equity securities established MNEB KBNS RKATTE 2
in Hong Kong and overseas measured I ETRAE
at cost (note) (i) 9,459,163
39,063,267
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEABRDTA:
Current asset MENEE 14,192,719
Non-current asset EMBEE 24,870,548
39,063,267

Note: As at 31 December 2017, the Group has investments in six

unlisted equity securities issued by private entities which

were held for an identified long term strategic purpose.

The available-for-sale investments are measured at cost less

impairment at the end of the reporting period because the

ranges of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant that

the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair

values cannot be measured reliably.

Wiz RZFE—tF+-A=+—H &
SERENHMLAERETHN/NIA
JELMRARS  WiFHFIEERA
RERIEA®E - AT SR E TR
AR SRS RRREFTE R
ARABLAFEMEHEEAR ©
RAREERRENTETEASE
HEtE e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was an
additional investment of HK$3,114,400 in an unlisted equity
security established in overseas. Also, the Group subscribed
for 8.27% of the total issued share capital of an unlisted
equity issued by a private entity incorporated in Hong Kong,
which is principally engaged in E-sports business at a cash
consideration of HK$391,500.

On 5 May 2017, the Group disposed of an investment in an
unlisted equity securities established in Hong Kong through
disposal of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 38.

19. CONTRACT ASSETS

18. Tt

Hiat -

HERE (F)

(#8)

RBEZZT—+F+A=+—
HIEFE B —EHEEINKIE
EEMRAFHRMIEZBINEGE
3,114,400 7T - N & B IR AR €
R {E391,5008 T RE—HRES
AR RLA B RATEITRIE L
MIREDBITIRANBTE 28.27%
ZERIENBE I REES-

R-ZZE—tFHARE AEEE
BEE—BHBARHE —ERE
BRRHIELTRABFNIRE
(R sE38ATINEE) ©

19. EHEE

31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
—g-N% —T-N\F
+=A=+—H —AF—B*
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contract assets from Manufacturing BE RIEEEBH
and Sales Business GHEE 15,938,099 19,071,183
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEEEE (218,921) (283,823)
15,719,178 18,787,360
& the amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the * REM 2 & BEASJEFH &R TR &

application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

19.

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

The contact assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration from the customers for the manufacturing and
sales of printing products. Contract assets arisen when the
Group has right to consideration for the work completed
under relevant contracts and their right is conditioned on
factors other than passage of time. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables upon the delivery and
acceptance of products by customers.

Typical payment terms is 60 to 120 days upon delivery.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle which is within 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.

Detail of the impairment assessment are set out in note 44.

19.

BREE (&)

BHEETZABASEMRRE NN
EHRIE mAE P WK EZ#ER -
BREENASEARINGREBRR
BRMERTENRE BREFNE
A Z8 DA By 7T 44 A S ) [ 25 7 16k £ B
EE AHNEERTEPRMNEEME
B E R E 8 5 B UGRR -

— e IR AR 605120 -
AREHREAOEESBARDHE
B REAAEEEMAESEEE
1 (s BRE+—EAR) %S
BESR -

BB R R B TR Y R 444 B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

20. LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN 20. HTFEEQARAZER R
JOINT VENTURES BERTAZER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Costs of investments RIELTEERRZ
in unlisted joint ventures B R 16 16
Share of post-acquisition profit and R BRI &
other comprehensive income Hab2mEKA 413,734 421,252
413,750 421,268
Loan to Reliance Partner Limited 4 FReliance Partner
("Reliance Partner”) (note i) Limited ( [Reliance
Partner | ) 2
R (HEti) 3,215,059 3,874,009
Loan to Estate Summit Limited 45 F Estate Summit Limited
("Estate Summit”) (note ij) ([Estate Summit]) >
B (Hetii) 13,945,477 12,554,385
Share of post-acquisition losses and B EEBER
other comprehensive expense HE2mEEX (4,411,177) (4,411,177)
Loss recognised (note i) EHEREE (W ati) (9,534,300) (8,143,208)
3,215,059 3,874,009
Less: Amount repayable within B MBIV E EIE TR
one year shown BR—FRNERZ
under current asset ok (3,215,059) (3,874,009)
Amount repayable after one year BER—FREECSE - -
Notes: B
(i) Loan to Reliance Partner is classified as current assets as the (i) R=ZZE—N\F+_A=+—8"#%
directors of the Company consider that the loan will be repaid FReliance PartnerZ ERE D85
within twelve months as at 31 December 2018. TEEE REARAATESRA
FHERERt-_EARNEE-
(ii) Loan to Estate Summit is considered as a net investment, (ii) 45 T Estate Summity B R 2 A
the Group has recognised its share of loss of Estate Summit EFRE R_E—N\Ek_ZF
in excess of the cost of investment against its loan as at —+F+-_A=+—H AEBE
31 December 2018 and 2017. During the year ended MR E (b ZEstate SummitiE 8
31 December 2018, the Group has recognised loss of BENEERNEER RN -BE -
HK$1,391,092 (2017: HK$2,874,868) for the loan to a joint Z—N\F+-_A=+—BHILFE"
venture. AEBCHRLETEAERTZE
1,391,028 L (=T —+
412,874,868 7T) °
Details of impairment assessment of loan to a joint venture for HEz - N\F+=—_H=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 44. I FELETEE RN ZETHIR

BRFA BRI M 5244 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

20. LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN

JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

RTEERAZER R
BEQFzER (&)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in N_E-NERER_ZETE—+tF+=
the following joint ventures: A=+—8" $%.E/\J¢(—I—/\M/E\
AL
Proportion of
Form of Principal nominal value
business Country of place of of issued capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
153 EBERIR ERRIER IEEERY BRTRAAELH FrEREELA IBER
2017 2018 2017
ZF-tE 8-\ -1
% % %
Reliance Partner Limited! Incorporated Anguilla Hong Kong 50 50 50 Investment holding
Fidifz g REN Bk REZR
Estate Summit Incorporated British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 50 50 50 Office sub-leasing at Hong Kong
("BVI")
iz ARENEE B REBETHAZHE

Summarised financial information of material joint

venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance

with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method

in these consolidated financial statements.

Estate Summit

ERGERAZHBERBE

AEBEAAGLERRIZHBER
BMESINT - LT BERSE
&%h%é%@?ﬁ”%%%%
WEEARBE VM BREIT®
%E°

RIULFHGEEMBERERA  ZEAE
NCIDENCE: 35 PN

Estate Summit

2018 2017
—2-N\% Tt

HK$ HK$

5%775 /%TE

Non-current assets ERBEE = 2,011,912
Current assets MEEE 3,363,168 2,775,721
Current liabilities mEBAE (15,311,757) (13,609,986)
Net liabilities BEFE (11,948,589) (8,822,353)
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

20. LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
venture (Continued)

Estate Summit (Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

20.

»W

A
(=)

EXE
(&)

ENRIZER R
Bl (&)

ENAZUBENRE

Estate Summit (&)
R EENEBBESEBE TS

following: 18 :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash and cash equivalents HWehReEE 1,824,778 1,577,157
Current financial liabilities mBTREE
(excluding trade and (TEREESHR
other payables and provisions) HoAth B S FRIE M B AE) 13,919,389 12,554,585
Income A 4,419,266 3,666,478
Loss for the year FEEE (3,126,236) (2,692,682)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss 2 F& 7 #E A FE (5 &5 18 (1,563,118) -
The above loss for the year includes the following: FiiAREEEESEATIEAE
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Depreciation of property, W BEREEBETE
plant and equipment 919,341 1,195,017
Impairment of property, W BB R ERERE
plant and equipment 1,092,571 -
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by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLLFE

20. LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES/INTERESTS IN 20. HFEERTZER R
JOINT VENTURES (Continued) e A 1 2R (F)
Summarised financial information of material joint EASENTIZHBERHME
venture (Continued) (#&)

Estate Summit (Continued) Estate Summit (#&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information ot B & & R E B R Estate
to the carrying amount of the interest in Estate Summit: Summith & 2 AR H B 18R -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net liabilities of Estate Summit Estate Summit& & F A (11,948,589) (8,822,353)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 75 B 7 Estate Summit 2
interest in Estate Summit wmAEREERL 50% 50%
Group's share of net liabilities of 7 = [ JE {5 Estate Summit
Estate Summit ZBEFHE (5,974,295) (4,411,177)
Aggregate information of joint venture that is not BRI FERZEE QT
individually material & ¥
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The Group's share of loss AREBEGHER 7,518 3,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. BE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+4F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 20,053,326 14,539,020
Work in progress RS = 3,216,232
Finished goods SUPK o 12,456,827 24,796,679
32,510,153 42,551,931
During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain finished RNEEZ-_ZE—N\F+=—_B=1+—
goods were damaged and as a result, a write-down of HIFEE ET8KmEEE-
inventories of HK$52,585 (2017: HK$543,411) has been It B HERT & MOR52,585% 7T
recognised and included in cost of sales in the current year. TE—tF 5434118 ) W
FFARFEEHHEK A o
22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 22. FEREHRYWE
SALE
HK$
BT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—A—ANEEE 42,309,793
Exchange differences MEH ZE 3,041,923
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-_A=+—HMNERE 45,351,716
Exchange differences PEH =% (2,026,500)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\F+-_A=+—BWEEE 43,325,216
The properties under development for sale of the Group are REBZHFEBRRTYWELMNF
situated on the land located in the PRC. Bz L3 ko
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by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B=E

22,

- \F+-_A=+—RHILFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

The properties under development for sale are developed on
the land in the PRC owned by [EE&EM R EEMERZEAER
NE] ("REEHE"), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. On 18 June 2014, FIITTHERREEFRER A
A (" EBE"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the immediate holding company of #)& B, initiated
civil proceedings against F/EFHE in the RIITELE AR
JABT (“People’s Court of Baoan District”) for the repayment of
the shareholder’s loan owing by # £ 5% of RMB23,479,330.
On 19 June 2014, pursuant to an application made by A
E @B to freeze and preserve assets of F/EEME in the
total value of RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the
People’s Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the
lands owned by #/5FE#E during the period from 24 June
2014 to 23 June 2016 (“Freeze Order”).

On 15 October 2014, the Group received the civil
mediation document (R=EF#EE ) issued by the People’s
Court of Baoan District that (i) both #EEH#E and the
Group confirmed the shareholder’s loan was in sum of
RMB23,479,330; (i) F)/EFEHE agreed to repay to £
B% the sum of RMB23,479,330 together with the interests
accrued from 18 June 2014 until the date of repayment
within 15 days after the effective date of the civil mediation
document (i.e. 15 October 2016); and (iii) if F/5 = HE fails
to repay the amount stated in (ii) in full on time, the Group
has the right to request F)EFEHIE to pay default interests
calculated at two times of the lending rate of the People’s
Bank of China over the same period.

On 27 May 2016, the Group received the assistance execution
notice (BN # T AIE ) issued by the People’s Court of
Baoan District to freeze and preserve the land owned by /&
[E #5Z during the period from 13 June 2016 to 12 June 2019
(the “Updated Freeze Order”).

22.

GTERXRTYWE (F)

BERERTPWERBBEMAE
EHERZEAR AR ([FEEH
El ARBIZIEZENRBLAF)
R EERZ T FBRE -
T—mEXA+NAH FITHEF
EEREEZRREBRAR ([FE
B AREZ2EMBRAR R
FEEHEZHEEERAR)M
EBEEXPERBRZBRRERA
R #23,479,330 LA AT E &
BARZER (BEREARZER])
U ERMERIRERD R
—E-—UEASA+T LB EER
EFRBBZRENRRERBEEL
EEEA £ AR%23,400,0007C
2EE BLXBARZERES B
—E-NMESAZFTNHEAE-Z
—RNERAZT=ZBHRERE X
REFREFHERS 2 L ([R

w<l) e

RZE—NWF+A+RHEH XK
B U B TR ARER T
JREFABRE NBBORBE
HERASELHERRRER R
ANER#23,479,3307T: (iVFI/EE
HEERERESAMELER
HERBISR (Bl —RE+ A
+HH)RNAFERKEE AR
23,479,3307T ' BRI T —OF
NATN\BREERBHIERET
2 F B K (i fis #E B E R e
R EHEE()TE 2 FIE « IR
SEEREKRFERHESTNE
W B 2R TyiRE—HEFEA
RIETEENE ZMEFTE-

R-E—XRFRA-++H K
EEWRHBELTRAREREL
WIBBRITRANE LR T —X
EXNAT=AE_ZE-NE~A
T - RHEERERREFRBEEL
EREZ T ([BFERES]) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BH=E

22,

23.

“E-N\F+ZA=t—HIFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 22. SEERDBPYE (&)
SALE (Continued)
At the date of this report, the shareholder’s loan has not yet RARE HE REEIE ™K
been settled by /& EHE. In the opinion of the directors of BEIREER - ANRREERLE
the Company, the Updated Freeze Order is for the purpose of FHRESEERERER 2 #
securing the Group's rights and to ensure that F/&FEMIE has T RPEEHEREZENEE
sufficient assets to repay the shareholder’s loan to the F1 £ B mPE2EKREERRER Bt
2% . Therefore, the directors of the Company considered there KA EERAEGTERRPYE
is no impairment on both the properties under development EREEZERE . h B
for sale and the shareholder’s loan. 1 2F15% can withdraw AR EDER L EER R ERIED
the court order for the repayment of the shareholder’s loan MBS REBBRELTR ARKER
and then release the Updated Freeze Order from the People’s BHRHEFRGES P EBREDA
Court of Baoan District at any time and A 2BI5% remains THIBPERME HABRRRERE
in control over FEREME as its operation other than the HOEFTHEA T EREEEIN B
construction on the land owned by /& E 1 E is not affected B RESKETRESHE
by the Freeze Order or the Updated Freeze Order. %o
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 23. HEEERE

2017

—ET—+F

HK$

BT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB LMRAES 107,374,656
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 24, EZRHEMBWRIE- BN
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS HREBEBURET S
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables =Y A ENEE 163,487,237 155,249,460
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEEEE (16,430,691) (3,127,071)
147,056,546 152,122,389
Receivables with brokers’ houses KD 1T R IR 634,093 23,277,909
Deposits and other receivables A& R H Ath fE GRIA 7,244,996 10,065,553
Other tax recoverable H b a] Y B 75 18 3,436,230 4,974,956
Prepayments TERT IR 13,412,360 9,726,075
171,784,225 200,166,882
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBMEREITR:
Current assets mEEE 167,372,625 200,166,882
Non-current assets IEREBEE 4,411,600 -
171,784,225 200,166,882

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$147,056,546 and HK$152,122,389, respectively.

The Group's credit terms on Manufacturing and Sales Business
and Trading Business generally range from 60 to 90 days.
Credit period of 120 days is granted to a few customers
from the Manufacturing and Sales Business with whom the
Group has a good business relationship and who are in sound
financial condition. The Group allows an average credit period
of 60 to 90 days to its customers of Music and Entertainment
Business. The following is an ageing analysis of the trade
receivables net of allowance for credit losses presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

RZFE—-N\F+-_A=+—HBK
—E-)\F—HA—H EBKEFAE
#E ZFIED B A147,056,54678
7T %152,122,389/8 7T, ©

REBZBIEUMIEEEBLE
SEBZZEHR — K A60290
He VEEAERERTEBFBRE
BB BARRRT 2 8ENREE
(¥BEFPAZEEERRI1208 -
AEBEZSRNIREEBRRPZ
EEHRFH A60ZE90H AT
ARREBHRBEZZEAHZ
2ESEKFE(ENBREES
B)ERE DT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-ZT—

24,

NF+ZA=+—RHILtFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

24,

BZ RHEMEBKE

RIE - TR

REURTE (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business and ~ ®i& & 5 E 25 &
Trading Business: BHER:
0 — 30 days 0% 30H 76,230,986 68,616,555
- 60 days 31260H 36,395,013 36,088,683
61 — 90 days 61%£90H 24,413,368 17,694,689
Over 90 days im0 H 7,817,443 26,024,733
144,856,810 148,424,660
Music and Entertainment Business: FRR IRLELETE
0 — 30 days 0% 30H 1,379,153 2,093,211
- 60 days 31260H 245,948 932,720
- 90 days 61%£90H 24,136 144,096
Over 90 days HB3E90H 550,499 527,702
2,199,736 3,697,729
Total trade receivables B S EWGRIEREE 147,056,546 152,122,389

Trade receivables of approximately HK$32,481,000 (2017:

RZE—-NF+_A=+—8BK

—tF+-_A=+—H8" A"
%’732 481,000 T (ZE—+F:
1,951,000&%7E)Zi2ﬁ171 0007 7T
2B ZRWGIES BIAZETT ([
ED&AE%% S R EE
WIEREEER ZNEE -

HK$1,951,000) were denominated in United States dollars
("USD") as at 31 December 2018 and approximately
HK$171,000 were denominated in RMB as at 31 December
2017, the currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities.
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HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

24,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$8,367,942 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$2,038,551
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default. With reference to the historical records, past
experience and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information to those customers, the directors
of the Company do not consider these receivables as credit-
impaired as these customers have a good business relationship
with the Group and recurring overdue records of these
customers with satisfactory settlement history.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$26,552,435, which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the trade receivables and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables with carrying
amount of HK$125,569,954 are neither past due nor impaired.
The Group considers that the amounts are recoverable because
the counterparties have the best credit scoring attributable
under the internal credit scoring system used by the Group
based on good repayment records by the counterparties.

24,

BEZ R EMERRIR - M
RIEURET & (&)

RZE—N\F+=—_A=+—8H"
REBZE SR IBELE S - B
FEBR T 42 %88,367,94278 7T 2 FEUK
I ZERWFUERRERRE
B Ao fEM HA A #2 P 0 2,038,551
BT DB H0B s A £ B 3E
BREEL K2EZERFNESE
i BAKBRUL T ESHAIE
MEEREBEREEER  KRARES
WA REZEERBGREE HBE
BRE RRAZEREFHEALH
MERITEREER BZERFH
KEEBERSRPBEERTCHR
A8 o

R—ZZE—+tF+=-_A=+—8"
REB 2 E SHRWGIES  BIEER
TH 42 %826,552,4357% 7T 2 FE WL X
B ZERBGUERREHARES
B BARSKEVERLRBEBRES
BEE RAREHEE S EKFUR
JEEERWESAEE) BE@
SIBNHEAR AR UL E o 786 [F I &
MRFHEBFEEME RS-

R-_E—+F+_A=+—8"
BRTE{E A125,569,954/8 T E 5
FEWGIERT AR B B - TR ARIB(E o A
EEREZEFIAENKE - REZ
HFHEEREEETS  ZTR
TR EAREBFERZASEE
FREFILZEF LT 2 R ERT
BREE -

Neway Group Holdings Limited £ KMz R BR D 7

Annual Report 2018 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired

B RHEARBWREIE  FEN
MEURETT £ (&)

C 8 8B R E 2 B 5 FE WK
TH 2 BR R

2017
—E—+F
HK$
BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business and BLERIHE RN
Trading Business: B 5%
91 - 180 days 91%180H 24,682,737
181 — 365 days 1812365H 1,341,996
Music and Entertainment Business: FEE R IR
91 — 180 days 91%180H -
181 — 365 days 181%2365H 527,702
Total FEE 26,552,435
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REERE & T
2017
—E—+F
HK$
BT
Balance at beginning of the year FYHEH 4,336,405
Impairment losses recognised on receivables FLEWGRIBRER 2 R EE 18 1,268,862
Impairment losses reversed o (B BT 18 B [m) (2,419,030)
Written off as uncollectible A 71~ BT Y 2] T H 88 (124,951)
Exchange realignment b i, 58 5 65,785
Balance at end of the year FRES 3,127,071

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of approximately HK$3,127,071 which
have been in severe financial difficulties in repaying their
outstanding balances. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

B=E

24,

25.

- \F+-_A=+—RHILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 24, EZRHEMBWRIE- BN
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) REURT® (#)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREE2EH (&)
(Continued)
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other BHE-_T—)\&+Z-HA=+—HLt
receivables and deposits for the year ended 31 December FENE Z RHAEUERIENAKRET
2018 are set out in note 44. & MRER G F BN E44 -
LOANS RECEIVABLE 25. EWER
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fixed-rate loans receivable eI E BB 80,750,879 31,055,801

The loans receivable has contractual maturity dated within one
year as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The average interest
rate for the fixed-rate loans receivable was ranging from 5%
t0 20% (2017: 5% to 20%) per annum.

There is no loans receivable which was past due but not
impaired at the end of the reporting period.

Loans receivable of HK$76,553,412 (2017: HK$31,031,032)
as at 31 December 2018 is secured by properties located in
Hong Kong. The fair values of these properties are higher than
the carrying amounts of the respective loans receivable. The
Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the properties in the
absence of default by the borrower. There has not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the
loans receivable.

Details of impairment assessment of loans receivable for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 44.

RZZE—NER_ZT—+F+=
A=+—H BUERNALHEIH
AAE—FR - EBRKERZ Y
FRENF5%E20% (—ZF—+
F:5%%F20%) °

RS AR I 8 2 s B i RO
Bz REER-

—E-N\F+ZA=+—HEWK
B 376,553,412 T (& —+
% :31,031,0328 ) EHMNRE
B EIEREF - ZEMED
AFESEHEEKEFRNERE
Bm e EERARELNNBFRLT
AEBTNESHESBEAEZEY
¥ - ERWE R A IR
MEEWEE A EANES-

BE_ZT—)\F+=-A=1+—H
IEF R B E SRR E R (4 5
BENHIFE44
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

26.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due from related companies represent trade
related balances from two related companies. One of
the related companies is controlled by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher (“Dr. SUEK"”) and another one is held as to
73.61% by the trustee of a discretionary trust of which the
immediate family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one of
the discretionary objects. The Group's credit term of 30 days
has been granted to the related companies.

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, amounts due

from related companies amounted to HK$2,433,094 and
HK$1,310,456, respectively.

The following is an ageing analysis of the amounts due from

26.

FE R BB E N BRI

JEWBEE N R RIBEMREER
AMEBSEEEHR EP—K@E
NRIREEEGIE LT ([EiEL] )
flME —KEERFH B
EHZXFEABBT3.61 %
MEEEBITENERREXE T
ZERETAHR 2 — AEKEME
HRARRTFEERRA30H-

RZE—NF+_A=F+—"HK
—E-NF—A—H EK@E
NAEFIED B A2,433,0948 T &
1,310,456 7T ©

ATARRHERRREZRAH

related companies presented based on the invoice date at the 25z FE U B E A R RIE 2 BR R
end of the reporting period. SHfr e

2018 2017
—EB-N\F Tt F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 876,200 336,397
31 - 60 days 31260H 592,086 230,000
61 — 90 days 61Z290H 150,000 208,000
91 — 180 days 912180H 330,000 302,630
Over 180 days Hi#®180H 484,808 233,429
2,433,094 1,310,456

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s amounts
due from related companies balance with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$1,556,894 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$484,808
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default as the Group has good understanding on the financial
position of the related companies and recurring overdue
records of the related companies with satisfactory settlement
history. Thus, no allowance for ECL is provided as the amount
is insignificant.
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26.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the amounts due from
related companies with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$974,059, which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as the amounts are subsequently settled. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of amount due from a related company

26.

FEWRAE R~ B FIE (&)

RZE—+F+A=1+—H &
W RBE R RIFIES - BIERE AR
974,059 L ¥R E BIARE B B -
BAREETEF L FHRREEE
BEzFE FRARBBHERLE
EEE AEBEYERZSESHET
BEEAR -

M B SR E 2 B — X

which are past due but not impaired BAE D B FUE Z IR iR
2017
—T—+F
HK$
BT
31 - 60 days 31260H 230,000
61 - 90 days 61290H 208,000
91 - 180 days 912 180H 302,630
Over 180 days HBiE180H 233,429
Total #at 974,059

Details of impairment assessment of trade related amounts
due from related companies for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 44.

BE_T-/\FF+_A=1T—HLHF
JE §0 FE MR B E 2 )80 B 5 48 B AR IR R
ERHEFIEENI FE44 -
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HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

27.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash held by the Group and bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances and short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$19,073,000 (2017: HK$26,435,000), HK$4,607,000
(2017: HK$10,002,000), HK$613,000 (2017: HK$549,000)
and HK$258,000 (2017: HK$669,000) were denominated
in USD, HK$ and Euro (“EURO") and RMB respectively, the
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Furthermore, included in the short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are amounts denominated in RMB
of approximately HK$119,321,000 (2017: HK$193,582,000),
which are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 2.5% (2017: 0.1% to 2.5%)
per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents and concluded that the probability
of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

Details of impairment assessment of short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 44.
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28.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

BEZRHEMENRKEUR
PESt IR

AT ARBEHARIREEZAH
#3.2 B 5 R T 5ROA 00 BR 8 5
7 o

2018 2017

—g-N% —E—tf

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

0 — 30 days 0%30H 38,980,474 47,258,847

31 - 60 days 31%60H 11,879,341 6,512,279

61 — 90 days 61290H 4,100,484 2,064,705

Over 90 days #8390 H 4,092,557 1,901,104

59,052,856 57,736,935

Accrued expenses and other payables &zt 59 5% f2 H b jE 1< 5018 34,088,311 44,501,716
Refundable deposit received MATREHE —R

for potential disposal of a subsidiary B /&8 2~ & AT U ER Y
RER & 15,000,000 -
108,141,167 102,238,651

The credit period ranges from 90 days to 120 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are within the credit timeframe.

Trade and other payables of approximately HK$4,180,000
(2017: HK$3,984,000) and HK$956,000 (2017: HK$727,000)
were denominated in RMB and USD respectively, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities, as at 31 December 2018.

Rental deposit received of HK$1,110,000 (2017:
HK$1,110,000) in respect of the non-cancellable operating
leases with a related party as disclosed in note 39 is included in
other payables as at 31 December 2018.

FEHNFIO0BE120H - AEH
B HIE MRS E S E RBUR - AR
Ffr A FES IR BA S £+ o

R-ZE—N\FE+_A=+—8"
A# 414,180,000 L (—ZF —+
F : 3,984,0007% 7t ) X 956,000/
T (ZZF—+%F:727,000%8 T)
CEBENFEDHIAARE R
ELEHE A B EBHIIEER
SEERIGEEE.

MIFE3oPTH BB st Bl — R EE A L
FIT ] 37 B9 71 B 4085 48 & 1 & I ER
B £3%£1,110,0008 T (=&
—+%:1,110,0008 7T) 2 5t A
R-ZZE—NF+_A=+—H=Z
H b T IEF o
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHNAE
31.12.2018 1.1.2018*
—E-N\E —E-N\F
+=—RA=+—H —HA—8a*
HK$ HK$
& TT BT
Contract liabilities from Manufacturing 2% B %438 &7 $5 & S 75 6
and Sales Business aHaE 3,330,271 8,202,299
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the * U BT & BB iR & 2R &
application of HKFRS 15. 155 M TE M 7 2 5F

Contract liabilities are classified as current liabilities because AHBE HEAERDEE RRANX
the Group expects to settle them within 12 months after the EEEHNREHRET_HAARNE
end of the reporting period. NeEHaE-
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HERRAHNABSHEEATEN—
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: Mg T -
When the Group receives a deposit before the manufacturing BN £ E N RS E R E SRS R
of printing product commences, this will give rise to contract FET& BB RANRBRELES
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised HBEE BEEREBEBTAEOERANORE
on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. BRI - AEEREETEFR
The Group receives a 10% to 50% deposit on acceptance of W B REET B 12 WEL10% 250% ) ET
manufacturing orders from certain customers. Reduction in - R_E—N\F+_A=+—HKE
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 is mainly due to the REANBBENTERAFRATHE
decrease in contracts outstanding as at year end. KPR D o
The following table shows how much of the revenue TR AFEERAHW S 58
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward WREESNEE-

contract liabilities.

Income from
manufacturing
and sales of
printing products

REENREMREE
REEZWA
HK$
BT
Revenue recognised that was included FEAFUIE DB ELRY
in the contract liabilities balance BRI
at the beginning of the year 8,202,299

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S
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BH=E

30.

31.

“E-N\F+ZA=t—HIFE
AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 30.

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

BN—XMBAR—BH*

ZERBRRRE

ZEFAQEEM 2B NARE

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 31. B —XBEQXTRE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount that is repayable: FEEIERTEE -
— within one year ——FR 129,333 903,191
— over one year but less — R —FEIRRF
than two years 62,552 51,804
— over two years but less —HBBMEEIREF
than five years 140,114 149,412
— over five years —HBBRF 125,813 178,930
457,812 1,283,337
Less: Amount due for settlement B —FREBEERIE
within one year (RRBAaBET
(shown under current liabilities) FIR) (129,334) (903,191)
Amount due for settlement —FIEE|HEE R
after one year 328,478 380,146

The amount is unsecured and fixed-interest bearing at a range
from 18% — 20% per annum (2017: 18% — 20% per annum).
The related company is controlled by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie,
who is a director of the Company.

ZEFTE AR R E T F R R
NF18%E20% (Z T —+F:

18%%220% )5t 2 °

& EENEH

RAREREE B EIEH -
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32. BANK BORROWINGS

32. RITEE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—LF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Secured bank borrowings BEMETEE 86,807,056 59,892,800
The carrying amount of bank borrowings 8 & 12 2 k(&8 5 2
(shown under current liabilities) RITEEZREE
contains a repayment on demand (RmEaEET
clause: FIR) -
— Within one year ——F K 46,053,281 36,449,600
— Within a period of more than —HBA—FEA ER
one year, but not exceeding A 4F Y HA Fi] A
two years 1,449,600 1,449,600
— Within a period of more than — BB E AR
two years, but not exceeding AEMHRA
five years 39,304,175 21,993,600
86,807,056 59,892,800
Less: Amount due within one year BRREBBEET
shown under current liabilities WWRZ—FA
FEARIA (86,807,056) (59,892,800)

Amount due after one year —F & B HAFRE

Details of the pledged assets for the secured bank borrowings
are disclosed in notes 14 and 16.

The secured bank borrowings carry interest at Hong Kong

Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1.85% to 2.5% (2017:
1.85% to 2.5%) per annum.
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33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. MMEHESHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Analysis for reporting purposes as: MEWMAREL 2D
Current liabilities mEEE - 182,179

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BERENHK BERENREE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-NF ZE—tF —2-N\F e o2
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B BT
Amounts payable under finance leases: &4 /€ JE 78 :

Within one year —FR - 184,329 - 182,179
Less: Future finance charges W RRHERY = (2,150) - -
Present value of lease obligations HEEMRE - 182,179 - 182,179
Less: Amounts due from settlement  Ji: —F R FIHAERE A

within one year (shown as (RR8asET
current liabilities) IR ) = (182,179)
Amounts due for settlement —FRIBMEERE

after one year - -
The Company leased certain of its motor vehicles under AKARIBEMEHEHREEAET
finance leases. The lease term was 3 years. The borrowing HE -MHEA=F - RN_T—+tF
rate was 2.8% per annum as at 31 December 2017. Interest +-A=+—HHEEFFEXA
rate was fixed at the contract date. The lease was on a fixed 28%  MERERBEET-HE
repayment basis. THABE BN B EMR
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. EEZEBIIR
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (asset) UNTARAFERBEFEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current year ZIERIERBAG(EE)UAL
and prior years: HEE)
Change in
fair value of
financial
assets
at FVTPL/
Accelerated held-for-
tax Tax trading
depreciation losses investments Others Total
ERBER
BATHE
SR
SREE/
BEEE
mE REZ
BEHE B¥EERE ATESS Hity @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Note)
(Hizt)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—A—H 2,894,5% (3,679,176) 12,627,442 - 11,842,860
Charge (credit) to profit or loss nEe (BAEAFER
for the year 534,153 (1,909,511)  (2,088,067) - (3,463,425)
Charge to other comprehensive MEAFEB2ERA
income for the year - - - 2,342,966 2,342,966
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
+-A=+—H 3,428,747 (5,588,687) 10,539,375 2,342,966 10,722,401
Charge (credit) to profit or loss ne (B AFER
for the year 170,120 (679,063)  (4,432,721) 4,856,786 (84,878)
Exchange adjustments ERTIE L - - - (29,578) (29,578)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+—H 3,598,867 (6,267,750) 6,106,654 7,170,174 10,607,945
Note: The deferred tax liabilities are arising from the revaluation Wi BEMBaEIRETFTWENH
of investment properties upon change of use of certain wEE RS ENRRAES WK
premises from owner-occupation to leasing out for rental A2,170174% 7 (Z T — L F:
income amounting to HK$2,170,174 (2017: HK$2,342,966) 2,342,966/ 7T ) R H IR E W £
and the temporary difference arising from withholding tax on TEMEES M=% Ep
undistributed profits in relation to the potential disposal of a H36ATEE AR E—RMBA
subsidiary as disclosed in note 36 amounting to HK$5,000,000 RIEBRARDEORT 2 TIPSR
(2017: nil). 5,000,000/ 7T (Z T —+ & : &)

B
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34.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$231,101,000 (2017:
HK$203,011,000) available to offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$37,986,000 (2017: HK$33,871,000) of
the tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$193,115,000 (2017:
HK$169,140,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unused tax losses of HK$24,101,000
(2017: HK$23,531,000) that can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose. Other losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$54,341,000 (2017: HK$53,533,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

34.

EEBE ()

REEER NEETHEHER
Fom Al 2 Bt R B AR BB L
£231,101,0008 0 (—Z & —+
£ :203,011,00087C) - AEBE
A 437,986,000 T (=&
—+ % :33,871,0008 7T ) 7 B 75
E B EREER I A ZE - RREEA
FERI R IR R E - M B H
T 7% E5#8193,115,0008 T (=&
—+ 4 : 169,140,000/ 7T ) R
BEXEMIBEE T AKREARIE
E51824,101,0008 ¢ (= ZF —+
4 123,531,000 7T) - BRAEE
AHEEEEAFEREERF-
Hib B EBHGE o

BEFBRCEMERE REN
BARIMA-ZZEZENF—HA—H
FEBREN 2% A E Ik 2 B BB
TR o FR R AN S B A 42 1 AR B f
BRR R HMNEE 2 BRE
R BOEE BRERRERE A
BERA] RG R B E - iKW ERERE
B 7% 3R 3% A 3t 954,341,000 7T
— & —+%:53,533,0007 7T)
2R EBEHRCHEEE-
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BE_T—

NFEF+—A=+—HIEFE
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. R
Number of shares HK$
BHEE BT
Shares of HK$0.01 each FIEEE0.01E Tz Kin
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2017, RZZE—+tF—H—H
31 December 2017 and 2018 —tFxK
= _/\E'E
+=-—HA=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBEITRER:
At 1 January 2017, RZZFT—tF—HA—H8"
31 December 2017 and 2018 —E—+tFK
—E-N\F
+-—A=+—H 253,639,456 2,536,395

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital for

both years.

36. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 16 March 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party pursuant to which the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company agreed to dispose of 100%
equity interest in Zen Vantage Limited to the independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of HK$153 million
which shall be adjusted according to a completion account
of Zen Vantage Limited. The disposal was approved by the
Company's shareholders on 13 July 2018. The disposal has not
yet been completed as at the date of approval for issuance of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2018.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the disposal
is expected to be completed within twelve months, the assets
attributable to the disposal have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position (see below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_T—

36.

37.

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

The major classes of assets classified as held for sale are as

36.

TRAFFLEZEE
(%)
SEARIEHEZ EEEERRIM

follows: T -
HK$
BT
Property, plant and equipment Y- BE k& 80,298,804
Prepaid lease payments EHERE 2,409,720
Other receivables H b e W sk IR 5,475,000
Total assets classified as held for sale DEABELECBEE 88,183,524

Cumulative amount of HK$5,420,387 relating to the assets
classified as held for sale has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and included in equity.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the
Company and adopted by the Company. The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and
any invested entity.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to outside third parties for settlement in
respect of goods or services provided to the Company. Details
of the share option scheme are disclosed in the directors’
report of this annual report.

No share options have been granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme.

37.

HAMARELE 2 EER MM RGT
4%85,420,3878 L E R EMAEE R A
E Iu‘l’k*’gﬁﬁ"

Bl E

RZE—MFE-_A+=0" K127
IRERHLE —THRE R E ([
REETEI]) - WA TR - B
EtE hERET ZIERAE
AR TFERNBR-

BhEAEEEEARRARE
é&/ﬂﬁhﬁﬁh%‘ﬁﬁﬁ

FUAREBEE L BRI AR & 8
@ /SRR EER RS GE
BFEE  WREEAKE &M
RNEBEREEEIANER

RIBBIETE ARRESAH
AEBREERLERE  BREAR
AINEMBARINES  URBEA
RNAEEBAD © e 4D - AN R R A] B
A48 B[R AN 2 B HR A A 7 m AR
BRSNERE =T R B I - B
BIRERT S F BN AF R
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

38.

On 5 May 2017, Dream Class Limited (“Dream Class”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a related company, which is
owned by Mr. SUEK, Ka Lun, Ernie, to dispose of the entire
equity interest in Power Rank International Limited (“Power
Rank”) at a cash consideration of HK$2,340,000. The disposal
was completed on the same date. The net assets of Power
Rank and its subsidiaries on the date of disposal were as

follows:

HE—XKEB QA
R—ZE—+tFRARB AR
BIH 2 & KB A alDream Class
Limited ([Dream Class ] ) i —5
BEAR (HEZBEERES)
FV—HEBEWE URERE
2,340,000/ 7T 1 & 7 Power Rank
International Limited ([Power
Rank | ) M2 SR AN #E % - 5% TE I
EE R E HEAK ° Power RankX&
EWNBRARNHERHNEEF
BEWT :

HK$
BT
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 7,071,969
Other receivables H b e W FRIE 1,652,477
Other payables E fth S 3R08 (987,606)
7,736,840
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RMBARZEIE:
Cash consideration HeNRE 2,340,000
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (7,736,840)
(5,396,840)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEECRESRAFE:
Cash consideration BeRE 2,340,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The results of Power Rank for the period from 1 January 2017
to 5 May 2017, which have been included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

38.

HE—FXMEAT (&)

Power RankiR —ZE—+F— A —
HE_-_Z—+FAARBILHM
MEE (Bt AGEeEREREMS

were as follows: ERAmRKF)WAT -
HK$
BT
Loss from the operation of Power Rank and R B £ & Power Rank &
its subsidiaries HBE AR EE —
Loss on disposal of Power Rank tH £ Power Rank#y &5 18
(included in other gains and losses) (G AE MYz R E1E) (5,396,840)
(5,396,840)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Power Rank and its
subsidiaries did not contribute any operating cash flows to the
Group.

39. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall
due as follows:

39.

REBEE-_Z—+F+_-_A=1+—
A 1F4E - Power Rank &z E KB A
AVTEAAEEZELBRERE
ERTMER -

HEAE

AEBEER/EEA

R EIR - AEREBYE 2 A
RUEH S HE AT B 2 B4
2 R SR THE SRR AIE -

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 9,428,283 8,125,712
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEZERAFA

(BEEEMEF) 27,649,897 8,905,282

Over five years HARF 54,220,000 40,351,389

91,298,180 57,382,383

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for land use rights, factory premises and staff quarters
in the PRC. Leases for land use rights, factory premises and
staff quarters are negotiated for terms of one to fifty years.
Rentals are fixed for one to fifty years.

KEHERIBEIEASBERUNF
Bz tiERE TMmENET
BEEMNZES  tHERE T
BENBIBEE 2B ZEA]
E50FETEF - HE M ES0FERNE
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

39. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 39. fHEXIE (&)
The Group as lessor AEBFERHAA
All of the Group's properties held for rental purposes have NEFMRMAEZELRRE ZWE
committed tenants for the next one to three years. At the end MAR—ZEZ=FHEHRZEHE ¥
of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with tenants WERRK AEBHEBLEIL M
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEMEZ T REEESHEER
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as TFHA R B BRI BN 7 ok R K A
follows: EIE:
2018 2017
—E-NF —ZT—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F R 1,554,780 7,693,931
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERFNR
(BREEEME) - 1,294,300
1,554,780 8,988,231
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted MRARERR KREFEDE—F
with a related party of HK$1,110,000 (2017: HK$5,550,000) FAE AT ARFERBENRK
for the future minimum lease payments. 1,110,000 T (=& — £ 4F:
5,550,000/ 7T ) 5T 4J
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EAREIE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT TT
Capital expenditure contracted for NT&EIELFTLERTE
but not provided in the consolidated 474 BA #5$R 5% P 12 5%
financial statements in respect of: EfzEXRL
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEVE -BEKL
equipment Bai 5,736,034 7,799,676
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT-A=t-ALFE

41.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the ORSO Scheme) and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the MPF Scheme) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the
MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group
on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at a rate of 5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the local municipal government of Shenzhen. The subsidiary
is required to contribute 5% of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$9,544,501
(2017: HK$7,416,030) represent contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

41.

BT R S

ANEBESE—T8 T REHERAE
([ORSO&TEI] ' &% &M &8I E BB B
R BN M) M —1ER
MRABEETE ([BIBELETE] 3%
HEIRERBESKIN T
TE+ - ARY) c&ZEHBZE
EEAEBEESHAFE
BEREIAEFZES REES
=+ 2157 A1 /AORSOHEIRK B 7 (&
B Al# I E 2 NORSOFT 8l =X
EHEREEFE MAAR_ZEE
TFE+-_A—BH 2B MARE
EMFEE B2 MEMESTE -

HRBESHEZKEMS A%
BB @ T EKAN Z5%F&aT S
HR FRAMFEEEEER -

ORSO&T & 1R EIE BN AEE R
BeFEH AREERAEERZRA
HE HFBEREEEAFTF S Z
5% °

AEBETBENEARBERZE
B R BIRII T BT E 2 B
BRABHNEEIZKE - ZMBA
AIAREE TEMARZ5% AR
R METE8INTEREER - AR R
ERAREzES AEENER
RRENF R ES 2EERIE

e E 2 K

RZEB-N\ER_T—+tF+=
A=1T—8 #SEREENHERE
HERBAR K& ERT &I MR W
A AJ P LA R0 7S 5 [ 22 2K 2R 8 48
Iz AR -

REZABERNE LI EE A
9,544,501 L (=T —tF:
7,416,030 T) E A B IZZE
AERTERHCEHARENENZ

K
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_FT- ) \F+_A=1T—HLEFE
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEALRS
(a) Save as disclosed in elsewhere of the consolidated (a) BB IRERE M SFAT

?BZ BEI AEBZEAR
RIREAN LT RIMBAREST

financial statements, the Group has entered into
significant transactions between related parties and

subsidiaries of the Company as follows: THEKRLS:
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —+F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Licensed fee income (note 1) FrEtBUWA (Hat1) 1,490,000 2,040,000
Sales of goods (note 1) HESEm (M) - 18,010
Sales of goods (note 2) HEEm(#i72) 448,746 -
Rental income (note 1) HeWA (KzEr) 4,440,000 4,440,000
Rental income (note 2) e A (Kit2) 170,126 -
Technical consultancy services i 7 5 AR 75 LA
income (note 2) (Hit2) 4,695,170 -
Office rental expenses (note 1)  WMAEHEH (Mit1) 360,000 360,000
Finance costs (note 1) REE KA (HaET) 94,696 778,046
Sales of property, plant and HEME  WER&E
equipment (note 2) (Hiaz2) 200,000 -
Consultancy services expenses & RS FH X
(note 2) (Htzt2) 500,000 -
Notes: Btaz
(1) The transactions were carried out with related (1) ZERS T EBEE T
companies which are controlled by Dr. SUEK. fil 2 FE AR T

) The transaction was carried out with a related ) ZR ST —REEA A
company which is held as to 73.61% by the trustee EIT ZARBA—EEE
of a discretionary trust of which the immediate family BEREZEFEAMBTI61%
member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one of the ’fgﬁé'ﬁﬁﬁ%‘:?‘*?ﬁiﬂ’lﬁ
discretionary objects. RREKBERZTER

MERAZ—
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

42,

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

42. BEALRS (&)

(b) XEEEAEZHM
ATREShAEMEEER

key management during the year was as follows: ABRENRNZ EH -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits %2 BptE A 12,147,424 10,320,630
Post-employment benefits BER 2 B T 157,260 167,990
12,304,684 10,488,620

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amount due to a related company, bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 and obligations under
finance leases as at 31 December 2017 disclosed in notes 31,
32 and 33, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

EENTRITRAB ZFH M
TyEmFME B @R ER AL
ZERENTEBEERE -

43. EXARERE

AEEEREERAUBRAZHE
BETRERBREFELE FARFES
ERRINEREERTE RE
REHEE AL

REBZEAREERER (B
BEE31 32339 R ETE 2R =
E-NEFEER-ZE—+tF+=A8
=+ —HZEN—REERRRK
B RITEERR - —+F+=
A=+—Bz@mEBEEETE
RIS MIASEE) RARFHE
ANEE#ER (BREBRAREE) A
ﬁo

AEEZERERBRNEAR
B ETeEREARANEER
MERE 2 B o RERE KB BEITH
B - BRIt KRBT E S E IR
BEERTEHEERBEARE

REEBEEKE TFERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4. @I A

Categories of financial instruments SRTEZER
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—LtF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Equity instruments at FVTOC| FHiREM 2 E WA
NFEERZBRATE 26,253,472 -
Financial assets at FVTPL BBBREATEYEZ
TRUEE 87,895,380 -
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEN AT ESREE 448,956,804 -
Loans and receivables (including cash & 5k & Jig Ug %18
and cash equivalents) (BRBELMNESSEE) = 528,654,206
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE = 107,374,656
Available-for-sale investments AP ERE = 39,063,267
Derivative financial instrument TEemT A = 7,851,180
Financial liabilities THAE
Amortised cost BEH R AR 192,069,681 170,884,016

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL (2017:
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments,
derivative financial instrument), loans to joint ventures, trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans receivable, trade
related amounts due from related companies, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and accruals, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, amount due to a related company and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain trade
receivables, bank balances, short-term bank deposits,
trade payables of the Group are denominated in RMB,
USD, HK$ and EURO, the currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities
as disclosed in notes 24, 27 and 28 respectively.
Approximately 25% (2017: 31%) of the Group’s total
revenue are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making
the sale, whilst almost 11% (2017: 18%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, directors of the Company
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

44,

&M T A (&)
MEEREEBRBREREE

(&)
%5 E
0  EBEEER

AEBBETZRHEB QR
WINBEETEER 5 E
LN B B AT INEE R
Brotih REBBETE
SEWGRIE RITES &
HER1TIE 30 B S 5/IB
MWAR® - ET - B TERK
T (HEEBRERERE Y
BEEE)ETE 2RI
24 27 K 28H R - ANEE LY
25% (ZZE—+%:31%)
BB EEEITIHE 28
TR Z2NEEEBUIINZE
BB MEBL11% (=
—+F:18% ) 2K ANE
EERBNEEE AN T
BRER

AEBE R AL EEEINE S
HHER AT ARAES
ERINERKR EEFER
& E B hEKINE &

G o
N
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=1T—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €M T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEREE|ERBEK
(Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEE(E)
The Group's intra-group balances do not form part of RNEBEBEBEARTERE
the net investment in foreign operations. The carrying INEFEFREN—3D -2
amounts of the foreign currency denominated intra- RETERERRAB TR
group balances which have been eliminated in the AREEINEMEENET
consolidated financial statements of certain subsidiaries M A RIA AR S B S shk &
of which the functional currency is HK$ and RMB at the HEER N EHE R E E
end of the reporting period are as follows: SRREEmENT
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —Z—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net amounts due from (to) e (FER) A A
companies denominated RARBHATE
in RMB against HK$ % I8 1,824,000 (7,177,000)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBLINEHEZEREE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities ENEEaERTREHERZ
at the end of the reporting period are approximately as B BEEESS T
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE af
2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-N\Nf —T+F CZB-Nf —TLF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
USD against HK$ %iﬂﬁ%ﬁ 51,554,000 28,386,000 956,000 727,000
HK$ against RMB BLEARH 4,607,000 10,002,000 - -
RMB against HK$ ARBRET 258,000 840,000 4,180,000 3,984,000
EURO against HK$ BT AT 613,000 549,000 - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_T—

44,

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(1)

4. @I A

(%)

MR EERFERBR

=1
Market risk (Continued) mEE R (&)
Currency risk (Continued) () EXREE (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD, A A TTIE R B2 T 4
the Group does not expect any significant movements REFEERET BT 2E
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. KA e HIB{(F (0] & A%
The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a TR FFYIE — ) A A] &
10% (2017: 10%) increase and decrease in functional AETEHBERLT ~EEH
currency of respective group entity against relevant HEREEERE 2EE
foreign currencies (other than USD) and all other BHEBINE (TBRIEE
variables were held constant. 10% (2017: 10%) is TL)AEREZEINN (ZF
the sensitivity rate used and represents management’s —tEF 0% ) ZHRERE -
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign FTASRELERE10% (=
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only %éfti 10%) " JhE &
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary JE P et TE R AT gE 3R 2
items, and adjusts their translation at the end of the /\i@ """" AR URRE DT R B
reporting period for a 10% (2017: 10%) change FUAINETFEZRERE
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below ¥Ig g - ]IE’JEETHJ'IE1O°
indicates an increase in post-tax loss (2017: decrease in (ZE—tF:10%)& @J
post-tax profit) for the year where functional currency FERERMERARCHRE
of respective group entity strengthen 10% (2017: SR o [ IE SR E R
10%) against foreign currencies. For a 10% (2017: SEER2EEE LI
10%) weakening of functional currency of respective BHEI0% (T —+5F:
group entity against foreign currencies, there would be 10% ) 2 BERT ZKEM’-T/\C@
an equal and opposite impact on the result for the year. BEBEAEMEN(ZE—
FBRBIE R ML) °1|J]
EREEEE 2R
HONEEZE10% (ZF—+
F:10%)  AIEANFXR
BHRAESGEEAR  ZE-
Impact of Impact of Impact of
HK$ EURO RMB
BLIZEE EBz¥E ARYZEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2018 —E-N\E
Increase (decrease) in loss FEEEE N GRD)
for the year 385,000 51,000 (327,000)
2017 —E—+tF
Decrease (increase) in profit £ &3 AR 4> (38 hn)
for the year 835,000 46,000 (263,000)
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BHE_Z-N\F+_A=T—HILLFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €M T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEERBEE
(Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) HEEE
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate RZZE-NFRZT—LF
risk primarily relates to variable-rate short-term += }EJ +—8:" $’§.7¥K
bank deposits, bank balances and bank borrowings S7HERENRERFE

as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The Group is
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to the fixed-rate loans receivable, amount
due to a related company, interest-free loans to joint
ventures and and amount due to a non-controlling

)% SR HSR 1T R SRAT
EHRMIRTTEERBE A&
EMASZEZETESER
BB —REELQRK
B B TRERNRIZREE

shareholder of the subsidiary as at 31 December 2018 AR ZE—N\FER T+
and 2017 and obligations under finance leases as FH+-_A=+—HEN—
at 31 December 2017. The Group has not used any EANIEENCIRE=P =y

derivative instruments in order to mitigate its exposure
associated with fluctuations relating to interest cash
flows. However, the directors of the Company monitor
interest rate exposure and will consider other necessary
actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost during the year ended
31 December 2018 is as follows:

ZHRBEAR T~ F+=
A=t HHOBMEMERT
M2 2 FEMERRER - R
SEYWERBEMNTETR
RERTASENERSRE
&@JﬁF%ZJ—L (& o PR 1 » 2K

REEFERNERRER X
5 E BN TEHAAS EARN
[ g B BRER B A P AR 1T
o

_—I— EIJJ:iEZ Xﬁhﬁiﬁ
HKATTEZERMEEZH
B WA BRENT

HK$
BT
Interest revenue A Bk 25
Financial assets at amortised cost HHEKATHEZERMEE 7,197,071
Other income H g A
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEK AT EZEREE 2,366,386
Total interest income M EWA 458 9,563,457
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost during the year ended 31
December 2017 is as follows:

EWMIA (F)

BERREZERERBEE

(%)

mEEE (&)

(i)  FIEEE (&)
REBEE_ZT—+F+ A
=t+—BIFE KEKE
HXATEZEREE 27

B ABEENT
HK$
BT
Interest revenue sy
Loans and receivables B3 W e
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEESERSSE) 4,611,231
Other income E b g A
Loans and receivables B e
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREReEESEE) 1,932,508
Total interest income B A 458 6,543,739

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

WIEEBBRE A FEFE

fair value through profit or loss: ZERBENBRAY:
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities REHEKAGTE Y
at amortised cost TRAE 3,096,228 2,500,290
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BE_T—

44,

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The management of the Group considers that the
Group's exposure to future cash flow risk on variable-
rate bank balances as a result of the change of market
interest rate is insignificant and thus variable-rate bank
balances are not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
asset outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss (2017: post-tax profit) for the year
would increase/decrease (2017: decrease/increase) by
approximately HK$264,000 (2017: HK$179,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate short-term bank deposits and
bank borrowings.
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BE_T—

44,

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect of:

o equity instruments at FVTOCI (2017: available-
for-sale investments) in relation to 16.67%
equity interest in Yinghua as at 31 December

2018;

o held-for-trading investments in listed equity
securities as at 31 December 2018 and 2017;
and

° derivative financial instrument in relation to the

forward contract to dispose the Group's equity
interest in Yinghua as at 31 December 2018
and 2017.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on held-for-trading investments
in relation to listed equity investments in Hong Kong
during the year have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate considers at 10% in the current year.
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax loss (2017: post-
tax profit) for the year would decrease/increase (2017:
increase/decrease) by approximately HK$6,784,000
(2017: HK$8,966,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.

44,

ERTH
B ERE

(%)

(#&)
BEEERBE

mEEE (&)

(iir)

H M 1B 157 2

REBABRA T HEAZE
R

. RZE—NF+=A
=+ —HHEEERH
EE16.67 %% AN #E 5
RN EBEMEE
WAIRRFEHERZ
BATE(ZZ—+
FAHEHERE)

« “T-NFR-
—t$+_ﬂ_+—
Az EmRRABESHZ
BIEEERE &

. RZE-—NFRZE
—tF+—A=+—
AEBEREBRA
EEMEMNRNEZ
FERHAHBENTT
EERT A

BRE DM

FRZEBEE EHRAKE
EBENFBIEEERE X
B DR ERRERRK
ZBRABERRARET - LK
REDMME  SURE LR
RAFEWRH10% &
ﬁ%$lﬂ2ﬁ%tﬂ/
TEK10% » M P A H b A &
EAETE AAREBAFZ
BREEER(ZE—+F:
BREEEN) BEFIEEE
RENFEEHMRLD, 12
mZZE—+F 1m0/
) 496,784,000 T (= F
—+ 4 : 8,966,000/ 7T )

Neway Group Holdings Limited  E £ Mz R R D 7

Annual Report 2018 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T\FT-A=t-ALFE

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)~ Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

No sensitivity analysis is provided on equity instruments
at FVTOCI and financial assets in FVTPL in relation to
the derivative financial instrument (2017: available-for-
sale investments in relation to 16.67% equity interest
in Yinghua and derivative financial instrument) as the
management of the Group considers that the effect
of the price fluctuation on the fair value of equity
instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets in FVTPL in
relation to the derivative financial instrument (2017:
available-for-sale investments in relation to 16.67%
equity interest in Yinghua and derivative financial
instrument) is considered as insignificant and they will
offset with each other.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, amounts due from related
companies, loans to joint ventures, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets, except that the credit risks associated with
loans receivable is mitigated because they are secured over
properties located in Hong Kong.
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers and trade related amounts due
from related companies

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group uses an internal credit rating system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Except for (i) debtors who are credit-
impaired; (i) customers with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets; and
(iii) trade related amounts due from related companies, which
are assessed for impairment individually, the remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are grouped under a provision
matrix into four internal credit rating buckets (namely: low
risk, medium risk, high risk and doubtful) based on shared
credit risk characteristics by reference to repayment histories
for recurring customers and current past due exposure for
the new customers. The contract assets have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9
(2017: incurred loss model) on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix.
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, interest rate offered to customers and
collaterals received. Monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 62% (2017:
76%) of the total loans receivable was due from three (2017:
three) independent third parties of total HK$50,000,000
(2017: HK$23,600,000). The Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on balances individually.

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated loss rates
of loans receivable based on historical credit loss experience of
the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged
by the customers to the loans receivable. Based on assessment
by the directors of the Company, the loss given default is low
in view of the fair value of the collaterals and the directors of
the Company considers the 12-month ECL for loans receivable
is insignificant. Thus no loss allowance was recognised. In this
regard, the Group considers that the Group's credit risk are
significantly reduced.

Loan to a joint venture

The Group has concentration of credit risk on loan to Reliance
Partner as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The directors of
the Company continuously monitor the credit quality and
financial position of the counterparty and the level of exposure
to ensure that the follow-up action is taken to recover the
debt. The Group performs impairment assessment under
12-month ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017:
incurred loss model). For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group assessed the ECL for loan to Reliance Partner is
insignificant. Thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information starting from 1
January 2018. The directors of the Company believe that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding
balance of other receivables and deposits. The Group performs
impairment assessment under 12-month ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model). For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group assessed the ECL
for other receivables and deposits were insignificant. Thus no
loss allowance was recognised.

Short-term bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents

The Group only transacts with reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
therefore the directors of the Company consider the risk of
default is low. The Group uses 12-month ECL to perform the
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9
(2017: incurred loss model) on balances individually based on
the average loss rate by reference to credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group assessed the ECL for short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were
insignificant. Thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Short-term bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents

(Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

44. £FTH (&)

MEREEEEAEREEK

(%)
= EE R B EF G ()

RHRITFH B REEEE
(%

AEEASEESRTHBEIEN
TR
Trade receivables/

contract assets/trade
related amounts due

Internal credit rating  Description from related parties  Other financial assets
EZEKFE/
RNEE/
ERBELR
ABEETR it Yo HiteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
GEY HFANENRRRE W EEAAEHHRE rHRHEERE- T-EARHEEEA
AEBREERE
Medium risk New customer which has no repayment history over the past ~Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
year and debtor repays after due dates but usually settle in -~ not credit-impaired
full within 90 days after due date over the past year
hER MEPREFRERRLUARBEARIABRER B 2HMEHEEHE- T+T_EARHEEEE
FREFIHBRONEZRERN AEBREERE
High risk Debtor has history in repayment of the balance which has ~ Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
been overdue for more than 90 days over the past year not credit-impaired
BER EBAEREFEBEAHBEROBNER rHESEERE- T-EAREEEEAR
AR EEHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
2 EERRE NHERARBZ LN rHEHEERRE- 2HEHEERRE-
(BBAXISNFERAEZER) AREERE AEREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B FEBBEREMEECHREERE rHEHACEREE- 2HEHEEHRE-
BEHREERE EHREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
34 BERBETERABABRENMBREEASEIRAR HMEFHLRE MEEHEEE

&AW A RITE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_T-)\F+-A=1T—HILFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €T H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEEEREENEE
(Continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEERBEFE (&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Tﬁﬁiﬁﬁljﬁ$%{£@i§§ (Z
Group's financial assets (trade receivables, other receivables % J"?E Wig - Huab gk 018 &ET
and deposits, loan to a joint venture, loans receivable, trade BT %/\ BNRIZERJE
related amounts due from related companies, short-term bank WEZ - FEWEENTE S5 HER
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and contract assets), which B EHRTT RS CHEeLESE
are subject to ECL assessment: BEREHNEE) E’]TZ?T R ik O -
ZETMEERE Tﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁf}f)@ﬁ
BT
External Internal Gross
credit credit 12-month or carrying
rating rating lifetime ECL amounts
ShER ki
2018 —E-N\F FETR FEIR +T-BARZHELEERE EHAE
Notes HK$
Mzt BT
Financial assets at REBHERATE
amortised cost SRHEE
Trade receivables B 5 W HE
- goods and services -EmkkR% 24 N/A (note 1) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 93,279,148
a¥li (Hiz#1) 2HEBREERE (BEER)
Low risk Lifetime ECL 56,194,179
B R 2HEHEEESR
Loss Credit-impaired 14,013,910
&8 BEREERE
Other receivables and deposits  E fib fE B 7] & 24 N/A (note 2) 12-month ECL 6,032,022
TEA (Hit2) T EABHEERE
Loans to joint ventures BTREARZER 20 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 3,215,059
TEA B R +ZAAEHEERE
Loans receivable EWER 25 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 80,750,879
TEA el T EABBEERE
Amounts due from [EWEEARFE 26 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 2,433,094
related companies TEA E R 2HEBREERE
Short-term bank deposits RERTER 27 BBB N/A 12-month ECL 23,682,998
TiEH +TZEABHEERE
Cash and cash equivalents RekHe%E 27 BBB N/A 12-month ECL 53,692,368
TEA +EARHEERE
Aorabove  N/A 12-month ECL 132,093,838
AU £ TEA +EAEREERE
Other items Httig g
Contract assets BHEE 19 N/A (note 1) Lifetime ECL (provision matrlx) 9,265,852
TEA (Hit1) 2HEHEERE (BEER)
Low risk Lifetime ECL 6,672,247
el 2HEBEERE
Rental deposits Heke 24 N/A (note 2) 12-month ECL 1,847,067
a¥li (Kis#2) +ZAAEHEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. £RTH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEERBEE
(Continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 E/&f R E G (&)
Notes: B i
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has 1. EREBEHRERBFBEBRENEE K
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the SERBEBUBHREERFNH
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Apart of debtors with credit- W5 AR B EEE BT
impaired and customers with outstanding significant balances EEEEE RELBEEREN
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets, the WS EREEEREHREA
Group determines the ECL on these items using a provision 2,500,000 T EF N EBE Y
matrix grouped with reference to past default experience for SN REERZEIEA RBEL2BRK
recurring customers and current past due exposure for new EUEPHNBEERNSERTER
customers. REEOHNEES BB EEE
EEEHEEEE-
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group VEBREBEFERRERE 2 — 3
applies internal credit rating for its customers in relation D AEBMALEEEBEBNE
to its Group’s operation. Debtors with credit-impaired, FHEARNSEEIHR 2HEEE
customers with outstanding significant balances exceeding TRER W RR MR EIE B RS
HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets with gross B 3E2,500,0008 T B F Kk A
carrying amounts of HK$14,013,910, HK$56,194,179 and ABHMEmEER - \F+=
HK$6,672,247 respectively as at 31 December 2018 were A=+—B%5531A14,013,910%
assessed individually. The following table provides information JC ~ 56,194,179 T 126,672,247
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and BT WETTEB TG TRIZMH
contract assets which are assessed based on provision matrix EHRESSENFTEBLENEE (R
as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL (not credit- T N\F+-_A=t+—HBIREE
impaired). HEEZ S BHEREEEE (R
REEREBE)ETTHOEER
W O B REIS ©
Gross carrying amount RERR
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating RIS EFR T EER B ERRE BREE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk KRR 0.1 24,691,433 1,357,606
Medium risk FE R 1.5 18,463,435 1,409,017
High risk = R 3.75 50,124,280 6,499,229
93,279,148 9,265,852
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(Continued)

The estimated loss rates on trade receivables are estimated
based on historical credit loss of the debtors and study of
other corporates’ default and recovery data from international
credit-rating agencies including Moody's and Standard and
Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted economic growth
rates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Europe and the United States,
which reflect the general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate) that is available without
undue cost or effort. The contract assets have the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of
contracts would apply the same internal credit rating and
loss rate. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors and
contract assets is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
provided impairment allowance of HK$563,905 and reversal
of impairment allowance of HK$65,386 for trade receivables
and contract assets respectively, based on the provision
matrix during the year ended 31 December 2018. Reversal of
impairment allowance of HK$3,196 and impairment allowance
of HK$484 was provided respectively for trade receivables
and contract assets which are assessed individually with
outstanding significant balances exceeding HK$2,500,000.
Reversal of impairment allowance and impairment allowance
of HK$2,152,800 and HK$13,059,618 respectively were
made on credit-impaired debtors during the year ended 31
December 2018.

44,

&M T A (&)
MEEREEBRBREREE

(%)

= EE R B EF G ()

Hiat: (4&)

(%)

B2 RAGRIEN B BER AR
FEYR RN TR S B TS A B
FEBEERERRERETRERE
(BERENREEE) BEMOE
it A BE A R M B SR E TRV 5T
st WRBHFILEBZRAHK
BARBUSHBTIE &R (flmn

BE - PEBMNEEENER R
RGBSR ZIEREA R
IS AR E PTIRIT R M BRI
R)FUARE - ANEELBRE
A E 5 EUGIER A XBIR
(R #4542 - 3 P AR R BB S
SRR RERE B2 E TR
ZIR R ARELR 30 A B B R FEURRR
RRAEWEEMBEEN-

REBE=Z—-N\F+=-ZA=+—AH
IEFE AEERBEEE=ZZ—N
FH+—A=+—RALFENBEE
st E S ENEIER S NEED R
sT 2R B #5563,905%8 T M R B
B 18 [065,38678 7T - S E H I
RERAHNEETROBERE
BB RO EEE D B R3,1968 7T
NABAE L REEE REHIEBR
2,500,000/ 7T 89 B 5 FE WK IE K
BREBEBRERETIG MREE
—E-NE+-_A=+—BI*#
E - REHBREERERNERER
FHRERE R E R B LR ERE S
5l 52,152,800/8 7T % 13,059,618
T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €M T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEREEEERBE

(Continued) (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEREREEFG (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mzt (48)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the 2. RASEERKREREMS  A%E
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk ERBEE T EEERRE B X
has increased significantly since initial recognition. ERAREEBEEIEM-

Not past due/
no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
KEg/
HH EEEEERY gt
HK$ HK$ HK$
I BT BT
Financial assets at RBHRAGTEERERE
amortised cost
Other receivables and deposits B RIE R € - 6,032,022 6,032,022
Other items HitEA
Rental deposits Heks - 1,847,067 1,847,067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_T-)\F+-A=1T—HILFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44, €BTITH (§F)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEREEEEREE
(Continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEREEHEFFE (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that &A= 1‘&})% EE A EME S E
has been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets WRIBNEHEEERN 2 ETE
under the simplified approach. Hi=zEEiEEs) -
Trade
Trade receivables Contract
receivables under  assets under
under lifetime  lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
ECL (credit (not credit (not credit
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
R2HRES R2HHED REHHES
FEER FEER FEER
(BHA (RHEE (RHE
FERE) FERE) FEHE)
SIRME 5 SIRME S 5l B #Y
bR EWRE ENEE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
under HKAS 39 +-A=+—H
BEBB AR
#3995 3,127,071 - - 3,127,071
Adjustment upon application of [ERABYBREER
HKFRS 9 FIRKNAE - 1,904,536 283,823 2,188,359
As at 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N\F—A—H 3,127,071 1,904,536 283,823 5,315,430
Changes due to financial instruments AR—HA—BRERK
recognised as at 1 January: SRMIARROE
— Impairment loss reversed -BRERESR (2,152,800 (1,904,536) (283,823) (4,341,159)
New financial assets originated MEREEMERE 13,059,618 2,465,245 218,921 15,743,784
Exchange adjustments EHAR (19,979) (48,464) - (68,443)
As at 31 December 2018 RZ%— $
+ZA= 14,013,910 2,416,781 218,921 16,649,612
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—E2-\F+-_A=+—BHILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are mainly due to:

44,

tRMIE (&)
BEREE|ERBEK
(&)
EEREREETFG (&)
BE-_Z—-—)/\F#+=-A=+—H
IEFEMNE S EWNGIABERE
HEEEZHN:

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

2HAMFEERR (BD)Em

Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
RHER EHR
FERE FERE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Settlement in full of trade debtors THEEREBER
with a gross carrying amount of 2,152,800/% JTHY
HK$2,152,800 B 5 IR - (2,152,800)
Impairment allowance recognised for  #t & 5 fE U K IBHER
trade receivables B 2,465,245 13,059,618

During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss
of HK$13,059,618 was recognised for a credit-impaired
debtor who was defaulted in repayment continuously and
no settlement was made for the sales to this debtor during
the second half of the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Group has taken legal action against this debtor to recover the
amount due.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €T R (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for contract assets during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are mainly due to:

MEREEEEAEREEK

(%)
= EE R B EF G ()

REE-F—\E+-B=+—
B - & WAENEIREEE
BEEMR

(Decrease) increase
in lifetime ECL

Not credit-
impaired
2HEREEER
O 4 ) &
REREERE
HK$

BT

Settlement in full of contract assets BHEEAWEE

(283,823)

Impairment allowance recognised for contract assets #h& 494 & W 3R B (B B4 15 218,921

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group’'s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
financial institutions choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

REBEL R

AEEEERBES AR ZITEA
DHEEBEENER TN ZER
T RREFEKF ABHARE
BXBREMTES LBEERE
MENBZZE - BEEEEERT
fEEZERIBER  BREBERZ

At
ah °©

TRAMARERFEEBNKLZ
RPAMEEZCEMABRTE
WEIMBER - AN S MHEE
KERGRZRITEEDF AR
PREERMEEE M T RMEEE
BEBITEEENZATRENE - B
BABZEHBERERHEENE
HEE -
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BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

- — A —
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. @M T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEREEEEENNEE
(Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (E)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TEXBHEMNBEEAKESRESRE-
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the W7 Bom AIRE B A R B - BIR
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market rate at WESMIEREH KR ERITME
the end of the reporting period. FEtE o
Liquidity tables B EoFx
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total  theend of
effective Within to to to Over undiscounted the reporting
interest rate  On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows period
8
mETS =faR -f mE ReHE  BEEAZ
LYk REX AR E-f ERmF 3% BBIE @5 REE
% HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
AR b o oo b kb B R
2018 “E-)\F
Trade payables EHRATE N/A
TER - 59,052,856 - - - - 59,052,856 59,052,856
Other payables and accruals Hit R B REN B N/A
TER - 28,671,565 - - - - 28671565 28,671,565
Amount due to a non-controling ER-RHEAR N/A
sharefolder of a subsidiary —AEBRRERE TER 17,080,392 - - - - - 17,080392 17,8039
Amount due to a related company R -RBEAANE Note 1
HizE1 87,285 19,514 87,813 117,084 248,782 148,641 709,119 457,812
Secured bank borrowings FERRAEE Note 2
[iB7) 86,807,056 - - - - - 86,807,056 86,807,056
103,974,733 87,743,935 81,813 117,084 248,782 148641 192,320,988 192,069,681
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total the end of
effective Within to to to Over  undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows period
AE
MmETH —faA =f@A & fE Beiie  BEEAZ
LIRS BEX 2=fiR E-f E@E E3iEs fed ChikS a% SEE
% HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
o oo AR AR o AT AR A
2017 ZE-tf
Trade payables ZHEMARE A
Sl - 57,736,935 - - - - 57,736,935 57,736,935
Other payables and accruals Efp AR R R N/A
TR - 33,959,417 - - - - 33,959,417 33,959,417
Amount due to a non-controlling Ef-ZHEBAR WA
shareholder of a subsidiary —RFERRENE TER 180157 - - - - - 18011527 18011527
Amount due to a related company Ef-FEEAARE Note 1
il 870,040 19514 87,813 117,084 284,646 229,724 1,608,821 1,283,337
Secured bank borrowings FERKTEE Note 2
M2 59,892,800 - - - - - 59892800 59,892,800
Obligations under finance leases BEREER 28 - 61443 122,886 - - - 184,329 182,179
78,774,367 91,777,309 210,699 117,084 284,646 229724 171,393,829 171,066,195
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BE_T—

44,

NE+ZA=+—BLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity tables (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The amount due to a related company carried at interest rate
ranging from 18% to 20% (2017: 18% to 20%) per annum.

(2) The secured bank borrowings carry at HIBOR plus 1.85% to
2.5% (2017: HIBOR plus 1.85% to 2.5%) per annum.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. The carrying amount
of the bank borrowings amounted to HK$86,807,056 (2017:
HK$59,892,800) as at 31 December 2018. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position and assets pledged for the bank
borrowings, the directors of the Company do not believe that
it is probable that the financial institution would exercise the
discretionary rights to demand immediate payment. As at 31
December 2018, the directors of the Company believed that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
The aggregate principal and interest cash outflows amounted
to HK$91,084,901 (2017: HK$62,044,890) as at 31 December
2018. The repayment schedule based on the scheduled
repayment dates is set out below:

44,

EWMIA (F)
BEEREZERERBEE
(&)

mEEZEE (&)
REBETK (4B)

At -

() EN-RERRARAENT

18%E20% (—F—+5F:18%=E
20% ) Z F M EKETE -

BMFRTEEREBRTAE
FEI1.85%%FE2.5% (=T —+
FRBRITAEFENI.S%NE
2.5%) 2 FRIEEE -

—
N
~

RZBE-—NER=_FT—+tF+=
A=+— EM‘JLM&K/JEJ&MUA
ZIRITEEE EMBEA DT H
AATZRER | ZERBEA-
R-_E—N\EFE+_A=+—8"
IR1ITEERBEEME 4 A86,807,056
Bt (ZZF—+ 4 :59,892,800/%
T0) - EREFIANER Z WM K&
FIRITIEEEH 2 EE  ARAE

- Ol

SH1E - ﬁ?fﬁ‘“ﬁ%TﬁTTﬁEﬁﬁ@’]F
BERAFMNK- R _F—\F
+t-A=+—8" $ GIEE 3=

2 ZEBRTEEBREERHH
FrEfErExBHEE - RN T
—NF+_A=+—H &*r&k
F B35 € 7 4258 591,084,901
BT (ZE— t¢:62,044,8905%
T0) IREBTEEERBE  ERE
E&RMT:

2018 2017

—2-N\F —tF

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 47,346,334 37,227,121
Over one year but less than two years 8@ —F B DR E 2,330,784 1,926,402
Over two years but less than five years HBEMFR LR AF 41,407,783 22,891,367
91,084,901 62,044,890
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The financial controller of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engaged
independent qualified professional valuers to perform
the valuation. The financial controller works closely with
independent qualified professional valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs to the model.
Financial controller reports to executive directors semi-annually
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are
disclosed above.
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and

key inputs used).

44,

EWMIA (&)

EMTAZAVEFE (&)

FEEZIRAEE M B IER L
EifBZ2@MEEZ L FE

AEERHEREERNREHR
BATEFE TRINBEHEEE
ZECMEEQAFENEZEHR
(LERFAGBERMEEEGHA

gUg) -

Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
SREE RTZA=+-H2ZA¥E AVEER GERWRIEBARE BRE
2018 2017
—E-N\f ZZT—tF
HK$ HKS
B BT
Held-for-trading non-derivative financial 81,244,200 107,374,656 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
assets classified as financial assets at market
FVTPL
AERERABREATEIE F1E EBMS L2 EARE TEA
ZERMEEZHIEEERNE
Investments in equity securities 26,253,472 14,192,719 Level 3 Asset-based approach with key
established in the PRC, Hong Kong inputs of
and overseas measured at FVTOCI
(2017: classified as available-for-sale
investments)
FRPARARATETIR 2 F3E BEL FTERAMEA

ZRARE BB RAE
FRE (215 HERHLE
wE)

Fair value of the underlying
assets of the investees; and

BRAHNERAE
AFE: R

Marketability discount of
10%
10% 89 7t 38 147 %
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

44,

EMIA (&)
EWMIRZAVEE (F)

FEERFBAEZMELER LT
BilBzz@MEEZ L FE

(Continued) (&)
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
tREE RTZA=Z+-B2AFE ATEER RERWRIZGAYE BRE
2018 2017
—E-N\f ZEZ—+f
HK$ HK$
B BT
Forward contract classified as financial 6,651,180 7,851,180 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method A significant increase in the
assets at FVTPL and discount rate (note) discount rate used would
result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and
vice versa.
NERBBBRRRNTETR F3E ERREMERTEE FEEAME L7 BHATE

ZEREAEZERAN

Notes: The Group has an obligation to dispose of the indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary which holds 16.67% equity interest
in Yinghua in cash in the future. Such forward contract is
classified as financial asset at FVTPL in accordance with HKFRS
9. Forward contract is calculated on a discounted cash flow
approach with discount factor of 24.6% on agreed price of
disposal of the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary which holds
16.67% equity interest in Yinghua.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the
years.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

During the year ended 31 December 2018

44. £FTH (#F)

EMTAZAVEFE (&)

FEZEAFHETEZH K

RBE-B—N\F+=A=+-

HIEFE
Equity Financial
instruments assets
at FVTOdCI at FVTPL
ERHMEERA EBEBER
RAFETIR RAFETIER
ZBRAIA ZERMEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January 2018 R-—ZE—-—N\F—HF—H 35,942,280 7,851,180
Purchase of equity investments at ~ BEABBE M2 ERA
FVTOCI BRATEIIERZRATA 3,134,800 -
Unrealised loss in other H 2 E AR
comprehensive income RELEE (12,705,867) -
Unrealised loss in profit or loss B R EIREE - (1,200,000)
Exchange difference ME W Z5E (117,741) -
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-NF+-A=+—H 26,253,472 6,651,180

During the year ended 31 December 2017

RBE=-ZE-—tF+=ZA=+-—

HIEEE
Available- Derivative
for-sale financial
investments instrument
AHHERE TESRIE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 14,142,889 10,416,328
Unrealised loss in profit or loss B REIRESR - (2,837,217)
Exchange difference i =% 49,830 272,069
At 31 December 2017 RZTE—t&F+=ZHA=+—H 14,192,719 7,851,180
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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45.

46.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 45,

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

METBRELEEENY
iR

TR AKEKREREASDH
BENEHHE BRREKIER
BB MELTHAELNEER
BeREAARRBESREGRA
SESERERERTRIES
MELTHRERENAE-

Amount
dueto  Obligations
a related under Bank
company finance leases borrowings Total
Ef-K MERE
BEAARE Eff RITEE ok
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-A—H 11,958,974 419,069 61,343,200 73,721,243
Financing cash flows (note) REREGRE (Mit) (11,453,683) (245,772) (3,172,644)  (14,872,099)
Finance costs BEKA 778,046 8,882 1,722,244 2,509,172
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=1+-H 1,283,337 182,179 59,892,800 61,358,316
Financing cash flows (note) RERERE (fit) (920,221) (184,329) 23,912,724 22,808,174
Finance costs BEKA 94,696 2,150 3,001,532 3,098,378
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
+-A=1+-H 457,812 - 86,807,056 87,264,868

Note: The cash flows in relation to repayments to a related company,
repayments for obligations under finance leases and bank
borrowings and finance costs.

NON-CASH TRANSACTION 46.

Under the Land Swap Transaction, the Committee
compensated the Group with the land use rights located in
Qingyuan and cash compensation in exchange of deposits for
land use rights, certain construction in progress and certain
land use rights during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Details of which are set out in note 7.

Wi . BR—-REEARER BEHES
BEERRITEFRETREORDR
EBURBERA -

FRERS

REE-_ZT—+F+_A=+—
HIFEE RBETHERSTS &
Be U IRNERN T HEAEN
ReREEAYAEBAOMIE"
AR Lt {F AR & B TR
TREET L ERAE - FBEER
BIFE7 o
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47.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 March 2019, (i) Dream Class, (ii) Grand Prospects
Finance International Limited (“Grand Prospects”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, (iii) Kwong Da Enterprises
Limited (“Kwong Da"), a company which should acquire the
entire issued share capital of a subsidiary of the Group, Star
Rank Limited (”Star Rank”) which indirectly owns 16.67%
of Yinghua pursuant to the exercise of put option by the
Group on 24 July 2017, (iv) Kada Capital Investments Limited
("Kada"), a company which indirectly owns approximately
83.33% equity interest of Yinghua and (v) Mr. Lam Mau
Tat (the “Guarantor”), the director of Kwong Da and
Kada, entered into a confirmation deed to agree on a loan
arrangement and the completion arrangement for the disposal
of Star Rank to Kwong Da. Grand Prospects shall sign a loan
agreement with Kada and the Guarantor to provide a 2-year
loan bearing interest rate of 10.5% per annum to Kada
with principal amount of not more than RMB21,953,589
(equivalent to approximately HK$25,663,700). Upon signing
of the loan agreement, the completion of the disposal shall
take place and Dream Class shall cease to have control
on Star Rank. The provision of loan by Grand Prospects is
subject to shareholder’s approval of the Company as at the
date of approval for issuance of these consolidated financial
statements. Details of the disposal and the loan arrangement
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
March 2019.
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48.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2018 and 2017.

48. FEMBLA2HE

RRABMBARAR -_TE—-NFR
—ET—+F+ZA=+—BH2ZH

BT

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMBERT
BaERT/ BA/EMEE
WELARER AR S EMRE EREAL TEEHR
2018 2017
“E-\f ZZ—<F
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
hREREEERAA RERAEE 10,0008 7T &3 % REEMR
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
PAHRIBR AR B HK$500,000 REZR
deferred non-voting
1,000/ 7T & @ Ak
500,000/ 7
ERFEELR
RYEEBRABRTERAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Testing of printing
(note 1) (Ki#£1) H registered capital products
AR 1,000,000 EN Rl e Bl
SHER ORI BERAT The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and paper
(note 1) (Hi#£1) H registered capital products printing
30,000,000/ ¢ R R AR m R
AMER
Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of label,
Company Limited BE HK$10,000 packaging and
RARER (RE) BB AT deferred non-voting paper products and
1,0008 L EBR printing products
10,0007 70 EERE BEM
BRERERER B REF @
Chung Tai Smart Labelling Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Trading of label and
Company Limited B 1T printing products
PAREMRARRAA EERERHR®
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48.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(%)

Effective percentage

48. FEMBLA2HE

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMBERT
BaERT/ BA/EMEE
WELARER MR S EMRE EREAL TERE
2018 2017
“E-\f ZZ—<f
% %
Chung Tai Printing (International) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited BE TATLBR RERR
RARE (BB BRAF
HERKIR (RI)BRAR The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label, packaging and
(note 1) (His£1) s registered capital paper products
98,000,000 7T printing
AR g8 BER
A mENR
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
RERATE B 200,000/ 70 & &% products
EEDRER
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100  Property investment
RAREEBERRA F#&  HKS2 deferred non-voting NERE
1008 T & &R
AT
BREEERLR
New Box Mini Storage Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Provision of mini
PRRITEERAA E&  HK$2 deferred non-voting storage services
1008 T & B R RER TR R RE
AT
BREEERLR
Star Entertainment (Universe) Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
Limited B TETLER management and

ER% (RT)ARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

48.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Effective percentage

48. FEMBA R 218
(%)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMBERT
BaERT/ BA/EMEE
WELARER MR S EMRE EREAL TERE
2018 2017
“E-\f ZZ—<f
% %
Neway Smart Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 RFID printing products
(International) Company Limited Eh 10,0007 70 & 38 % and RFID label
hERRME (BR)FRAR ERITIREIRIE @
ERSTARE
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
HRREIRERAR BB 10,000 7T LB licensing services,
sales of music
albums and
investment holding
RS LEHRE
HESHERR
REER
Neway Star Artiste Hong Kong HK10,000 ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
Management Limited B 10,0007 7T & @ management
MEREEERARAA services
REEANERRE
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Organisation of
RERR (2 BRDAE Bk BT EBR concerts and shows
EMERERRE
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securities trading
GEREERAA Bk BT E B EEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. FEWB AT Z S

(Continued)

(%)

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMBERT
BaERT/ BA/EMEE
WELARER MR S EMRE EREAL TEEHR
2018 2017
“E-\f ZZ—<f
% %
Fruitful Global Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
LERRBRAR BE BT E Bk products
EE ARl
Grand Prospects Hong Kong HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
£%5 & 100,000/ 7T & /K HE
Supreme Cycle BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
RERUEES 1ETERR NERE
BT EEENERERERAR The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 Financial leasing
(note 1) (Hi3Z1) s registered capital BERE
20,000,000% 7T
AMER
Zhongxing Guosheng (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
REBE (HiH2) s registered capital REER
AR%2,000,0007
AMER
Zhongqing (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 60 60  Property development
g (Hi2) i registered capital NEER
AR #2,000,0007
AMER

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ Mz R G R D 7
Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=1+—RHILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. FEWB AT Z S

(Continued)

(%)

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KARRECRT
BaERT/ BA/EMEE
WEAR AR EMAL MY A AR A EREAL TEEHR
2018 2017
“E-N\F —Z—+F
% %
PERRESHEARI)BERAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 1) (Hi#£1) H AR 1,000,0007C REER
Takara Global Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Gaming distribution
BABRERBRDA Bk TETLER R i
R EEXEHE (R BRAE The PRC HK$5,000,000 100 100 Design, research
(Note 1) (#iz#1) i registered capital and development
5,000,000 7T of multi-media
BRIEE technology
E4-8 BUTRER
HERFEE
Notes: Hat -
) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the (1) ZEMBRAR TR ZINEEE R
PRC. E
) These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises () ZEMB AR TIRPEKL 2 NE
established in the PRC. ==

The operations of all subsidiaries are carried out principally in

Hong Kong and the PRC.

Except for Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited, which is
directly owned by the Company, all other subsidiaries are
indirectly owned by the Company.

FIEMBARMNEREERER

KRBT

SR KEIRIRE AR AR B AR
RIERBEGIN A EMHE AR
HARRREEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. TEMBLTAZFHE
(Continued) (£8)
The above table only includes those subsidiaries which, in TREBEANNESEALATE
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally =N (N S == = - ) N
affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a EEFEETFERLP>HHE N
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give Al EERAFUMA B AR
details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors BHEREBN TR - BT EREIRIE
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length. The & (ERAERBEER )G LT &
deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the Group, WEENEREKE MEWEBRA
practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of FIZIEEARe@mEE EEAIR
nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the relevant HARegile FSE . gl E8RE
companies or to participate in any distribution on winding up. LZEEA DR
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at M B A &) N G 4R 5 A 9 (T {a] B T
the end of the year or at any time during the years. WEER M REEZERES-
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TREBRANEEEAIEIZEEEZ
subsidiaries of the Group that have non-controlling interests: ZIEETEMRBATEES:

Place of Proportion of

establishment

ownership interests

and principal and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BRIt ER FERERNE
WEAREE TEEXBE BEREGERREEZLS SREFEREZCER R FERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-\f -TLF ZB-\F “Ttf ZB-\F "F-+F
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Zhongging The PRC 40% 40% (299,862) (194,578)  (2,300,887)  (1,263,425)
HiE h
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (2,084) (1,129) (449,544) (447,460)

with non-controlling interests
BEFERER
ERITERKE QR

(301,946) (195,707) ~ (2,750,431)  (1,710,885)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BH=E

48.

“E-N\F+ZA=t—HIFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Summarised financial information for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

48.

FTENBLATZHE

(#)
AEBHAEERFIEREZR 2
BRABEZ-ZE—N\FREK=ZE
—+F&+-_A=+—HItFEZ
R ERBZESHNWT o LA T 7
ERBMERERELEB AR FM
WsERT 2 &5

Zhongging FE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,965 9,894
Current assets BB E 44,410,619 43,118,675
Current liabilities mEBEE (55,517,709) (51,626,039)
Total equity BT (11,091,125) (8,497,470)
Equity attributable to owners of ZAN/NEIE PNy
the Company (6,654,675) (5,098,482)
Non-controlling interests of Zhongqging /& FF4%2 A #E 5 (4,436,450) (3,398,988)
(11,091,125) (8,497,470)
Expenses 53 (749,655) (486,446)
Loss for the year REEE (749,655) (486,446)
Other comprehensive (expense) RNEHMEE (FAX)
income for the year A (1,844,000) 2,562,861
Total comprehensive (expense) AE2HE(FAX)
income for the year LN (2,593,655) 2,076,415

Neway Group Holdings Limited  E £ Mz R R D 7
Annual Report 2018 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLLFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. T EMMEB AT ZE1E
(Continued) (48)
Zhongqing (Continued) g (&)
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the year since acquisition AT AT IS
attributable to B W LA SR AR B 18
— owners of the Company . NCIEZ =N (449,793) (291,868)
— non-controlling interests of — B IR =
Zhongging (299,862) (194,578)
Loss for the year REFE (749,655) (486,446)
Other comprehensive (expense) AR AL (AR F
income for the year attributable to Efz2m (FZ) A
— owners of the Company —RRFHEB A (1,106,400) 1,537,717
— non-controlling interests of — B
Zhongging (737,600) 1,025,144
Other comprehensive (expense) REEMEE
income for the year (=) WA (1,844,000) 2,562,861
Total comprehensive (expense) AT AT ML B B LAR
income for the year attributable to AFEE2HE (LX)
WA 4258
— owners of the Company —RRFHEB A (1,556,193) 1,245,849
— non-controlling interests of — B IR A
Zhongging (1,037,462) 830,566
Total comprehensive (expense) RE2E (L)
income for the year WA 4258 (2,593,655) 2,076,415
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Zhonggqing (Continued)

48.

TEMBRAZFE

(%)

g (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\E T —tF
HKS$ HK$
BT ow
Net cash outflow from REXEBL®
operating activities TR F R (824,778) (654,667)
Net cash inflow from BEERS
financing activities MAFEE 843,074 735,090
Net cash inflow RWEMAFR 18,296 80,423
Dividend paid to non-controlling RN
shareholder of Zhongging FEVERR IR R AR B - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-N\F+_A=+—HILFE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. 7R T B BMRR T
COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR 2 &E 42,671,967 42,671,967
Amounts due from subsidiaries YN E /L] 758,453,145 755,767,407
801,125,112 798,439,374
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and E e W SRR -
prepayments e RIBNFIA 209,526 289,785
Loans to joint ventures BTEERRIZER 50,000 50,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEAR LIRS 15,754,704 24,447,822
16,014,230 24,787,607
Liabilities =
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accrued H fth fE T 508 %
charges FERTE A 755,154 890,154
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTHT B A R FIE 56,286,425 47,843,340
57,041,579 48,733,494
Net current liabilities BB R (41,027,349) (23,945,887)
Total assets less total liabilities MEERBEE 760,097,763 774,493,487
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital fi&% < 2,536,395 2,536,395
Reserves (note) e (Haz) 757,561,368 771,957,092
Total equity RSP 760,097,763 774,493,487
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by E Y S

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE
49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. AT IBMRREK (])
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Met -
Reserves 53]
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Reorganisation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RBEE EBEREERE v b4 EARE REER @
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT B B B B
t 1 January 2017 mZE—tF-A—-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 281,497,395 773,862,382
Loss and total comprehensive FEEBRAERTBE
expense for the year - - - - (1,905,290) (1,905,290)
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—tFEFZA=+—H 368949127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 279,592,105 771,957,092
Adjustments arising from initial BREREAMBREE
application of HKFRS 9 FORELNAE - - - - (16,557,674)  (16,557,674)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE-N\$-A-H
(BE3) 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 263,034,431 755,399,418
Profit and total comprehensive FERNRZERAEE
income for the year - - - - 2,161,950 2,161,950
At 31 December 2018 —E-\E+-F=1-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 265,196,381 757,561,368
Note: As at 1 January 2018, non-current amounts due from Mat: RZZT—N\F—A—H ERHEB

subsidiaries of HK$650,269,186 is classified as financial assets
at amortised cost and are assessed on 12m ECL basis as there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. As at 1 January 2018, the management estimated
credit loss allowance to be HK$6,502,692 and has been
recognised against retained profits.

As at 1 January 2018, non-current amounts due from
subsidiaries of HK$105,498,221 are not held for the purpose
of cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, the balance
is reclassified as financial assets at FVTPL from financial
assets at amortised cost upon application of HKFRS on 1
January 2019 and fair value loss of HK$10,054,982 has been
recognisd against retained profits.

There is no material impact upon application of HKFRS 15 on
1 January 2018.

A BB FE 7 B 5K 7B650,269,18678
O ERBIREENATEZSRE
E TER+-@ABHEEBERE
G AEBVIFHEREZEER
S EABZEI RN T — N\F—
A—H EBREFAHEEFERE
56,502,692/ 7T I B FER AR
B F

R_Z—N\FE—A—8 EKKE
A A)EY IE R B X IE 105,498,2217
ml%%ﬁmwﬁiﬁ$i&h$
EEASZHNEBZHEERERB -
E%v%:%—ﬂi—ﬂ—ﬁ%m
BT BHmE LR SBHRNIRE
A EZCREEETHDEA
FRBHEATEYEFEZ SR
BE N F{EE1E10,054,9828 T
EHERBREEF -

R_ZT—N\F—A—BERESH
EREERF ISR EE AT L
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Principal Properties
TEYFE

At 31 December 2018
RZE—N\F+=—_A=+—H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group’s effective

A. BEYME

Approximate

interest in gross Category of
Location the properties floor area Usage lease
KEBRYEH BHREEE
i Bh ZEBRER HE Az HAER
(sq. m)
(FFK)
Lot. No. 5378 IN D.D.51, 100% 4,859 Industrial Medium-term
G/F-2/F, 4/F, I% lease
Chung Tai Printing Group Building fRERTR 4D
No. 11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BRI AMERETENEGHIR
RRENRISERKELEL9515%
HER53785% i T 2218 M4
Yuen Long Town Lot No. 292, 100% 1,063.82  Commercial Medium-term
Units 21, 22, 23, 41 and 77 of [ lease
1/F and the whole of 3/F, HERFR 4D
Hop Yick Commercial Centre (Phase 1),
No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R TS 3398
AEEEPL(—H)—®8Z21-22-
- NRTTREUR=EEE
T EA T ER 29255
No. 1801, 15th floor, 100% 175.66  Commercial Medium-term
Block 4, Yard 89, [ lease
89 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District, HRARFE AV

Beijing, the PRC
FR B R BA RS [ B R 895k
895k P45 12 15/8 1801 %=
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Principal Properties

At 31 December 2018
RZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H

B.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR

B. HERERFUE

SALE
Group's effective
interest in  Approximate Category of
Location the properties site area  Usage lease
AEBRWES
Hb B 2EBRERz BOMREE AR HAER
(sg. m)
(F73K)
Two parcels of land designated 60% 3,406.67  Commercial and Medium-term

located at Lot No. B19001-1*1 and

No. B19001-2*1 of Villagers
Committee of Lian Tang Village,

Dong Cheng Sub-district Office,
Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City,

the PRC

R EEET SRR RMENFE
ERNRZE8SZMIE LI L&
Z£B19001-1*15% & 55B19001-2*155% )

Residential lease

BEREE REITEA
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Financial Summary

M EHE

RESULTS E
For the
iod f
For the per|o1 Ar;:} For the year ended
year ended 2014 1o 31 December
31 March 31 December BET-A=T-HLFE
2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018*
—Z-|mF
HE MA—HE
—Z-;mF —Z-|mF
=A=+—B +ZA=+-A
LFE 1 HAFA —Z-h%F —E-RF —T—tF —E-N\F*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FAT THT FAET TERT
Revenue Yoz 613,269 419,513 521,256 562,911 515,534 592,626
(Loss) profit before taxation B %t A0 (18 )& H (20,531) (79,577) (68,269) 86,724 52,092 (35,220)
Taxation WA (1,219) 734 726 (12,720) (4,142) (3,004)
(Loss) profit for the year KE (BB &7 (21,750) (78,843) (67,543) 74,004 47,950 (38,224)
Attributable to: ATAL R
Owners of the Company AREEEA (21,016) (78,637) (67,262) 74,206 48,146 (37,922)
Non-controlling interests FERER (734) (206) (281) (202) (196) (302)
(21,750) (78,843) (67,543) 74,004 47,950 (38,224)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES QE&EE
As at As at 31 D_ecember
31 March R+t=A=t+-H
2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018*
—E-mE
ZA=t+-H —T-EF “T-RHF ZE-RF —TtF —E-N\Fr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT FAT TiEx FET TR
Total assets BELE 897,928 940,561 1,004,702 1,116,246 1,206,500 1,157,108
Total liabilities BfREE (125,160) (119,165) (157,626) (202,412) (196,987) (229,826)
Total equity BmBE 772,768 821,396 847,076 913,834 1,009,513 927,282
Equity attributable to AREHEBA
owners of the Company e 772,880 821,636 848,461 916,374 1,011,224 930,032
Non-controlling interests R ER (112) (240) (1,385) (2,540) (1,711) (2,750)
772,768 821,396 847,076 913,834 1,009,513 927,282
i, The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2018 were presented * REZ-F-NEFF-_HA=1—HIFEZE

upon the application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, which the

comparative financial information was not restated.
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